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CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA

Gail McLeod
MayorFaTem Regular Council Meeting of: Tuesday, December 13, 2016 — 6:00 PM
Kevin Rourk

PSS CALL TO ORDER
Tina Gaworecki PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Angelo A. DeGiulio INVOCATION — Rev. Bruce Hunt

_ ROLL CALL

Harry Sisko CORRECTIONS AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA FOR: December 13,2016 (A)
Larry Templin APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FOR: November 15, 2016 (A)

AWARDS, PRESENTATIONS & PROCLAMATIONS
1. Alan C. Young & Assoc. — FY 2015-2016 Audit Presentation — Accept & File

PUBLIC HEARINGS
1. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2017

ORGANIZATIONAL BUSINESS
A. City Administrator Operational updates/reports/document submissions
1. Allen Park Bulldogs Expansion at Cunningham Park
2. Motion to Accept & File the updates/reports/document submissions
B. Mayor Matakas — Appointment to Commissions

PUBLIC COMMENT (4 minutes)

CONSENT AGENDA
A. Purchasing Actions
1. Claims & Accounts 2. Payroll Report
B. Finance Actions
1. December 2016 — 1. Finance Overview 2. Budget to Actual Report 3. Balance Sheet 4. Cash Flow

RESOLUTIONS
1. Authorize the signing of the Contract with MDOT for the [-75 roadway reconstruction
2. Approve the Wayne County Annual Maintenance Permit — A-17076
3. Approve the Wayne County Annual Pavement Restoration Permit — A-17131
4. Approve the Wayne County Annual Permit for Special Events — A-17161

OTHER BUSINESS
1. 39 & Final Reading of Ordinance #10 — 2016 an Ordinance to Amend Chapter 18, Fire Prevention and Protection,
Article Il, Fire Codes repeal and readopt Sections 18-33 and 18-34
2. 3 & Final Reading of Ordinance #11 — 2016 an Ordinance to Amend Chapter 2, Administration, Article VI,
“Finance”, Division 3 “Recovery of Expenses of Emergency Response™ and Sections 2-863 through 2-868

CLOSED SESSION

ADJOURNMENT
Next Regular Meeting: - Tuesday, December 20, 2016 @ 6:00 PM

Please visit www.cityofallenpark.org for information on upcoming Meetings

*A Council Work Session will be held prior to the Meeting at 5:00 PM to discuss the Audit
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City of Allen Park Rules of Decorum for Public Meetings

The order of business at the meetings of the City Council, a sub-committee or commission shall be
according to an Agenda approved by the body or it’s Chairperson.

An individual may only speak on an issue after the individual has been recognized by the Chairperson.
Comments from the floor shall be made at the podium at the front of the council table or such other area
as designated by the Chairperson.

Prior to an individual speaking from the floor, the individual shall identify themselves and state their
street for the record. The individual shall also identify if they are representing any group or
organization. If a group or organization is represented, the group or organization may select up to three
(3) individuals to speak on its behalf.

All comments shall be directed only to the Chairperson. Speakers are not to address other members of
the council or members of the audience

Each member of the public may speak for up to Four (4) minutes. Time may not be transferred or
conveyed from one person and/or group to another. Unused time is forfeited after the speaker(s)
relinquish the floor.

All written statements should be given to the City Clerk prior to the meeting so that copies may be made
available to the members of the public body.

No individual shall be allowed to make any defamatory attack or invasion of another individual’s
personal life.

a. There shall be no questions, comments, discussion or attacks regarding anybody’s personal
life. The Chairperson shall immediately rule out of order any person who begins to bring up
such issues. If the Chairperson does not do so, any member of the Council may, by calling
for a point of order, request the Chairperson to rule the offending party out of order. If the
Chairperson does not rule the offending party out of order, any Council member may call for
an appeal of the decision of the Chairperson. If the Chairperson’s decision is overturned, the
offending person shall be deemed as being out of order.

b. If the person making the comments is allowed to continue, the person who is being
challenged or whom the comments are made against, shall be entitled to make an immediate
rebuttal statement.

c. For purposes of these Rules as they relate to Elected Officials or City Officials, the term
“personal life” shall refer to anything other than that which is said or done in the person’s
official capacity as an elected official or in the person’s official City capacity.

d. Any and all comments that are ruled out of order shall be stricken and/or redacted from any
and all records or recordings of the meeting.

Members of the public body may question the speakers, but the members of the public body are not
obligated to answer any questions or make any statements on the issue raised or discussed by the
speaker. Issues may be referred to the appropriate body, department or individual for investigation and
review.

No person or group shall be allowed to disrupt the meeting or proceedings.

Any individual, who fails to comply with these rules after having first been warned by the Chairperson
to cease such actions, shall be ordered by the Chairperson to leave and/or be ejected from the meeting.

12/12/2016 10:15:13 AM



City of Allen Park Regular Council Meeting Minutes
Tuesday, November 15, 2016

Mayor William B. Matakas called the Meeting to order at 6:00 PM

Roll Call showed present: Councilwoman Gail McLeod, Councilwoman Tina Gaworecki, Councilman Angelo
Americo DeGiulio, Councilman Harry Sisko and Councilman Larry Templin;

Excused: Councilman Kevin Rourke & Treasurer Maureen C. Armstrong

Also present: City Attorney Joe Couvreur, City Administrator Mark Kibby, Police Chiet James Wilkewitz, Fire
Chief Doug LaFond, Parks & Rec Director Pat Hawkins, DPS Director Terry Kehr, Finance Director Bob Cady,
Building Dept. Matt Baker & City Clerk Michael 1. Mizzi

Motion by Gaworecki

Supportted by Templin

RESOLVED, to approve the Agenda with separating Claims & Accounts from the Consent Items
MOTION ADOPTED ~ 16-111516-0233

Motion by DeGiulio

Supported by McLeod

RESOLVED, to approve the Minutes for the Regular Meeting of October 11, 2016
MOTION ADOPTED - 16-111516-234

Motion by Gaworecki

Supported by DeGiulio

RESOLVED, to Accept and File the City Administrators operational updates/reports/documents and
submissions.

MOTION ADOPTED - 16-111516-235

Motion by Sisko

Supported by DeGiulio

RESOLVED, to approve Claims and Accounts as presented.
MOTION ADOPTED - 16-111516-236

Motion by Gaworecki
Supported by Templin
RESOLVED, to approve the following Consent Agenda Items:
A. Purchasing Actions
1 Payroll Report
B. Finance Actions
1 October 2016 — 1. Finance Overview 2. Budget to Actual Report 3. Balance Sheet 4. Cash Flow
MOTION ADOPTED — 16-111516-237

Motion by McLeod

Supported by Gaworecki

RESOLVED, to schedule a Council Work Session on Tuesday, December 13, 2016 at 5:00 PM prior to the City
Council Meeting to discuss the FY2015-2016 Audit

MOTION ADOPTED - 16-111516-238

Motion by Gaworecki

Supported by Sisko

RESOLVED, to approve the review of the Master Plan for no less than 63 days for Public comment & review
and that the City forward a copy to each community that borders Allen Park (Southgate, Taylor, Dearborn,
Lincoln Park, Melvindale, and Dearborn Heights)

MOTION ADOPTED - 16-111516-239



City of Allen Park Regular Council Meeting Minutes
Tuesday, November 15, 2016

Motion by Templin

Supported by Gaworecki

RESOLVED, to approve the 13 & 2" Reading of Proposed Ordinance #10 — 2016 an Ordinance to Amend
Chapter 18, Fire Prevention and Protection, Article II, Fire Codes repeal and readopt Sections 18-33 and 18-34
MOTION ADOPTED — 16-111516-240

Motion by McLeod

Supported by Sisko

RESOLVED, to approve the 13 & 2™ Reading of Proposed Ordinance #11 — 2016 an Ordinance to Amend
Chapter 2, Administration, Article VI, “Finance”, Division 3 “Recovery of Expenses of Emergency Response”
and Sections 2-863 through 2-868

MOTION ADOPTED — 16-111516-241

Motion by DeGiulio

Supported by Gaworecki

RESOLVED, to adjourn the Regular Council Meeting at 7:23 PM
MOTION ADOPTED - 16-111516-242

William B, Matakas — Mayor Michael I. Mizzi — City Clerk
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Alan C. Young & Associates, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

7310 Woodward Ave, Suite 740 {313) §73-7500 {Tel.)
Detroit, M1 48202 (313) 873-7502 (Fax)
www.alancyoung.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and City Councll
City of Allen Park, Michigan

Report on the Financial Statements

year ended June 30, 20186, and
ty's basic financial statements as

listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presa@im
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United*
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relg
statements that are free from material misstatement, whé

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our respansibility is to express opinions on
financial statements of the Allen Park Housi

as they relate to the amounts included |n the agor i ‘presented component units, are based on the

in ai 1th‘audlt|ng standards generally accepied
ncial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, ISSUEG: the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit:

materlal misstatement.

An audit involves performlng procedures to obtaln audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
_seiected depend on the auditor's judgment, tncludmg the assessment of

des evaiuatmg the appropnateness of account:ng policies used and the
Slnkting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

opinions.
Opinions

i our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial siatements referrcd to above
present falrly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the. aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of June 30, 20186, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



independent Auditor's Report
(Continued)

Other Matters
Required Suppiementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis budgetary comparison information, pension system schedule of changes in net position,
liability and relaied ratios, schedute of pension contributions and post employment healthcare benefits schedule
of funding progress as identified in the table of conients be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an eSSen | part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economig ~pr historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary lnformatso in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which co _of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the inform % o consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and othe obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion:or, Ssurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with suffici Vi n opinion or provide any
assurance. :

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming op
comprise the City's basic financial statements as a whole. T
are presented for purposes of additional analy d are not a'F (

Such information has been subjected to the :
statements and certain addltlonal procedures ing hcnlmg such information directly to

Sig financial statements or to the basic

Other Reporttng Requwements by Government:Audltmg Standards

In accordance with Government Audst:ng Standards, we have also issued a report on our consideration of the
City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain prowsaons of laws,

scope of
That report audit performed in accordance with government auditing standards in

Over financial reporting and compliance.

Detroit, Michigan



OF ALLEN PARK, MIGHIGAN

Manant’s Discussio

nd Analysis

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The City of Alien Park Michigan's (the "City") 2016 annual financial report is presented in
conformity with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 34. This annual report consists of four
parts - management's discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements, required
supplementat information and other supplemental information. The basic financial statements
include two kinds of statements that present different views of the City. The first two statements
are government-wide financial statements that provide both shori-term and long-term
information about the City's status. The remaining statements are fund financial statements that
focus on individual parts of the City's operations.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is
improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result
in cash fiows in future fiscal periods.

The government-wide financial statements outline functions of the City that are principally
supported by revenues received from the State of Michigan and the taxpayers of the City of
Allen Park.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of
the City can be divided into six categories. They are:

A. General Government - General

B. Special Revenue - Major and Local Streets, Sidewalk, Building, Drug Law Enforcement,
Economic Development, Library and Rubbish.

Debt Service - 2003 Community Center Construction Debt.
Capital Projects - Capital Improvement.

Enterprise - Water & Sewer and Southfield Lease Properties.

Mmoo

Trust and Agency - Pension Trust and Tax Collection.

3



CITY OF ALLEN PARK, M CHI A e

(Continued)

Financial Highlights

The General Fund reported revenues in excess of expenditures and transfers of $1,084,776,
resulting in moving from a fund balance of $6,218,022 to a General Fund balance of
$7,302,798. The following are the significant financial highlights that helped accomplished this
turnaround for the year ended June 30, 2016:

s Property taxes collections decreased slightly in the City with current year General Fund
receipts totaling $7,488,244. This is a decrease of $256,410 (3:31 percent) from the prior
year property collection of $7,744,654. This is mostly due tgzasuadgment levy being paid
off. :

e Included again in the General Fund was a tran
subsidize debt service for the Southfield Lease P
Properties were sold in September of 2014 and:|
refinance of the outstanding 2009A & 2009B:b .
November of 2015 and refinanced by the gad:of June 2016.

o A millage increase approved by the resid
Safety added $4,626,643 fo help offset the

s Grants for Parks, Fire, Water af
sources totaled aimost $1.9 mill

e Administration is continuing to
$600,000 of the incrgase in Gene

fully-insured to self "hf"s""'u'ré'd'-healt!r}ca‘?r'é"E

= The City has oObtained an appraisal and éurvey to sell up to 7 acres of the former City
Hall property. This is estimated to net approximately $2.2 million in revenue to the City.

o A committes of 3 Councilmembers and Staff has been actively pursuing a new site for a
permanent Police Department and City Hall. tis hoped that a decision will be reached
: conStruct}g will begin in the 2016-2017 fiscal year.

the Staje of Michigan to oversee City operations beginning in

S

ing in June of 2016 after an annual review, the RTAB removed

City and now meets only when certain conditions warrant a

=g ( ty averaged over $54.5 million in fotal receipts and expenses or
$4.375 milfionsper month. About 40% of expenses went {o pay salaries and benefits for
active employees and retiree healthcare. When money collected and distributed to
school and county agencies is included, another $49.2 million per year moves though
the City treasury.

» All labor contracts, with the exception of the Fire Department, are settled through June of
2019. The City is currently in negotiations with the Fire employees on a new contract.



CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

Mement’s D:scussn’alysn
(Continued)

Governmental Activities

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In
the case of the City, there was a decrease in governmental activities net assets ($2,117,108).
This resulted in a change from $24,820,707 in the prior year to $22,703,599 for 2016.

The largest portion of the City's net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land
and improvements, buildings and improvements, vehicles, fumitureﬁ;igﬁgd equipment); less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstandi%ﬁ ihe City uses these capital
assets to provide services 1o the public; consequently, these a are not available for future
spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assef orted net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay thi§ e provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be hese liabilities.

6f transactions including the net results

The City's financial position is the product of a ny
isition and disposal of capital :

of its activities, the payment of debt, the acquis
depreciation of capital assets. )

Total
2016 2015
Assels wud .
Cash and Cash Equivalents 9,649,710 =9 6,654,890 18,658,597 17,881,927
Receivables and Other Current Assets '5__3,660 2,757,723 5,926,084 4,547,274
Capitat Assets and Other Noncurrent A; 66,562,118 Al 66,188,213 71978172 132,761,334 138,116,459
Total Assets 78.‘.‘65,488 79,153,:_5;_?5 78,474,524 41,390,785 167,240,012 160,544,660
Deferred Cutfiows ) 5,430,631 4,537,?392 - 965,088 6,772,162 5,502,181
Llabllities
Current Liabilities - 2,375,452 4,267,648 4,488,038 4,533,830 6,564,490 8,801,478
Long-term Liabiities 58,676,502 62,976,271 53,283 611 £8,535,662 117,960,113 111,511,933
164,051,954 57,243,918 63,772,649 63,069,492 124,824,603 120,313,411
" 440,566 1,626,341 236,227 345,940 - 1,972,261
61,376,712 60,779,210 33,866,668 34,232,972 95,243,380 85,012,182
Restricted 2,998,886 3,220,285 1,001,431 1,001,431 4,000,317 4,221,716
Uorestricted 41.671,985 {39,178,788) (18,040,920 (16,293,971) (60,712,919) (55,472,759

Total Net Position S 20703500 § 24820707 §  15827,170 § 18940432 § 38,530,778 & 43,761,139




CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

nagement’s Disssion and An
{Continued)
Governmental Activities (Continued)

The following table presents a summary of revenue and expense for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2015 and 2016: (in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activiiies Total
2016 2015 2016 2018 2016 2015
Revenue
General Revenue $ 20,654 & 20,722 3 4,631 & (386) $ 257285 $ 20,336
Charge for Service 3,669 2,730 8,122 7,558 11,791 10,288
Granis and Contributions 3,868 2,865 635 g - -4,603 2,885
Total Revenue 28,291 26,317 13,388 41,679 33,489
Program Expenses
General Government | 7,248 £,939 14,187 5,839
Public Safety 8,045 8,023 8,045 8,023
Highway and Streeis 5,285 6,854 5,285 6,854
Sanitation 8,309 4,005 8,309 4,006
Reecreation and Cultural 1,094 - 1 ,094 515
Interesi on Long-ferm Debt 427 . 409
Southfield Lease Properlies - 3,148 3,146
Waier and Sewer - 9,817 8,817
Total Expenses 30,408 26,7 12,963 39,708

Change in Net Position $ 2117y & {5791) % (5230) § {6,219)

Financial Analysis of the Governmen

The City uses fund accounting to ensure and dem 1ce with finance-related legal

requirements.

Governmental Funds, The focus the City's ovemmentai funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outﬂows and baiances of spendable resources.

Such information is useful in "’_assessmg the Citys financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved: fund-batance may serve as a ‘useful measure of a government’s net resources
avallabie'for spendlng at the end of the fiscal year.

oity's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
incregse of $879,902 in comparison with the prior year.
 amount, or $7,301,945, constitutes unassigned fund balance,
tion at the government’s discretion. The remaining fund balance
spendabie form (ie., inventories ‘and prepaid insurance) are



CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

(Continued)

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds (Continued)

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $7,301,945 while total fund balance was
$7,302,798. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity and financial stability, it may be
useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 43% of total General Fund expenditures
and transfers, while fotal fund balance was about the same amount.

A

Total fund balance of the City's General Fund increased by $1 76 during the fiscal year.

Notable items affecting fund balance include the following:
e The Police and Fire Millage generated $4.6 milliorigoilars which funded 59% of Police
and Fire's current year operations. '

= The City changed from fully insured he:
fiscal year which contributed approximate

s+ The City transferred $1.96 million to the Sol
the necessary debt service payments.

o The City general fund transferrec
road project. '

Proprietary Funds. The City has 2 prop eta_rjl__:"f}‘U'nds: i*.w_atér and Sewer Fund and the

Southfield Lease Proper’cte Fund:

Net position of the \Nater and Sewer Fund deéréasecf by approximatety $1,355,000 this year.
The water & sewer fund also pald down $2 4 million of outstanding bonded debt.

The net posﬂu_’qon of the Southﬁe!d Lease Propemes Fund decreased by $1.75 m|li|on this year.

‘essfully_:ftendered the outstandlng bonds related to the Southfieid
nd finished re-financing the issue by June 30" This will
uired debt service.



CITY OF ALLEN PARK MICHIGAN

{Continued)

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

The City of Allen Park's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type
activities as of June 30, 2016 amount to $126,251,608 (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and site improvements, machinery and
equipment, furniture and fixtures, vehicies, and infrastructure.

More detailed information about capital assets can be found in Note 4 to the financial
statements.

Budget

General Fund revenues exceeded the amended budget
were held under budget by $1,191,945.

Current Economic Conditions

the City's taxable property values have seen signifit
the City has worked diligently to cut operating costs a

“ In August 2013, voters approved a property tax millage of 6.75 mills for Police and Fire
Services which replaced the 3.5 mill Public Safety assessment passed the prior year. The
mrliage generated $4,626,643 in 20186,

% The City in Nov ‘@f 2015 was able to tender $16,435,000 (62.4%) of the 2009 A and B
studio bonds. Thé&Fémaining bonds are callable in 2019,

Contacting the City's Management

This financial report is intended to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers and investors with a
general overview of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it
receives. For additional questions about this report or additional information, requests should be
directed to the City Administrator {313} 228-1883 or mailed to 16630 Southfield Road, Alien
Park, Ml 48101,



CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

Statement of Net Posutlo

June 30, 2016
Governmenfa!  Business-Type Component

ASSETS Activities Activities Total Units
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3) $ 9,282,802 § 3404068 ¥ 12386871 § 2,750,795
Receivables:

Taxes (Net) - 691,86§ 691,869 .-

Other Receivables 473,715 26748 < 3,148,682 9,528
Bue from Other Governmental Units 1,552,997 1,552,997 24,388
Bue from Other Funds 63,069 87,656 -
Internal Balances 562,181 - -
inventory - 107,976 -
Prepaid Expenses - 1,708 16,890
tand Contract Recelvable (Current Portion) 358,196 358,186 -

Totail Current Assets 6,379,493 2,801,601
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,171,28 -
Restricted Investments - - 23
Restricted Deposits for Fulure Debt Service Payments 1,001,441 -
Capital Assets not Being Depreciated (Note 4) . 38,645,448 © 111,854 39,657,402 264,103
Capital Assets being Depreciated, Amortized (Note 4) 168,257,540 388,807,131 245,154,671 18,280,803
l.ess Accurnulated Depredation, Amortization (Note 4)- {131,240,870) : 9,695) (158,560,465) {9,743,591)
Land Contract Receivable : 6,499,723 -

Total Noncurrent Assets 138,924,057 8,801,338
Deferred Outflows (Note 1} 6,772,162 v

Total Assets an,d'bie_fe'rred Outflows .

$ 84,198,118 ¢ 79816055 § 164,012,174 § 11,602,939

The notes to financial statements are an infegral part of this statement.
9



CiTY OF ALLEN PARK MICHIGAN

June 30, 2016
Governmental  Business-Type Component

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION Activities Activities Total Units
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities $ 1647924 § 767,730 § 2415654 § 190,284
Accrued Interest Payable 109,540 488,304 597 844 132,011
Due to Other Governmental Units 15,875 - 15,975 -
Due to Other Funds 24,769 - 24,759 -
Unearned Revenue - - - 381
Current Portion of Compensated Absences 162,254 5,336 167,580 2,269
Current Poition of Bonds Payable 175,000 3,227,668 3,402,668 765,000
Current Portion of Long-term Loan Payable 240,000 240,000 -

Total Current Liabilities 2,375,452 8,864,490 1,089,045
Noncurrent Liabilities {Note 7)
Compensated Absences, Net of Current Portion 1,460,985 48,025 -

,508,010

OPEB Payable 34,487 655 3,467,242 -
Net Pension Liability 3,351,749 -
Bonds Payable, Net of Current Portion 52,416,595 200 13,397,478
Long-term Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion - 2,110% -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 91 117,960,113 ; 13,397,478
Deferred Inflows (Note 1) 856,703 -
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 088,876 125,481,306 14,487,423

Net Position (Deficit):
Net Investent in Capital Assets 33,8661668 05,243,380 5,876,315

Reslicted:

Highway Expenditures 1,331,135 -
Law Enforcement 519,875 -
Library Expenditures ) - 178,277 -
Building Fund Expenditures - 762,112 -
Rubbish Fund Expenditures C - 32,521 -
GOLT Debt - 2002 ‘ C - 157,260 157,260 -
Replacement - Basin/Sswer ' - _ - 844,171 844,171 -
Debt Service 174,966 - 174,968 23
Unrestricted (Deficif) (41,671,992} (18,040,920) (80,712,219) {8,760,821)
*Total Net Position {Défici $ 22703508 § 15827479 § 38,530,778 $ (2,884,484)

The notes lo financial staterments are an integral part of this statement.
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MICHIGAN

Government Funds
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2016

Non-Major Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
Assets:
Cagsh and Cash Equivalents $ 6,267,788 $ 3,015,014 $ 9,282,802
Cash-Restricted 266,908 - 266,908
Recelvables; s
Due from Other Govemmental Units 1,100,346 152,661 1,652,997
Other 473,715 - 473,714
Bue from Cther Funds 575,610 625,240
Prepaid Expenditures 855 1,708
Total Asseis 044,130 $ 12,208,370
Liabitities and Fund Balances
Liabilities: g
Accounts Payable % 1,001,032 1,410,060
Accrued Payroll and Other Liabiiities ‘ 18,466 212,489
Due to Other Governmental Units - 15,975
Due to Other Funds 371 24,759
Escrow Funds and Deposits 25,375 25,375
Total Liabilities 1,045,244 1,688,658
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable Revenue - 213,028
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable for Prepaid £xpenditures ) 855 1,708
Restricted for Highway Expanditures - 1,331,135 1,331,135
Restricted for Law Enforcement - - 518,875 510,875
Restricted for Debt Service Expenditures - 174,966 174,966
Restricted for Library Expenditurgs - = , - 177,422 177,422
Restricted for:Blilding Fund Expenditures - 762,112 762,112
' ditures = - 32,521 32,521
7,301,945 - 7,301,945
7,302,798 2,998,886 10,301,684

$ 8,159,240 $ 4,044,130 $ 12,203,369

The notes to financial statements are an infegral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016

Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds $ 10,301,684

Amounts Reported for Government Activities in the Statement

of Net Position are Different Because:

Capital Assets used in Governmental Activities are not
Financial Resources and are not Reported in the Funds.

The Cost of Capital Assets is:
Accumulated Depreciation is:

66,562,118

Defarred Outfiows are not Current Financial Resourcs:

and are not Reported in the Funds. 5,430,631

Revenues not meeting the availability Cr X
Defarred at the Fund Level, but Recorded as Revé

the Full Accrual Statements. 213,028
L.ong-term Obligations are not Due a
Current Period and are not Reported in

(1,623,239

)
P (7,535,406)
OPEB Payable - - o o (34,487,655)
Net Pension Liability ' (15,607,456)
Deferred Inflows e (440,566)
R (59,604,322)
{109,540}
$ 22,703,599

The notes to financial statements are an infegral part of this statement.
13



CITY OF ALLEN PARK

Revenues:

Tax Collections:
Current
Delinguent Tax Chargebacks
FPolice & Fire Millage
Intergovernmental
Federal Grants
Siate-shared Revenue and Grants
District Court
Fees
Interest Income
L.ocal Sources
Other Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenditures:

Current:
General Government
Public Safety

Public Safety - Police and Fire Millage

Public Service

Public Works

Recreation and Culture
Debt Service: L

Principal Retirements

interest

Total Expenditures

ancing Sources ;
d Transfers In (Nc;?‘

Fund Balances - June 30, 2016

MICHIGAN

Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Non-Major Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
3 7,454,844 $ 4,191,052 $ 11,645,806
33,400 3 4,006 37.406
4,626,643 - 4,626,643
13,803 701,037
3,266,857 5,856,840
1,935,263
3,494 222
56,861
731,488
768,792
=
8,226,605 28,854,448
1,382,125 7,408,516
113,681 5,323,465
- 4 626,643
5,285,356 6,611,781
1,723,205 1,723,205
- 1,094,495
- 175,000 175,000
- 252,112 252,112
18,283,738 8,931,479 27,215,217
3,344,106 (704,874) 2,639,231
201,847 1,000,000 1,201,847
(2,461,176) (500,000) (2,961,176)
(2,259,329) 500,000 {1,759,329)
1,084,776 (204,874) 879,902
6,218,022 3,203,760 9,421,782
$ 7,302,798 $ 2,998,886 $ 10,301,684

The nofes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PARK, MICHIGAN

Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance of
Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 879,902

Amounis Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of
Activities are Different Because:

Governmental Funds Report Capital Outlays as Expenditures; in the
Statement of Activities these Costs are Allocated over their Estima

Useful Lives as Depreciation:

(4,098,875)

Depreciation Expense
4,523,708

Capital Outlay

Revenue is recorded in the statement of activities whe
not reported in the Funds until Coliected or Collectib ‘

yaears. 196,503
Repayment of Bond Principal is an Expendiiuf
Funds; But Not in the Statement of Activities (W
Term Debt)
Principal Payments on Bonds and Note Payablé 425,000
Change in Accrued Interest Pay 5,127
Decreases in Accumulated EmployediSi ] | ‘Vacation Pay .eported
in the Statement of Activiies do no teqwre : soury
resources and therefore are. not reported in the Fund Statements until
they come due for payment (102,248)
increases in Net OPER Obligations Reported in the Statement of
Activities do not reqwre the use of current resources and therefore are
nti y come due for payment. {1,907,774)
(4,114,634)
893,530
v 1,185,775
Liability -
s Liabilities Obligations Reported in the
; “riot require the use of current resources and
therefore are not in the Fund Statements until they come Due
for Payment. B (2,329
Change in Net Position of Governmenial Activities ${2,117,008)

The notes fo financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

Proprleary Funds
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016

Enterprise Funds

Water and Sewer Southfield Lease
Fund Properties Fund Total
Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents % 2,096,606 % 1,007,463 $ 3,104,069
Receivables from Sales to Customers on Account . 2,674,967 - 2,674,067
Tax Rolk:
Current 591,869 ﬁ;ﬁ - 691,869
Due from Other Funds 4,597 : ¢ 4,697
Inventory 107,976 107,876
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assels - -
Land Contract Receivable Current Portion - 358,196
Total Current Assets 5,676,015 6,941,674
Non-Current Assets:
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,904,377
Restricted Deposits for Future Debt Payments 1,001,441
Land Contract Receivable 6,498,723
Capital Assets 87,009,085
Less Accumulated Depreciation (27,310,595}
Total Non-current Assets 9,348,419 72,695,034
Total Assets 10,714,078 79,036,705
Deferred Qutflow of Resources
Pension - 1,341,531
Total Deferred Gutfiows - 1,341,531
Liabitities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable - % 748,838
Accrued Payroll - 20,895
Accrueed Interest Payable 358,387 488,304
Compensated Absences Payab S - 5,336
Bue fo Other Funds SRR : . 562,181 - 562,181
Current Portion of B{)nds'P_ayable SRF © 530,000 - 530,000
Current Portion of General Obligations Payable 330,922 350,000 680,922
Current Poriion of Judgment Bonds Payable - 2,016,746 - 2,018,746
Total Current Liabilities ' L 4,342,832 708,387 5,051,219
ities: !
séncesPayable -ii- 48,028 - 48,025
T C 3,351,749 . 3,351,749
9,680,881 - 9,680,881
2,969,880 28,470,000 31,430,880
gnds Payable : 11,205,834 - 11,205,834
nployment Benefits 3,467,242 - 3,487,242
30,813,611 286,470,000 59,283,611
35,156,443 29,178,387 64,334,830
Deferred Inflow of
Pension 216,227 - 216,227
Total Deferred Infi 216,227 - 216,227
Net Position: :
Net Investment In Capital Assets 33,866,668 - 33,866,668
Restricted for:

Reserve for 200z GOLT Debt 157,260 - 157,260
Reserve for Replacement - Sewer/Basin 844,171 - 844,171
Unrestricted (576.611) (18,464,309) (19,040,920)

Total Net Position $ 34,201,488 $ (18,464,309) $ 15,827,179

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statermnent.
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CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN -

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Revenue, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position
June 30, 2016

Southfield
Lease Total
Water and Properties Proprietary
Sewer Fund Fund Funds
Operating Revenues
Water Sales $ 3,844,655 - $ 3,644,655
Sewage Disposal Serwces 4,150,854 4,150,854
Rental Income ’ -
Penalties 326,352
Miscellaneous ‘ 67,907
Total Operating Revenues 8,189,768
Operating Expenses
Operating Costs 6,596,646
Personal Services 1,245,624
Utilities 91,311
Repairs and Maintenance 2,019,887
Supplies and Other Expenses 73,997
Depreciation & Amortization 1,849,632
Total Operating Expenses 41,877 11,876,897
Operating Income {Loss) (41,877} (3.687,129)
Non-Operating Revenue (Expense)
Investment Income i 216,577 242,868
Interest Expense 2 (535 698) (1,960,732} (2,496,430)
Bond Issuance expenses S - {1,932,996) (1,832,998}
Transfer from General Fund — - 1,961,176 1,961,176
Grant Proceeds . : 635,088 - 635,088
Consent Judgment - Sewers (194,607) - {194,607}
EPA Judgement Tax Revenue 1,666,320 - 1,566,320
District Tax:_LevyuSewers 792,447 - 792,447
¢ (Expense) 2,289,841 {1,715,975) 573,866
(1,355,411) (1.757,852) (3,113,263)
35,646,809 (18,706,457) 18,940,442
$ 34,201,488 § (18,464,309} § 15,827,179

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

Prpneta unds
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Southfield Total
Water and Lease Proprietary
Sewer Fund Properties Funds
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers $ 7,380,466 3 - % 7,389,466
Payments o Employees (576,666) - {576,866}
Payments to Suppliers (8,077,8186) (102,156) (8,179,972)
Miscellaneous Receipts 67,907 - 67,807
Net Cash Used in Operafing Activities {1.197,309) {102,156) (1,299,465)

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:

Consent Judgrment Monies Paid - (194,607)
Payments Made from Other Funds 1,861,176 1,961,176
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Noncapital Activities 1,961,176 1,766,569
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activitles:
Principal and Interest Paid on Bonds {3,001,041)
Purchase of Fixed Assets {2,360,337}
Bond lssuance Expenses {1,932,996)
Receipts for Land Contract - 347,622
Proceeds from EPA Judgment Tax Revenue 1,566,320 1,566,320
Proceeds from District § Tax Levy 792, 792,447
Net Grant Proceeds 3 635,088
Change in Deposit for Fulure Debt Payments - 2,815
Net Change in Restricted Assets (705,165) (310,710}
Nel Cash Used in Capital and Related Finanging Activities (4,185,708} (4,260,792)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities -
investment Interest 216,576 242 867
Net Cash Provided from Investing Activities 216,576 242,867
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 70 (2,410,112) (3.550,821)
Cash and Cash Equivalents"?—' uly 1, 20 3,637,315 3,117,575 6,654,890
Cash and Cash Equivalents - June 30, 2016 ' $ 2006606 § 1,007,463 § 3104089

Reconclliation of Operating Income (qus_i'tb Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Operatin mea(Loss} $ (3,645252) % 41,877y &  (3,687,129)

1,849,632 - 1,849,632

557,584 - 557,584

(857,942) - {857,942}

Tax Roll 125,547 - 125,547
Inventory 13,392 - 13,392
Prepaid Assets i.914 - 1,914
Accounts Payable : 89,058 (60,279) 28,779
Accrued Payroll 3,500 - 3,500
Compensated Absences Payable 4,728 - 4,728
Change in QPFR Liability 259,584 - 259,584
Net Pension Liability 400,946 - 400,946
Total Adjustments 2,447,843 (60,279) 2,387,664

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ (1,197,309 § {(102,158) & (1,299,465)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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, MICHIGAN

CITY OF ALLEN PARK

" Fidirciary Funds
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016
Tax
Pension Retiree Cotlection Trust and
Trust Healthcare Fund Agency
ASSETS: :

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1158270 § - 8 84,861 $ 293,359
Accrued Interest and Dividends 148,050 100 - -

Due from Other Funds -
Investrnents - Fair Value:

LS. Government Obligations 8,316,853 -
Domestic Stocks 24,713,796 -
Other Equity 3,042,506 -
Bonds 7,068,622 -
Mutual Funds 36,414 357 -

Total Investments

Total Assets 293,359
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 6,680
Due to Other Funds -
Payable to Other Govermental Agencies -
Trustee Llability : . 286,679
Total Liabilities 793,359
Net Position: v .
Held in Trust for Pension Benefits 84,762,254 518,101 - -
' ' 81,762,254 518,101 - -
$ 81762264 % 518,101 $ 85232 % 293,359

The notes fo financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
19



CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

5

Statement of Changes in Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Pension Retiree
Trust Healthcare
Additions:
Contribufions: Employer
Police and Fire $ 1,463,594 $ -
General 291,344 500,000
Building 69,558 -

Water & Basin
24th District Court

500,000

Total Employer
Plan Members -
Total Contributions 500,000
Investiment Income:
Net Appreciation (Depreciation) in Fair Value :
of Investments (3,629,546) -
Interest and Dividends 1,823,667 2,703
Miscellaneous 9,216 -
Gain on Sale of Investments 1,474,747 16,301
Gain on Noncash Transactions {43,068} -
Total Investment Income (Loss) (364,984) 19,004
Less: Investment Expenses:
Actuarial Services
Agency Fee 166,247 903
Miscellaneous , 31,243 -
Total Investment Expenses -0 o 197,490 903
Net Investment Income (Loss), = . o (562,474) 18,101
Total Additions (Deletions) o 2,663,695 518,101
Ded_ucti: s
6,873,202 -
6,873,202 -
(4,209,507) 518,101
85,971,761 -

Net Position - Endi $ 81,762,264 $ 518,101

The notes to financial statements are an infegral part of this statement.
20



CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalenis
Receivables

Due from Primary Government
Prepaid Expenses

Capital Assets - Net
Investments - Restricted

Total Assets

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Interest Payable

Tenants Security Deposits

Payrolt and Other Tax Liabliites

Unearned Revenue

Current Portion of Bonds Payable

Current Portion of Compensated Absences
Bonds Payable, Net of Current Portion

Total Liabilities

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for;

Debt Service

Unrestricted

Total Met Position (Deficit)

Compo

nent Umt

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016

Downtown Brownfield Total
Development Building Housing Redevelopment Component
Authority Authority Commission Authority Units
§ 743472 % 120 % 239445 3§ 1,767,748 % 2,750,795
- - 8,528 - 9,528
24,388 - - - 24,388
- - 16,890 - 16,890
5,851,213 932,690 1917412 - 8,801,315
- 23 Z - 23
6,719,073 932,842 11,602,939
41,023 164,788
40,756 132,011
. 18,146
2,217 7,350
- 381
265,000 765,000
- 2,269
2,660,000 13,397,478
3,008,986 14,487,423
5,876,315
- 23
(9,548,506) {8,760,822)
§  (9,548,508) (2,854,484

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

June 30, 2016

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the City of Allen Park, Michigan (the City) conform fo
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as
applicable to government units. The following is a summary of the significant accounting
policies used by the City of Allen Park:

A. Reporting Entity

) of the State of Michigan and
h it is currently under the

The City of Allen Park was incorporated under the la
is governed by an elected seven- member Councﬂ

accompanying financial statements prese
The discretely presented component unit

€ rate legal entities that meet the
component unit criteria des 1ot meet the criteria for blending.

The City's discretely presen

y.Act, was created in par‘t to correct and prevent

deterioration of business.districts; to promote economic growth and revitalization; to
encourage historic preservation; to authorize the acquisition and disposal of interests
in real and personal property; to authorize the creation of the authority; to authorize

- "the 1evy and col!ectfon of taxes the i issuance of bonds and the use of tax mcrement

vate developments in the downtown districts of Michigan
s to accomplish this goal by providing communities with the
d onetary and organizational tools to revitalize downtown districts
5 public-initiated projects or in concert with privately motivated
developmentv‘projects. The manner in which downtown development authorities
chose to make use of these tools does, of course, depend on the problems and
opportunities facing each particular downtown district and the development priorities
soughi by the comriuiity in the revitaiization of its business area.
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CITY@F ALLEN E’ARK, MICHEGAR

NttotheFmancnaIStatements(Contmued)
June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
A. Reporting Entity (Continued)
Allen Park Building Authority

The Allen Park Building Authority has constructed and funded, by use of bonding,
the 24" District Court Building. The Allen Park Building Authority was not audited
as it had no activity in 2016 other than depreciation.

Allen Park Housing Commission

The Alien Park Housing Commission was fo ;to_& develop senior citizens

in Allen Park Michigan. The complex is fu
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) a

Brownfield Redeveiopment Aulj‘thi)ritv

The Brownﬂeld Redevelopment Authonty was created, pursuant to Public Act 381 of
1996, to promote revitalization of environmentally distressed areas within the City.
The Brownfield Redevelopment Authority is funded primarily by property tax
revenue captures. The Brownfield Redevelopment Authority is governed by a
seven- -member board that is appomted by the mayor and confirmed by the City

btained from the above discretely presenied component units
nnual financial statements.

e and Fund Financial Statements

e financial statements (i.e. the statement of net position and the
Sivities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the
ment and its component units. For the most part, the effect of inter-

\z&ﬁﬁas been removed from these statements. Governmental activities,
normally Supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities which rely to a significant extent on fees
and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately
from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financiaily accountable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements ( ontmued)
June 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of
a given function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are
those that are clearly identifiable with a specific functlon or segment. Program
revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applic nt‘s; who purchase use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
segment and (2) grants and contnbu’nons tha

restrroted to meeting the
jon or segment. Taxes and

other items not properly included among progral
general revenue.

Separate financial statements are
funds and fiduciary funds, even thouy

enterprise funds are reported as separ he fund financial statements.
g and Financial Statement

Measurement Focus,
Presentation

re Teported using the economic
resources measUrement focus and thé’ fiial basis of accounting, as are the
proprietary fund: ; ents. Revenue is recorded when
earned and"expenses ‘are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year
for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all sligibility requrrements imposed by the provider have been met.

.;_.Governmental fund fmancral statements are reported using the current finanoral

recorded orﬂy when payment is due.

The financial transactions of the City are reported in individual funds in the fund
financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity,
revenues and expenditures/expenses.
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ents( Ce
June 30 2016

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement
Presentation (Continued)

The various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial
statements. The following fund types are used by the City;

Governmental Funds:

The focus of the governmental funds' measurer;
determination of financial position and chang

und statements} is upon
posmon (sources uses,

r the proceeds of specific revenue
es for specified purposes.

The focus of proprietary funds measurement is upon determination of operating
income, changes in nét assets, financial position, and cash flows.

he)___C1tys pollcy for deﬂn:ng operatmg actlwtles as reported on the statement of

fements that the cost of providing services, including capital costs,
. ith fees and charges, rentals or (c) establishes fees and charges,
rentals based on a pricing policy designed to recover similar costs.
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CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

June 30, 20116

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement
Presentation (Continued)

Fiduciary Funds:

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a truste“é or agency capacity for
others and therefore are not available to support Clt f%‘égrams The reporting focus
is on net position and changes in net position gported using accounting
principles similar to proprietary funds.

The emphasis in fund financial state
governmental or business-type ac’uwh ‘
are summar[zed into a single colum

atégorles Non-major
B Statement No. 34

community focus. The non-major
ial statements.

and sewer serwces to th the pubhc

L2 Southfle!d Lease Properties Fund - Accounts for activities associated with

ay Fund - Accounts for the revenues and expenditures related to
nce of major streets located in the City limits.

2. Local Highway Fund - Accounts for the revenues and expenditures related to
the maintenance of the local streets located in the City limits.
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June 30, 2016

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement
Presentation (Continued)

Special Revenue Funds: (Continued)

3. Building Fund - Accounts for the revenues_ and ex %itures refated to building
inspections throughout the City. :

4. Drug Law Enforcement Fund - Accounts

venue and expenditures for
maintaining and enforcing laws related to dr C i

5. Library Fund - Accounts for th
operation of the City's library.

6. Rubbish Fund - Accounts for
rubbish collection.

Debt Service Fund

1. Community Center Debt Fund
bonds issued for the constriiction of 2

The City reports "the?fbj.lpwing Flductary Funds:
1. Pension Trust Fund - Accoun't_s__ for the activities of the Cily's employee
retirernent system, this accumulates resources for pension, benefit payments to

~quaiified employees.

2. -Tax=-'C_};q::I_=I:§ction Fund - Accounts for the collection and distribution of real and
personal property taxes fevied during the fiscal year.

- This fund accounts for assets held by the City in a

Trust and |

gency Fu d
care Fund - Accounis for the activities of City's Healthcare

As a genéral rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges
hetween the government's water and sewer fund and various other functions of
government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.
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1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement
Presentation (Continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from non-operating
items. Operating revenue and expenses generally result from providing services in
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoin &@peratlons The principal
operating revenue of the City's proprietary fund relatesde ¢harges to customers for
sales and services. The water and sewer fund alsogretognizes the portion of tap

f sales and services,
1S AIE revenue and

expenses not meeting thrs definition ¢
expenses, -

Assets, Deferred Outfiows of
Resources and Net Position

and GASB *Statement No 40 "Depés/t and Investment Risk Disclosures”. Under
these standards, certain investments are stated at fair value based on quoted
market prices; other investments are stated at cost or amortized cost, except for

investments in the pension trust fund, which are reported at fair value.

;Recelvab!es and Payables - In general, outstanding balances between funds are

"due to/dge from other funds". Activity between funds that is
ding Qorrowmg arrangements outstandmg at the end of the

nd December 1st on the taxable valuation of the City as of the
prece mber 31st. Taxes are considered delinquent on March 1st of the
following ye ??‘*ar at which time penaities and interest are assessed. The City Charter
limits the ad vaiorem tax rate for operating purposes to 12.5 mills of valuation. The
ad valorem rate during the year was 10.5985 mills. Additional millage levied
included 2.5436 mills for rubbish, 0.8479 mills for library, 1.0589 mills for sewage,
6.75 additional mills for police and fire, 0.588 mills for Community Center, 2.0929
mills for Court Judgment levy, and 1.9015 for local streets.
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“Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2016

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Infiows of
Resources and Net Position (Continued)

Inventories and Prepaid Items - Inventories are valued at cost, on a first-in, first-out
basis. Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed
rather than when purchased. Certain payments to vendors {eﬂect costs applicable fo
future fiscal years and are recorded as prepaid items in botia evernment-WJde and fund
financial statements. '

constructed. Donated capital assets are |
date of donation,

ts of business-type activities is
onstructed. During the current

Interest incurred during the co
included as part of the capitalize

Property, plani,= equi nt are depremated usmg the straight-line method over the

following useful fives:

Buildings 40 years
Building and Site Improvements 20-30 years
Water and Sewer Lines 40-80 years

“Roads ‘and Other Infrastructures 40 years
' 5-10 years
5-20 years

judgment bonds of the water and sewer fund require amounts
ruction, debt service, operations and maintenance, and a bond
have been classified as restricted assets, as well as amounts
on depos: unty being held for the construction or debt service of the City of
Alien Park's Wat, and sewer lines. Total restricted assets, held at the County for future
debt payments, selated to the County sewage disposal system bonds fotal $2,055,681 at
June 30, 2016. In addition, restricted assets of $1,001,441 have been recorded relating

n\ar—

to genei'al obliyation debt ($157,269) and for fuiure replacements {$644,171).

Restricied assets in Southfield lease properties fund represents unspent bond proceeds
of $2,848,696.
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CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

June 3¢, 2016

1} SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of

Resources and Net Position (Continued)

Deferred Qutflows of Resources — In addition to assefs, the balance sheet will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so W)%inot be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. /),g;l.’iﬁ’ *Clty had $5,430,631 as

iities and $1,341,531 in the
d outflows related to the
al X mvestment earnnngs

deferred outflows of resources in the Governmental
Business Type Activities as of June 30, 2016. The:
pensions for the difference belween pro;ectedf“
differences between projected and actual experigi

ignations and retirements.

financaa! statements and the
ng-term debt and other long-

the, app vable governmental activities,
ent of net position.

term obligations are reported as liabilitie
business-type actmtieS’--or proprie ryrfund P

s are deferred and amortlzed over the life of the bonds
using the straight-line metf Bond issuance costs, previously reported as deferred
charges and amortized over:the term of the relaied debt are now expensed at the time of
issuance under the provisions of GASB 65. In the fund financial statements,
governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts as other financing
sources (uses) Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
urces while: dlscounts reported as other financing uses. lssuance costs are

Bond premsums and discot

ciary net position. For purposes of measuring the net pension
S ufflows of resources and deferred infiows of resources related to
pensions, ar on expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
pension plan and additions to/deductions from the pension plan's fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the pension plan. For
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized whan duc and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments
are reported at fair value.

liability, ¢
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June 30, 2016
1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Net Position {Continued)

Other Postemployment Benefit Costs - The City offers healthcare benefits to retirees.
The City receives an actuarial valuation to compute the annual required contribution
(ARC) necessary fo fund the obligation over the remaining amortization period. In the
governmental funds, OPEB costs are recognized as contribgtions are made. For the
governmental-wide statements and proprietary funds, the 37 reports the full accrual
cost equal fo the current year required contribution, ad] or interest and “adjustment
to the ARC" on the beginning of year underpaid amo

Deferred Inflows of Resources — In additio e balance sheet will
sometimes report a separate section for deferr ces. This separate
financial statement element, deferred inflo an acquisition of

as an inflow
unavailable
rom grants

net position that applies to a future peri
of resources (revenue) until that timets,

period that the amounts becom available. At J 0, 20186, the City had $440,566 as

n the. Governme al Activities and $216,227 in the
Business Type Activities representrn -dif irhetween projected and actual
experience of the pension plan. The City's: ernme al funds showed $213,028 in
deferred inflows related to revenues: not meetlng aliablilty criteria.

Net Position - th, the Clty incurs a expense for whiich it may use either restricted or
unrestricted net position, it uses restncted net position first unless unrestricted net
position will have to be returned because they were not used. Net position includes the
following:

e Net Investment in Capital Assets - The component of net position that reports
the difference between capital assets less both the accumulated deprematfon
and the outstanding balance of debt, excluding unspent proceeds, that is directly
aftributable .to the ,agquisstron construction, or improvement of those capital
assets.

ets - Certain proceeds of the enterprise fund revenues are set
es of funding the replacement of water and sewer mains.

sRestricted

The difference between the assefs and liabilities that is not

Fund Balance — GASB issued Siatement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund-type Definitions. The objective of this statement is fo enhance the
usefulness of fund balance information by providing ciearer jund balance classifications
that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund-
type definitions. This statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a
hierarchy based primarily on the exient to which a government is bound {o observe
constraints imposed on the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.
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June 30, 2016

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Net Position {Continued)

Fund Balance (Continued)

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report
fund balance:

e Non-spendable — amounts that are not in s e form or are legally or

contractually required to be maintained intact.

e Restricted — amounts that are legally re
provisions or enabling legislation for use fo

e  Committed — Amounts that have be
for specific purposes. Commitmentsia
resolution of the City Council. '

]

that has notbeen assugn d to otherfunds and has not been restricted, committed, or
assigned to"specmc purposes in the General Fund. In other governmentat funds, only
negative unassigned amounts are reported, if any, and represent expenditures
incurred for specific  purposes exceeding the amounts previously restricted,
co ztted or assigned to those purposes.

f Est:m tes - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
ciples generally accepted in the United States of America requires
‘make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
d discleure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
nd the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
suld differ from those estimates.

2) STEWARDé ANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Informati
The City prepares its annual budget on a basis consistent with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Annual appropriaied budgets are

adopted for the general and special revenue funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal
yearend.
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June 30, 2016

2) STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

All agencies of the government submit their requests for appropriation to the City
Administrator so that a budget may be prepared. The budget is prepared by fund, function,
and department, and includes information on the past year, current year estimates, and
requested appropriations for the next fiscal year.

The proposed budget is presented to the City's Council for review. The Council holds public
hearings and may add to, subtract from, or change appropriationsibut may not change the
form of the budget. The government's department heaef may make transfers of
appropnatlons within a department. Transfers of app ions between departments
require the approvat of council. '

t res may not legally
supplementary

€4t which ex;;e:
During the ™

The legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the lev
exceed appropriations) is the department
appropriations were necessary.

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriatio

2018, expe exceeded appropriations in the

For the fiscal year ended June 30
following general fund accounts:

~ Amount By Which
Expenditures

Exceed
| Appropriations
City Hall | $ 10,429
Public Service 48,726

Fund Deficit -- The Southfield Lease Properties Fund has a net deficit of $18,464,309. This
fund received a $71, 961 176 operating transfer from the general fund to subsidize operations.

make deposits and invest in the accounts of federally insured
savings and loan associations that have offices in Michigan. The
local umt is allo “finvest in bonds, securities, and other direct obligations of the United
States or any agency or instrumentality of the United States; repurchase agreements;
bankers' acceptances of United States banks; commercial paper rated within the two highest
classifications, which matures not more than 270 days after the date of purchase,
obligations of the State of Michigan or iis polifical subdivisions, which are rated as
investment grade; and mutual funds composed of investment vehicles that are legal for
direct investment by local units of government in Michigan.
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(Continu -
June 30, 2016

3) DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The City's cash and investmentis are deposited and invested in accordance with its
investment policy, which is in accordance with Michigan Public Act 20 of the Public Acts of
1943, as amended.

The City's cash and investments are subject to several types of risk, which are examined in
more detail below:

Custodial Credit Risk of Bank Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank faj

he City's deposits may not
be retumed to it. The City minimizes custodial credit risk ] )

its by assessing the credit

£ S
with each mstltutlon is assessed to determine the, veT‘ of risk it nay pose to the City in
¢ performed by the
=of deposits was
it Insurance

City at least annually. As of June 30, 2016
$19,482,5647. Of those amounts, $730,499 v

The carrying amount of deposits for the City's “presented component units was
$2,021,575 and of those amounts i red and uncollateralized.

interest Risk

year, 56.2% mature; m one to
mature in eleven to fifteen yea

Credit Risk

e years and:-36 4% matufé in snx to ten years and 5.2%

State law limits invesiments in commercial paper to the top two ratings by nationally
recogmzed statistical rating organizations. As of year- end, the credit quality ratings of debt
secyrities are as follows

Investhierits ol Fair Value Rating Rating Organization
Market " 8 1,158,270 N/A N/A

sh Eguivalents - M

Treasury Bonds 8,316,653 AAA Moodys

' 784,742 A1 Moodys

456,196 A2 Moodys

1,023,086 A3 Moodys

209,259 AAT Moodys

323,096 AAZ2 Moodys

256,782 AA3 Moodys

Corporate Bonds 427,909 AAA Moodys

Corporate Bonds 1,434,642 BAA 1 Moodys

Corporate Bonds 4,349,944 BAA 2 Moodys

Corporate Bonds 802,966 BAA 3 Moodys
Commaon Stocks 24,713,786 MNIA N/A
Other Equity 3,942,506 NIA N/A
Mutual Funds 36,414,357 MNIA N/A

§ 81,614,204
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(niu
June 30, 2016

3) DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements: The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value

hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The

hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical

assels or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs {level 3

measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

Level 1: inputs fo the valuation methodology are unad] t"éﬁ%ﬁoted prices for identical
assels or liabilities in active markets that the Ci he abllity to access.

Levei 2: Inputs to the valuation methodology include;

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in act]

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets o es in inactive markets

Inputs other than quoted prices that is observable ts or liabilities;

Inputs that are derived principally

d by observable market data by
correlation or other means. :

m, the Ley

If the asset or liability has a specified qu'ntractliél)iiér
for substantially the full term of the asset'orliability.

Level 3: Inputs 16 "the valuiation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair

valug‘measurement. ¢
The asset or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on
the lowest Jevel of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement, Valuation
techniques used.need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
servable inputs. '

The City's P
issuer except

St ‘und places no limit on the amount the City may invest in any one
hishall not exceed 10% of the total assets of the retirement system.

Foreign Currency

The City's Pension Trust Fund did nct have investments in any foreign bonds as of June 30,
2016.
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CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

Notes " Stateents (Contmued

June 30, 2016
4) CAPITAL. ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the City for the current year was as follows:
Balance Additions Disposals Balance
Governmental Activities: June 30, 2015 2015-16 2015-16 June 30, 2016
Capital Assets not being Depreciated:

Land § 30,545,448 5 -~ § 39,545,448
Subtotal 39,545,448 - 39,545,448

Capiial Assets being Depraciated:

Buildings and Site 14,658,621 2 5,066 14,928,687
Land Improvements - 138,390 2,085,041
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 262,768 6,802,248
Vehicles 133,153 4,008,616
Irfrastructure 3,718,329 130,433,048

Subtotal 706 (135,28 158,257,540

Total Governmental Activities (135,289} 197,802,988

Less; Accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and Site - 9,034,431
Land Improvemenis - 1,500,143
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment - 5,701,708
Vehicles (135,289) 3.007,368
infrastructure ] - 111,987,220
Subtotal 4,008:875 (135,289) 131,240,870

Net Capital Assets beir d - 26,501,839 424,831 - 27,016,670
Net Capital Assets - $ 66,137,267 $ 424831 S - § £6,562,118

$ 137,220
311,618
3,343,036
307,001

$ 4,008,875
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CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contmued
June 30, 2016

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Balance Additions Disposals Balance
Water & Sewer Fund: June 30, 2015 2015-16 2015-16 June 30, 2016
Business-Type Activities
Capilal Assets not being Depreciated:
Land $ 60,000 $ - $ - $ 60,000
Construction in Progress - 51,854 - 51,854
Subtotal 60,000 111,854
Capital Assets being Depreciated:
Buildings 2,367,857 2,367,857
infrastructure 77,971,299 80,052,989
Meters 2,283,187 2,283,197
Machinery and Equipment 1,968,385 2,193,088
Subtotal 84,688,748 86,897,131
Total Water & Sewer 87,009,085
Less: Accumulated Depreciation for;
Buildings 1,668,854
Infrastruciure 21,817,684
Meters 1,978,267 2,083,655
Machinery and Equipment 1,688,768 1,749,602
Subtotal 27,319,695
Net Gapital Assets being Depreciated 59,577,536
Net Capital Assets 59,688,490
: Bal Transfers Balance
Downtown Development Authority: June 30:2015 2015-16 June 30, 2016
Business-Type Activities
Capital Assels not being Depreciated: 7.
Land S 5 84,293 § - % - § 84,293
Consfruction in Progress SRR 605,792 4,836 (610,728) -
Subtotal . 690,085 4,936 (610,728) 84,293
ital Assets being Depféq’ ted:
gs S 386,721 . - 386,721
provements 11,732,103 66,245 610,728 12,400,076
17,816 - - 17,816
12,136,840 66,245 610,728 12,813,613
12,826,725 71,181 - 12,897,806
Less: Accumutated B
Buildings 138,112 9,668 - 147,780
Site Improvements : 6,318,441 452,656 - 6,781,097
Furhiture and Equipment 17,816 - - 17.816
Subtotal 8,474,389 472,324 - 6,046,603
et Capiial Assets being Depreciated 5,662,271 {401,143, 5,261,128
Net Capital Assefs $ 6352356 § (401,143) § - % 5,056,149

38



CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

4)

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2016
CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
Capital Asset activity for Component Units was as follows:
Balance Additions Disposals Balance
Allen Park Building Authority: June 30, 2015 2015-16 201516 June 30, 2016
Business-Type Activifies
Capital Assets not being Depreciated:
Land 3 100,000 8§ - % - 3 100,000
Subtotal 100,000 i 100,000
Capltal Assets being Depreciated:
Buildings 2,029,861 2,020,861
Furniture and Equipment 170,029 170,029
Subtotal 2,199,890 2,199,800
Total Building Authority | 2,290,800 2,209,890
Less: Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 1,197,171
Furniture and Equipment 170,029
Subtotal 1,367,200
et Capital Assets being Depreciated 832,690
Net Capital Assets 932,690
Disposals Balance

Allen Park Housing Comiitgsion: . 2015-16 June 30, 2016

Capitai Assets not beiqg:'Qeiirecialed:

Land 05 $ - b -8 68,050
Construction in progress 293,845 645,070 (927,155) 11,760
Subtotal ) 361,895 645,070 (927,155) 79.810

Capital Assets being Depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements 1,797,340 1,325,344 - 3,122,684
Furniture, Equipment and

achinery-dwalling 116,500 - - 115,509

29,107 - - 28,107

1,941 956 1,325,344 - 3,267,300

2,303,851 1,870,414 (927,155) 3,347,110

Buildings and Impi 1,217,601 76,322 - 1,293,923
Furniture, Equipmentignd

machinery-tdwelling 104,208 3,748 - 107,956
Furniture, Equipment and

machinery- administration 26,814 1,005 - 27,819

Subtotai 1,348,623 81,05 - 1,429,698

Net Capital Assets being Depreciated 583,333 1,244,269 - 1,837,602

Net Capital Assets $ 055228 § 1,880,330 §$  (927155) § 1,917.412

39



CiTY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

June 30, 2016
5) INTER-FUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS
The composition of inter-fund balances is as follows:
Fund Due To Fund Due From Amount
General Fund Tax Fund Py % 49,630
Building Fund Water & Sewer Fun 562,181
Library Fund Tax Fund 3,341
Rubbish Fund Tax Fund 7,855
Community Center Debt Service Fund Tax Fund 2,233
Water and Sewer Fund Tax Fund£ 4,597
Tax Collection Fund Local Street Fund 371
G $ 630,208
Fund Due To “Amount
%z
Due tolfrom Primary Government and Compon
General Fund 24,388
24,388
The composition of i_htérfund transfers is as follows:
Fund Transferred in - Fund Transferred Out Amount
Local Highway Fund Major Highway Fund $ 500,000
Geperal .Fund _ DDA 201,847
Genaral Fund 1,961,176
General Fund 500,000
$ 3,163,023

ajor Highway Fund to the Local Highway Fund was to finance local
"compliance with the requirements of Public Act 51, The transfer
from the GeneraliE to the Southfield Lease Property Fund was to help subsidize

required debt se%i%c?payments. The transfer from the DDA to the General Fund was for the
police and fire millage.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Contmued)
June 30, 2016

6) LAND CONTRACT RECEIVABLE

On August 22, 2014, the City soid the property at 16630 Southfield Road, reported in the
Southfield Lease Property Fund. The Building was sold for $12 million, with $8.4 million to
be paid to the City through a land contract. The land contract carries an interest rate of 3%
and calls for 8% monthly payments of $46,586 with a final balloon payment of $5,853,160
due in February 2022. The balance on the land contract at June 30, 2016 was $6,857,619.

i

7) LONG-TERM DEBT

general obligation bonds have been issued to
bonds. General obligations bonds are direct ob

equal amounis of principal mat
finance an amount fo be paid or ¢

72016 was as follows:

Balance Due Within
Reductions June 30, 2016 One Year

Governmental Actlvities

Loan Payabls - State of Michigan o % 2,600,000 $ - 8 250000 & 2350000 § @ 240,000
General Obligation Bonds . . 5,400,000 . 175,000 £,225,000 175,000
Bond Discount o Lo (41,823) - (2,329) (39.594) (2,329)
Other Post Employment Benelit Obligation ’ 22.579,681 1,907.774 - 34,487 655 -
Accumulated Compensated Absences 1,520,281 102,248 - 1,623,239 162,254
Pesnsion Payable 11,492,822 4,114.634 - 15.607.458 -

“

$  B35861.071 § 6125356 8 422671 89,253,756 B 574,925

Total Govemmentaf A

pe Actlvntues 8

Obtigation Bonds $ 22460,000 $ 26685000 % 268680,000 § 32,335,000 $ 685000
13,518,160 1,844,608 2,051,188 13,312,580 2,016,745

10,265,988 479,883 535,000 10,210,881 630,000

(72.507) - {58.309) (14.158) (4,078)

56,172,641 28,879,501 29,507 879 55,644,263 3,227 668

3,207,658 259,584 - 3,467,242 -

48,632 4,728 - 53,361 5,336

2,444,648 807,101 - 3,351,749 -

pe Activities $ 61,873,580 § 30,160,914 § 20507870 § 625166156 § 3,233,004

During the year, the City refunded a portion of the 2009A and 2009B bonds related to
Southfield Properties and issued 2015A and 20158 bonds with a view to achieving long
term savings in interest loss.
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Notes to the Financia! Statements (Contmued)
June 30, 2016

7) LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above obligations are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2017 $ 415,000 3 295713 % 710,713 3 2,818,222 % 6,049,958
2018 445,000 282,427 727,427 2,385,937 5,682,688
2018 450,000 268,334 718,334 2,295,021 5,137,381
2020 455,000 253 976 708,976 2,200,725 4,669,420
2024 485,000 238,861 723,861 2,121,775 4,483,842
2022-2028 2,400,000 540,565 3,340,566 537,538 19,413,022
2027-2G31 1,660,000 530,744 2,180,744 1,11%,6563% 18,670,201
2032-2G36 1,275,000 95,125 1,373,125 8,690,708 13,694,515
2037-2041 - - 7,110,000 9,733,850
2042-45 - - 4, 870.000 5,598,851
$ 7,575,000 % 2808745 $ 55,658,461 92,834,635
Interest Principal
Rafe Balance Due Within
Ranges Reductions June 30, 2016 One Year
Component Units
Downtown Developrment Authority
Bonds Payable 3.8%
Genera! Obligation Bonds 4.4% $ 250,000 § 2825000 % 265000
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority
Bonds Payable oo 4.25%
Revenye Bonds R X ] 500.000 11,225,000 500,000
B o 8 750,000 _§ 14,150,000 $_ 765000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds of the Downtown
Development Authority are as follows:

Principal interest

$ 265,000 $ 122,268

280,000 111,833

285,000 100,732

310,000 88,785

325,000 76,075

2022-25 1,450,000 161,040
$ 2,825,000 $ 660,853
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June 30, 2016

7) LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds of the Brownfield
Redevelopment Authority are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Principal Interest

2017 3 500,000
2018 525,000
2019 525,000
2020 550,000
2012 ; 575,000

2022-2026

2027-2031
2032

8) JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION

The City of Allen Park, in conjun
Court, The two cities are referre
operating revenue mainly from fines ag 1
Park receives 2/3 of the:revenue received by, the Cotirt through fines and fees and the City
of Melvindale receives 1/3.:The 4 ty Council ‘and the Melvindale City Council
approve the Court's aninual budget each year and contribute to the Court monthly a share of
the annual budget based on the same ratio that revenues are distributed by the Court to the
DCD's. A copy of the 24th District Court's separate financial statements can be obtained at
16850 Southfield Road, Allen Park, Michigan. Financial segment information as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2016 is presented below.

$ 1,157,588
1,917,183
10,779,512
415,813
(8,120,554)
2,572,045

Total Asse s

Total Expenses 3,430,869
Change in Net Position (858,824

Total Outstanding Long-Term Debt 97,820
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Financial Statements
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9) POST EMPLOYEE HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

Ptan Description - The City provides retiree health care benefits to eligible employees upon
retirement in accordance with labor contracts. Currently, 333 retired employees receive this
benefit. At the fund level, the expense is recognized by the City as the payments to the
employees are made. During the year, this amounted to $3,065,259.

&,
Funding Policy - The City has no obligation to make contnbutﬁns “in advance of when the
insurance premiums are due for payment (in other words, is -%y be financed on a "pay-
as-you go" basis). The City has made advance contribu of $500,000 to the retiree
healthcare trust fund during the year.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City h
healthcare benefits through an actuarial study th
No. 45. The study computes an annual require
basis, is projected to cover normal cost 6
liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 years.

The computed contribution and actual funding are zed as follows:

Annual Required Contribution (Recommended) $ 5,848,667
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 1,252,560
Adjustments to ARC . o {1,368,410)
Total St s ek o 5,732,717
Amounts Contributed: o
Payments of Current Premiums (3,0865,259)
Advance Funding _ {500,000)
Increase in OPEB Obligation 2,167,458
C 35,787,439
$ 37,954,897
34,487,655
3,467,242
$ 37,854,897
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Contmue
June 30, 2016

9) POST EMPLOYEE HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued)

The annual OPEB costs, the percentage confributed to the Plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for the current and three preceding years were as follows:

Ratio of
Actuarial UAAL to
Actuarial Value of Actuarial Accrued Unfunded AAL Annual Covered Covered
Valuation Date Assets (a) Liability (AAL) (b) (UAAL) (b-a) Payrell {¢) Payroll
12/31/08 $ -~ % 120,225,807 9,131,710 1317%
12/31711 - 139,804,352 7,088,572 1973%
12/31/13 - 93,108,019 1532%
12/31/15 500,006 58,864,837 1234%
: b
The funding progress of the plan as of the most
Schedule of Funding Progress
Actuarial 5
Fiscal Year v i ‘Percentage Net OPEB
Ended Contributed Obligation
6/30/2012 120312011 § 8,920,461 35.3% $ 20,702,374
6/30/2013 12/31/2011 - 9,483,198 33.3% 27,121,009
6/30/2014 12/31/2013 6,904,728 34.6% 31,633,323
6/30/2015 121312013 7,062,659 41.2% 35,787,439

£6/30/2016 12/31/2015 8,732,717 53.5% 37,954,897
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10)

Stater
June 30, 2016

‘the Financi

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
Plan Description, Contribution Information and Funding Policies
The City participates in a multiple-employer public employee retirement system. Asssts

are held separately and may be used only for the payment of benefits to the members of
the

provisions:

Year Established and Governing Authority

Determination of Contribution

Contributions for;

Normal Gost (Weighte(i Average) Accrued .
Liabilities

(Full Funding Credit) T 30.97%

Total Employer Rate  44.65%

19.51%
21.07%
19.51%

24™ Distri

Counrt 19.51% of Covered Payroll

Plan Members Contributions: 7.00% of Covered Payroll
For General, Firefighters and
Police Officers

Funding of Administrative Cosis investment Earnings
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ed)
June 30, 2016

10) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN ~ (Continued)

Plan Description, Contribution Information and Funding Policies — (Continued)

Period Required to Vest 10 Years
Eligibility for Distribution Age 53 with 10 or more years of service
General, Water & Court (8 years for ad@mlstratlve/appomtees)

\FSCME hires, effective
and  Administrative

Closed to new

rs of services
1, 2012, Age
f , )

Police/Fire

Provisions for:
Disability Benefits
Death Benefits

Memberships of the plan are as follows:

Non-vested Active Mermbeys.,
Fully vested Actlve_M "mbers .

Retirees and Be’nsficiaries Currenﬂy 221
Receiving Benefits

Total .. “08

ary based upon employment category and are based on a
ingliaverage compensation multiplied by years of service.

fits Providea'
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CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

June 30, 2016

10) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN — (Continued)
Net Pension Liability

The net pension liability reported at June 30, 2016 was determined using a measure of the
total pension liability and the pension net position as of December 31, 2015. The December
31, 2015 total pension lability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of that
date.

Changes in the net pension liability during the measurement yg re as follows:

Net Pension Liability at January 1, 2015 $ 13,937,470

Total Pension Liability (TPL):

TPL Balance at January 1, 2015
Service Costs
Interest on TPL
Changes in Benefit Terms
Experience Differences
Benefit Paymenis
Change in TPL

81,062,137
930,382
5,604,367
222,083
1,184,716

(6,5616,283)
2,425,255

TPL Balance at December 31, 2015 83,487,392
Plan Net Position (PNP}:

PNP Balance at January 41,2015 _ _ 87,124,667
investment Earnings - L . 516,959
Contributions - Emiployer 2,144,475
Contributions - Employee v ' 321,292
Benefit Payments . ST {5,516,293)
Administrative Costs . ' T (61,995)
: (2,596,480)

64,528,187

$ 18,959,205
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e Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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10) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $2,088,605. At
June 30, 2016, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred mﬂows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred
Inflows of
Source Resouyrces Resources

Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments.

1,681,525

Changes in Assumptions

Difference between actual and expected experie 755,891 656,793

Employer contributions to the plan ent to the

measurement date. 847,830 -

772,162 $ 656,793

Total

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources refated to pensions will be recognized
in pension expense as foliows: ;

Years Ending
June30 . Amount

$ 2,262,231
1,262,970
822,290
820,048

Actuarial:zAs
valuation wa; ingd using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods

included in the:

Inflation 2.5 %
Salary increases 3 %
Investment Rate of Return 7.0 % Gross of pension plan investment

expense, including inflation.
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CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

June 30, 2016

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Mortality tables. Separate tables were used
for pre-retirees, post retirees and disabled retirees.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2015 valuation were based on the
results of the 2015 actuarial experience study.

Sension liability was 7.00
count rate assumes that
employee contributions will be made at the current ¢
contributions will be made at rates equal to the differél
contribution rates and the employee rate. :

Long-term Expected Return on Plan Assets

valuation report as of December:
expectation are provided by the

Single Discount Rate

A Single Discount Rale of 7 00% was used to measure, the Total Pension Liability. This
Single Discount Rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.00%. The projection of cash flows used to determine this Single
Discount Rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the
difference between actuana!ly determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based
on these assumptions, ;the pension plar’s Fiduciary Net Position was projected fo be
le to make. all p Jected future benefit payments of current plan members

ivity of the Net: Position Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The
: position liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) {8.00%)
Net Pension Liability of the City $ 28,496,566 $ 18,859,205 $ 10,949,332
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11)

12)

13)

toFmanmalStatements(Contmued)
June 30, 2016

EMPLOYEE DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Effective April 1, 2005, a Defined Contribution Plan was established for all new hires, as
defined in Article IV of the employee handbook, which will be funded through MERS. The
details of this plan are as follows: 7% Employer Contributions; 5% Employee
Contributions; 3 years 20%, 4 years 40%, 5 years 60%, 6 years 80% and 7 years 100%
vesting; loans are allowed from the plan effective September 11, 2012 and rollovers are
allowed in the plan. An update to the plan states that afl appoiflees are fully vested after
two years of service.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss reldl s, torts, errors and
omissions, employee injuries (workers' co medical benefits
provided to employees. The City has purchaged:¢ ial i medical benefit

claims, participates in the Michigan Mu
waorkers' compensation and the Michigan M
pool for property toss, torts, errors and -

The Michigan Municipal League Fisk po
management program for local unats f go
used to purchase commercial excess’ _nsuran_‘
excess of deductible amounts '

ent in M ngan member premiums are
verage and to pay member claims in

The Mtchlgan Mummpal Rtsk Management Authority risk pool program operates as a
claims servicing pool for amounts up to member retention limits, and operates as a
common risk-sharing management program for losses in excess of member retention
amounts. Although premiums are paid annually to the Authority, and the Authority pays
claims up to the retention limits, the uttimate liability for those claims remains with the City.

)WNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY CONTINGENT LIABILITY

Authority was obligated to reimburse the costs of
id by Clay Park Development, contingent upon the capture of
'untmg to $10,715,702, for Phase i of the development project,
003 reimbursement agreement. The Browniield Redevelopment
ed Clay Park Development $5,846,333 as of June 30, 2016. These
re:mbursementh duce the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority's contingent liability to
$4,869,369 ($5,438,150 including accrued interest) which will be paid contingent upon the
capture of future tax revenues.
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14)

15)

16)

TY OF ALLEN PARK MICHEIGAN

Nots tothe FmancaalStatements(C ontmued)
June 30, 2016

ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING POLICIES

As of June 30, 2016, the City adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statements No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, and No. 79, Certain External
investments Pools and Pool Participants. GASB Statement No. 72 provides guidance for
determining a fair value measurement for reporting purposes and applying fair value to
certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements. GASB
Statement No. 79 provides guldance for determining whether ceffain investment pools can
continue fo be accounted for using amortized cost. The adopti id not have a significant
impact on amounts reported in the financial statements. &

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

We examined subsequent events through . te the report was
available to be issued. )

UPCOMING ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCE

x Abatement Disclosures. This
r financial statements information
ently evaluating the impact this
, during the 2017 fiscal year.

In August 2015, the GASB issued Statement”
Statement will require governments to disclos
related to tax abatement agreer; :
standard will have on the financia

ng accounting and financial
ent benefits other than penszons

provide OPEB beneﬂt to fheir employe'es Aiong with the currently required statement of
osition and statement of changes in fiduciary net position, OPEB plans will
ide:in the financial statement more extensive nofe disclosures and
iation related to the measurement of the OPEB liabilities for
flated. In addition, the City will, after adoption of GASB
nize onithe face of the financlal standards its net OPEB liability.
raluating the impact these standards will have on the financial
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CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

Required Supplementa! Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2016
Variance
Original Amended Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorabie)
Revenues:
Tax Collections:
Current $ 7,295,862 $ 7,285,862 $ 7,454,844 $ 158,982
Delinguent Tax Chargebacks - - 33,400 33,400
Police & Fire Millage 4,523,880 4,623,880 4,626,643 102,763
Total Tax 11,819,742 11,819,742 12,114,887 295,145
State of Michigan:
Liquor License Fee 20,500 20,910 410
Sales Tax 2,561,664 2,532,461 (29,203}
Total State 2,582,164 2,853,371 (28,793)
Other Revenue:
Federal Grant - CDBG 120,000 250,432 130,432
Federal Grant - Fire 600,000 {163,298)
State Grant : 67,000 {9,488)
Digtrict Court 1,750,000 185,262
License & Fees 1,737,657 (122,671)
Charges for Services 1,226,272 (21,5886)
Interest 41,851
Transfer (21,456)
Local Sources 13,731
Miscellangous 28,796
Total Other Revenue , 61,673
Total Revenues 21,820,630 327,925
Expenditures:
Mayor & Council 44,470 1,780
District Court 1,594,349 -
Community Development 766,456 16,783
Assessor 1 228,458 2,638
Finance 209,798 232,618 226,580 6,038
City Clerk 244,694 254,198 253,812 384
Administrator 2,765,607 2,696,004 1,725,060 870,944
Treasurer 106,394 114,405 111,619 2,786
City Hail 412,099 490,357 500,796 (10,429)
Police 2,228,809 2,316,265 2,077,881 238,384
Fire i : 1,576,879 1,576,879 1,120,031 456,848
Police Funded through Speciat Millage 2,714,328 2,714,328 2,775,986 {61,658)
rough SpecigtMillage 1,809,552 4,809,552 1,850,657 {(41,105)
1,240,029 1,277,699 1,328,425 (48,726)
329,002 329,002 328,039 963
3,509,433 3,509,433 3,353,119 156,314
19,789,909 19,975,683 18,283,738 1,691,945
1,200,000 1,526,082 3,645,052 2,019,870
Other Financing 8¢
Interfund Transfers'%: s (1,200,000% {1,526,082) (2,461,176) (935,004)
Total Other Financing:Sc (1,200,000) (1,526,082) (2,461,176) (935,084}
&F
Net Change in Fund Balances (Deficit) - - 1,084,776 1,084,776
Fund Balance - July 1, 2015 5,215,022 6,218,022 65,218,022 -
Fund Balance - June 30, 2018 $ 6,218,022 $ 6,218,022 $7,302,798 § 1,084,776
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CITY OF ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN

PP
Post Employee Health Care Benefits
Schedule of Funding Progress
Year Ended June 30, 2016

The Schedule of Funding Progress is as follows:

Funded Ratio of

Actuarial Ratio UAAL to

Actuarial Value of Actuarial Accrued Unfunded AAL {Percent) Annual Covered Covered
Valuation Date Assets {a) Liability (AAL) {b) (UAAL) (b-a) {a/b)} Fayroll (c) Payroll
12/31/08 $ - $ 120,225,807 $ 120225807 0% 8,131,710 1317%
12/31/M11 - 139,884,362 139,884,352 0% 7,088,572 1973%
1203113 - 93,108,019 93,108,019 0% 6,077,675 1532%
12131715 500,008 88,864,837 88,364,831 5 7,158,282 1234%

The Schedule of Employer Contributions:

Actuarial

Fiscal Year Valuation Net OPEBR

Ended Date Obhligation
6/30/2012 121312011 $ 20,792,374
6/30/2013 1213112011 27,121,009
6/30/2014 12/31/2013 31,633,323
63072015 1213112013 35,787,439
6/30/2016 _50 20% 37,954,897

12031/2015

Actuarial Methods and Assumptlons - Actuanal valuations of an ongoing plan involve
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence
of events far into the future Exar_nples include assumptlons about future employment, maoriality,

ployer<and the plan members) and include the types of benefits
valuation and the historical patiern of sharing of benefit costs
between the“employer and

s
ot

used include & “nLques
actuarial accrued<j €5'and the actuarial value of assets, consistent With the long-term

GO

In the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal actuarial cost method was
used. The actuarial assumptions included a 3.5 percent investment rate of return (net of
administrative costs) and, a projected salary increase rate of 3.21 to 6.3 percent. The UAAL is
being amortized over 30 years on an open basis.
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OF ALLEN PARK, MICHICGAN

equired Supple
Schedule of Changes in the City
Net Position Liahility and Related Ratios
Last Fiscal Year

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Net Pension Liability at January 1, 2015 $ 13,937,470
Total Pension Liability (TPL):
TPL Balance at January 1, 2015 81,082,137

Service Costs
interest on TPL
Changes in Benefit Terms
Experience Differences
Benefit Payments
Change in TPL
TPL Balance at December 31, 2015

83,487,392

Plan Net Position (PNP):

PNP Balance at January 1, 2015
Investmant Earnings
Contributions - Employer
Coenfributions - Employee
Benefit Payments
Administrative Costs
Other
Change in PNP

7,124,667

516,959
2,144,475

321,292
(5,516,293)

PNP Balance at December 31, 20.15 o 64,528 187
Net Pension Liability at December 31, 2015 $ 18,059,205
Plan Net Position as a Percent of Total Pen i i 77.3%
Covered-Pé:;y;i;Bl:l | $ 5,846,208

| ion Liability as 324.3%
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City of Allen Park

State of Michigan
Mark A. Kibby 16630 Southfield Road
City Administrator Suite 3100
mkibby(@cityofallenpark.org Allen Park, M1 48101
(P)313-928-1883
To: Mayor and City Council

From: Mark A. Kibby, City Administrator

Date: December &, 2016

Re: CDBG PY 2017 Public Hearing #1

At the October 25, 2016 Allen Park City Council meeting, the Mayor and Council scheduled the
first of two Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Public Hearings for Tuesday,
December 13, 2016. The Mayor and City Council is requested to conduct the Public Hearing to
receive comment on the objectives and possible uses for developing projects or suggestions for

other projects using CDBG PY 2017 funding.

Attached is the legal advertisement that was placed in the November 23, 2016 edition of the
News Herald. The Potential Projects listed below reflect an estimated PY 2017 allocation of
$136,838.00, as well as the estimated $3,000.00 in CDBG Program Income.

OBJECTIVES:

A. Benefitting Low and Moderate Income (LMI) Persons

B. Benefitting Low and Moderate Income Limited Clientele (LMC) Persons

C. Addressing Slums and Blight or Low and Moderate Income Housing Benefit
D. Meeting a particularly urgent community development need

POTENTIAL PROJECTS:
Activity Amount
Public Improvements $98,238
Public/Senior Services $5,000
Administration $13,600
Housing Rehabilitation $20,000
HOUSiI’lg Rehabilitation — Program Income ~ $1,000
Demolition — Program Income $1,000

Public Improvements — Program Income $1,000

Thank you for your consideration on this matter.

Objective

Met
A
A&B
A
B&C
B&C
c
A&B



CITY OF ALLEN PARK

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PY 2017

Pursuant to Federal guidelines, the City of Allen Park is announcing its objectives and possible uses for
developing projects using Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding.

For Program Year 2017, the City of Allen Park anticipates receiving an allocation of approximately
$136,838 in Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds and an estimated $3,000 in CDBG
Program Income, for a total of approximately $139,838.

OBJECTIVES:
A. Benefitting Low and Moderate Income (LMI) Persons
B. Benefitting Low and Moderate Income Limited Clientele (LMC) Persons
C. Addressing Slums and Blight or Low and Moderate Income Housing Benefit
D. Meeting a particularly urgent community development need
POTENTIAL PROJECTS:
Objective
Activity Amount Met
Public Improvements $98.238 A
Public/Senior Services $5,000 A&B
Administration $13,600 A
Housing Rehabilitation $20,000 B&C
Housing Rehabilitation — Program mcome ~ $1,000 B&C
Demolition — Program Income $1,000 C
Public Improvements — Program Income $1,000 A

Notice is hereby given that the City of Allen Park will hold a Public Hearing to receive comment on the
possible projects or suggestions for other projects on Tuesday, December 13, 2016, at 6:00 p.m. in the
Council Chambers of the City of Allen Park City Hall, locaied at 16630 Southfield Road, Suite 3100,
Allen Park, MI 48101. Interested persons are invited to comment on the possible projects listed above or
suggest other projects. All projects must meet one of the objectives above.

The Public is invited to attend and comment during the Public Hearing or to make written comments on
or before December 13, 2016. The City of Allen Park will provide reasonable accommodations for those
individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services. Notification should be received in the
City Clerk’s Office at least seven (7) days prior to the public hearing.

Michael I. Mizzi
City Clerk

Publish: Wednesday, November 23, 2016
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P & R Commission Meeting Minutes
November 28, 2016
7:30 P.M. ﬂl

Call to Order 734 p.m.

RO” Present; Anltioch, Cruts, Lindow, Perry, Turner. Absent; Kelley, Leskosky, Rossman, Shepherd, Quorum
present, Vice-chairman Lindow will act as chair,

Approval of Minutes from Regular Meeting on October 24, 2016 wmotion-

Antioch, 2r-Cruts to approvs, carried unanimousty.

Approval of Ag enda ntantioch, 20-Perry, carried unanimously.

New Business:

a. Bul Idogs Presentation mike Kiburg and Carof Shriver presented a request to allow the Bulidogs

to expand the existing building in Cunningham Park. The addition would be a 90" x 40° block, cold storage building, 90°
added to the south of the existing building extending 40’ to the wast. All costs will be absorbed by the Bulldogs
organization and all buiiding permits and requirements will be adhered to. The need and use is for storage of equipment.
Prior to spending funds for a site plan, the Bulldogs are requesting support from the Parks and Recreation Commission
and then the Allen Park City Council. Motion by Perry, 2% by Cruls to support the Bulldogs concept and efforts for this
profect and to move this to the City Council. Carried unanimously.



M T e T ——— =
A
3

| k! .
N s v __ T _
T o a7

\Ums&\ Gndp ﬁﬂm&\ 145 N \%\\%

oy o m:i \&@,w )
| XG%B . -
/el a i - \,WNSS FAW %%m m\%@?
RTINS @wﬂa\\ T \ﬂ%
% 1 Qht xkew | ekxor
1 werd iwowdmby | gy N
w B
q _._
. ) 1
o R fw
@ & @Q \.ﬁ\a%um\ @%%@%&

sl Qad oL %ﬁ@ \m%h:m 4@ Qi Wl (334 9 /




9T0Z/ETIV0

7
|
/
I
1
1

uonippy bopjing xoiddy









From: Deborah Zettel W

To: Deborah Zettel
Subject: Year end rap
Date: Thursday, December 08, 2016 10:57:11 AM

From: Andrew Hill [mailto:andrew@allenparkhousing.com]
Sent: Thursday, December 01, 2016 2:47 PM

To: Mark Kibby

Cc: Mayor; Deborah Zettel

Subject: Year end rap

Just wanted to give you our year end rap up.

The APHC has finished renovating the lobly. New furniture replaces the cutdated 20+ year old
chairs with 400 pound capacity high quality leather chairs and couches, new air conditioning units
that also provide heat, and new carpeting. We also were able to secure a donation from Park West
Art Galleries for three pieces of art valued at $7500.

The wing along the library side of the property has been regraded, new sod, new landscaping, and a
sprinkler system. The front sign is finished and plans are in place to continue on the other wing in
the Spring. The sprinkler system can be added onto for future irrigation at the property.
Landscaping will also begin in the Spring around the new sign.

One additional apartment has been completely renovated with a walk in shower. The windows have
been replaced as we turn apartments and we now have approximately 1/3 of the windows replaced.

The APHC has met with DTE and did a walkthrough of the property and made several energy saving
improvements through the DTE grants, next year we are exploring a grant to replace all the
refrigerators.

Our annual audit came back with no findings. We continue to maintain a strong financial rating from
HUD.

Our waitlist is over 200 strong or approximately a 5 year waiting period, exceptions have been made
to provide preferences for Allen Park residents and Veterans. The preferences have been approved
by HUD.

The board approved a 3% pay increase for all employees. My contract ends on 12/31/2017, 1 am
hopeful that the board will begin renegotiating a new 5 year agreement in the coming year.

Merry Christmas and Happy New Year!
Andrew Hill

Executive Director, PHM
Allen Park Housing Commission



Allen Park Police Department
16630 Southfield Road
Suite 3100
Allen Park, MI 48101
313-386-7800

December 6, 2016

To: Mark Kibby; City Administrator
Fr: James Wilkewitz; Police Chief

Re: October Police Operations Report

Mark Kibby:

Attached for your review is a summation of police services
for the month of November 2016. This report is generated to be
in compliance with Emergency Manager Order 2014-043. If there
is additional information required I will furnish it to you.

Calls for Service:

The Allen Park Police Department received 1,370 calls for
police services during the month of October. This resulted in
224 incident/accident reports and the arrest of 38 individuals
for wvarious offenses.

Personnel:

One officer is on short term disability for a fractured
finger from an on-duty arrest.
Notable Events:

Background investigations continue for the three remaining
applicants for the open police officer position.

Lt. Egan and Lt. Soden have been selected to attend Eastern
Michigan University’s School of Poclice Staff and Command. The
course begins in February and is in session one week per month
thru October 2017.



Allen Park Police Department
16630 Southfield Road
Suite 3100
Allen Park, MI 48101
313-386-7800

Officers have been attending several instructor’s schools
in order to obtain certifications so that they may in turn train
APPD officers. Officers have attended Taser Instructor School
and Chemical Weapons Instructor School. These trainings will be
incorporated into department wide training in 2017.

I have been in contact and discussions with Paul Alberts
and Aaron Alberts, the owners of Recoil Firearms located at
22509 Ecorse Rd (Ecorse and Pardee) for the use of their indoor
firearms range and classroom facilities for our officers 2017
firearms qualifications. Both Paul and Aaron stated that they
are willing to help in anyway necessary to provide us with a
place to train.

I received a letter from the Detroit Police Department that
recognizes the efforts, albeit minor, of APPD officers Sgt. Eron
Feltz, Ofc., Mike Curtis, Ofc. Brandan Marshall, Ofc. Steve
Segrest, and Ofc. Jason Dobbertin for their assistance in the
apprehension of two suspects involved in a homicide. Detroit PD
has invited these officers and all of the officers involved in
solving this case to attend an award ceremony on 12/8/16 at DPD
Headquarters. (copy attached)

Sincerely,

e witz
Pglice Chi
len Park/ Police Department

3-386-6457
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Awarded for Outstanding and Courageous Police Service to the Citizens of the City of Detroit,
and in the Spirit of making Detroit one of the safest cities in the United States of America.

Date and time of Incident: September 26 — September 30, 2016
Date submitted: October 10, 2016
Recommended by: Lieutenant Michael McGinnis

HOMICIDE TEAM: Sgt. Samuel Mackie (S-1128), Sgt. lan Severy {S-23), Det. Eric Kimble (D-1421),
Det. Johnell White (D-27), Det. Kristin Ferency (D-350), Det. Michael Dowdy (D-1274), Det.
Aaron Colwell (D-4515), Sgt. Robert Lalone (S-381), Det. Gary Przybyla (D-3821), Sgt. Shannon
Jones (S-39), Det. Jarmiare McEntire (D-4037), Det. Jeb Rutledge (D-202).

SURVEILLANCE TEAM: Sgt. Raytheon Martin (S-157), Sgt. Brent Rodak (S-489), Ofc. Ryan May
(224), Ofc. Jason Murphy (3512), Ofc. Ernest Harris (823), Ofc. Robert Skender (4378), Ofc.
Chadwick Hopkins (4114), Ofc. Ned Gray (724), Ofc. lan Reinhold (2581), Ofc. Greg Jones (4785),
Specialist Stan Brue.

FOURTH PRECINCT PATROL TEAM: Ofc. Tracy Moreno (3036), Ofc. Lenin Amarante (565), Ofc.
Robin Carver (2845).

MAJOR VIOLATORS: Sgt. Samuel Pionessa (5-437), Ofc. Samuel Galloway (4184), Ofc. Reginald
Beasley (575), Ofc. Johnny Fox (2563), Ofc. Alanna Mitchell (2586).

ARSON TASK FORCE: Capt. Omar Davidson (3458), Lt. Andrew Schwedler (3814), Sgt. Michael
Russell (S-555), Sgt. David Sanders (S-1437), Ofc. Sean Holchradel (2695).

GANG INTELLIGENCE: Sgt. Scott Herzog (5-624), Det. Michael Reizin (D-3545), Ofc. Prentis
Mercer (1526), Ofc. Garnette Steen (4735), Ofc. Lisa Alvarado (3591), Ofc. Kaspar Harrison
(3002), Ofc. Roland Frederick (2568), Ofc. George Alam (205), Ofc. Eric Smigielski (4418}, Ofc.
Kenneth Valrie (722).

MICHIGAN STATE POLICE: Sgt. David Yount with K-9 Lightning.

MELVINDALE POLICE: Ofc. Robert McCoy, Sgt. Nick Martinez, Det. John R. Thompson.




LINCOLN PARK POLICE: Chief Raymond Watters (2602), Deputy Chief Joseph Lavis (2365}, Lt.
Richard Kolakovich (2335), Lt. Daniel Couvreur {2130), Sgt. Michael Powers {2485), Sgt. leffrey
Mueller (2434), Sgt. Ryan Hammerle (2222), SLO Joseph Sparks (2528), SLO Jeffrey Stacho
(2545), SLO Veronica Lyles (2424) SLO/K-9 Cpl. Shawn Noe {2444} w/ K-9 Kato (3444), SLO Eric
Popowicz (2490), Ofc. Jason Lasinskas (2345), Det. John Stearns (2555), Ofc. Eric Harris (2233)
Ofc. Chelsea Early (2151),

SOUTHGATE POLICE: Officers Nathan Mosczynski (124}, Eric Garfat (128), Keith Shurkus {130).

ALLEN PARK POLICE: Officers Eron Feltz, Michael Curtis, Brandon Marshall, Jason Dobbertin,
Steven Segrest.

WYANDOTTE POLICE: Officer Steve Oborne, Officer Heather Rodery.

On September 26, 2016, Mr. Stephen Diabo walked into the Melvindale Police
Department to report his girlfriend, Victim Amanda Benton, missing. Mr. Diabo indicated that
the victim had not been seen for over 24 hours. Melvindale Police began a missing person
investigation.

On September 27, 2016, Mr. Diabo and family members of Victim started searching for
the victim in southwest Detroit, specifically in the area of W. Vernor and Lawndale. Mr. Diabo
located the car that Victim was driving on Lawndale near W. Vernor. Mr. Diabo called 911 and
was met by Fourth Precinct 5Scout 4-33 (Officers Tracey Moreno, Lenin Amarante and Robin
Carver) who began searching the area for Victim with no success.

Late in the evening of September 27, 2016, Cassandra Soto-Ramirez walked into the
Fourth Precinct and spoke to Officer Tracy Moreno. Mrs. Soto-Ramirez stated that she heard a
conversation in which a person known to her as leremy Lee confessed to murdering a pregnant
woman, matching the description of Victim, dumping her body in a vacant house, and burning it
with a male named Jacob. Officer Moreno contacted members of Homicide who immediately
responded and took a formal statement from the witness.

The members of Homicide began to conduct an investigation into the disappearance of
the victim with the belief that she was likely murdered in the city of Detroit. The investigation
concentrated in this area in which the victim’s vehicle had been recovered which was also in the
area where offender Jeremy Lee resided. The investigation included a very detailed search of
the recently burned structures in the target area by members of the Detroit Arson Task force
Unit while Michigan State Palice Sergeant David Yount with K-9 Lightning, and Missing Persons
Sergeant Shannon Jones conducted an extensive cadaver K-9 search of the same area.
Unfortunately these efforts revealed negative findings.



While the aforementioned searches were being conducted, the investigating Homicide
team conducted a canvass of the neighborhood for witnesses, identified witnesses and
conducted interviews, identified surveillance video evidence, prepared numerous search
warrants for social media evidence and cell phone records evidence. These efforts resulted in
the positive identification of the two offenders responsible for the disappearance of the victim
and probable cause to arrest these subjects. The apprehension task was assigned to members of
the Headquarter Surveillance Unit.

On September 30, 2016, Members of Headquarters Surveillance gathered intelligence
on the two offenders which revealed they were likely hiding out in an apartment building in the
city of Lincoln Park. Surveillance was established at this apartment building and after a short
time, both wanted offenders were observed exiting the apartment building. The offenders
entered a stolen minivan which was parked near the location and remained parked in front of
the apartment building. Members of Headquarters Surveillance relayed this information (via
radio) to Sergeant Powers of the Lincoln Park Police in order to summon backup and assistance.
Sergeant Powers notified his officers from Lincoln Park Police who responded to the location in
and attempt to effect a uniform investigation of the two offenders. Corporal Sparks of the
Lincoln Park Police activated his emergency lights to investigate at which time the wanted
offenders drove off and accelerated in an attempt to elude the officer. The van fited for three
blocks until it crashed into a garage. Both wanted subjects exited the van and fled on foot.

A perimeter was established with officers from Lincoln Park Police (Chief Ray Watters,
Deputy Chief Joe Lavis, Lieutenant Rich Kolakovich, Lieutenant Dan Couvreur, Sgt. Jeff Mueller,
Sgt. Ryan Hammerle, Corporal Joe Sparks, Corporal Jeff Stacho, Corporal Shawn Noe, Police
Officer Eric Harris, Police Officer Chelsea Early, Detective John Stearns, Detective Jascn
Lasinakas, Detective Vicki Malkawski), Allen Park Police {Police Officer Eron Feltz, Police Officer
Michael Curtis, Police Officer Brandon Marshall, Police Officer Jason Dobbertin, Police Officer
Steve Segrest}, Wyandotte Police {Officer Steve Obarne, Officer Heather Rodery), Southgate
(Officer Nathan Mosczynski, Officer Eric Garfat, and Officer Keith Shurkus), and Headquarters
Surveillance.

With a well-established perimeter in place, Lincoln Park Police Corporal Shawn Noe and
K9 Kato arrived at the scene and began a track which led to the area of Michigan and Howard.
Officer Robert Skender, while searching this area, received information from a citizen that the
offenders may have entered a garage next door to this citizen’s residence. Officer Noe, Officer
Popowicz, Sergeant Mueller, Sergeant Martin, and Officer Skender inspected the garage at
which time they encountered the offenders. The two offenders were given verbal commands to
put their hands in the air, and get down on the ground in which they complied. They were taken
into custody without incident.



Shortly after the arrest of the two offenders, members of the Detroit Police
Departments Gang Intelligence and Major Violators Units executed search warrants
simultaneously at the each residence of the offenders. These warrants lead to property of the
victim’s being recovered as well as formal statements taken from person associated to the
offenders.

The offenders were interviewed by members of Homicide. One offender gave a full
confession of the events that lead to the murder of Amanda Benton while the other made
minimal admissions. The cooperating offender also advised the team on the location of the
victim’s remains resulting in her recovery.

On September 5, 2016, both offenders were formally charged with the following; Felony
Murder, Murder First Degree Premeditated, and Assault of a Pregnant Individual and
Intentionally Causing Miscarriage/Stillbirth.

As a member of the Homicide Section, | proudly commend/endorse the above named
officers of the Detroit Police Department along with the multiple other law enforcement
agencies, for their diligent efforts to bring closure to the victim's family, as weil as to remove
two dangerous felons from the streets. Their un-waivered efforts, dedication and actions were
in the highest traditions of the Detroit Police Department and worthy of meritorious
recognition.



City of Allen Park

JULEN PARy Ifire Department
a‘"""' @ 6730 Roosevelt, Allen Park, Michigan 48101
Yk PHONE: 313-928-0024 FAX: 313-928-6377

Chief Douglas LaFond
NFPA Certified Fire Inspector 11
& Fire Plan Review
E-Mail dlafond@cityofallenpark.org

Web: www.cityofallenpark.org

FIRE CHIEF'S REPORT TO THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR
FOR THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2016

MEETINGS:

Attended a Legal Affairs Committee meeting

Attended 2 Department Head Meetings

Attended 2 City Council meetings

Attended monthly Downriver Fire Chief's Advisory Board Meeting
Participated in the annual Allen Park Lighted Christmas parade

o L b e

FIRE CALL OUTS:
1. Responded with one of our crews to the City of Lincoln Park on a
commercial structure fire.

APPARATUS:
1. Received word that we will be taking delivery of our new ambulance
before Christmas. I requested and gathered the proper paperwork for our
trade in and for the purchase of the new truck.

FMLA:
1. Firefighter Macari returned to duty from FMLA
2. Firefighter Estrada remains off on FMLA

OTHER ACTIVITIES:

1. The concrete contractor repaired a crack that had formed in our new
parking lot. The repair is satisfactory and the contractor has been paid.

2. Clean Air Concepts completed the installation of our new vehicle exhaust
removal system. They have been paid and a request was made to
DHS/FEMA for a 90% reimbursement of the associated costs.

3. Our new HVAC system is operating well, I have worked with our
contractor to set up our system on a quarterly maintenance plan, which
includes all recommended maintenance and filter changes.



4. We have been using a local electrician and a local plumber to have some
sorely needed repairs and upgrades performed on the fire station. We
have replaced about 15 to 20 percent of our lighting with LED fixtures,
installed new electrical receptacles to help eliminate the need for the use
of extension cords, (which is a fire code violation), Installed new back flow
preventers, flush and shut off valves to eliminate chronic water leaks in
the building, and had the main sewer lines snaked to help alleviate
wastewater drainage issues.

5. Tsubmitted 2 AFG grants for the federal fiscal year 2016. One for
$650,000 for a new pumper truck and another for over $170,000 which
would cover the purchase of many much needed items including: 5000
feet of fire hose, two 12 lead cardiac monitors, two thermal imaging
cameras, a new washer extractor and a new dryer for the
decontamination of firefighters bunker gear, new personal protective and
rescue equipment, and many other needed items. I hope to know the
results before next summer.

6. 1 worked with the legal affairs committee and the city attorneys to re-
write our cost recovery and fire code ordinances as well as formulating a
new price list for inspections and plan reviews. I am currently working on
re-writing our false fire alarm ordinance. All of these ordinances were way
overdue for an overhaul.

Respectfully,

Ctiief Douglas LaFoud
Chief Douglas LaFond



City of Allen Park

HULEN Pl Ifire Pepartment
03‘””“" 9 6730 Roosevelt, Allen Park, Michigan 48101
‘BB PHONE: 313-928-0024 FAX: 313-928-6377

Deputy Chief/ Fire Marshal Edward Cann
NFPA Certified Fire Inspector/ EMS Coordinator

E-Mail ecann(icityofallenpark.org
Web: www.citvofallenpark.org

DEPUTY FIRE CHIEF/FIRE MARSHAL'S
REPORT TO THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR
FOR THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2016

MEETINGS:
1. Attended HEMS Medical Control Authority Board monthly meeting
2. Attended Legal Affairs Committee Meeting
3. Attended Tabletop Exercise at Ford Motor Company 17000 Oakwood
regarding emergency response to a major disaster
4. Attended Staff & Command meeting in Ypsilanti
5. Met with Regional Manager of Quality Inn on Enterprise regarding fire
hydrant installation
. Met with “Trauma” peer review group at Beaumont Dearborn Hospital
. Phone meeting with GZA Environmental regarding BP Gas Station
. Met with business owner (Pawn Shop) John Perez regarding pro-active
code compliance

(oo B N o)

INSPECTIONS/ENFORCEMENT:
1. Enforced Fire Sprinkler change needed at Maple Heights Retirement
Complex
Cof O, M & K Tobacco, Allen Rd., Part II (sub-let area)
Re- C of O Inspection, Premier Tattoo, Ecorse Rd.
Re-C of O, Technicolor Warehouse, Enterprise Drive
Re-C of O, Southfield Gas and Go, Southfield Rd.
Big Fin Vehicle Storage, C of O
Old Goddard LLC, C of O, and re-C of O
Re-C of O, Steel Mill Components, Ecorse Rd.
C of O, Colonial Heating and Cooling, Allen Rd.
10 Re-C of O, Certified Staffing, Park Street
11.C of O, Acadian Urgent Care, Wick Rd
12.C of O, Mortgage 1, Allen Rd.
13.Hampton Square Apartments, Inspection
14.Enforced exit pathway at Bed, Bath and Beyond, on the Hill

CONDUNAWN



15.Enforced electrical violations at Party Store on Allen Rd
16.Enforced false alarm ordinance with Qlga’s on the Hill
17.Enforced various fire code rules with DDR Management, Facilities

Management company on the Hill

18.Enforced Fire Alarm Code with Pier 1 Imports on the Hil!
19.0ccupancy Load Rating, VFW Hall, Ecorse Rd.
20.Investigated Fire Code for parking permit at old Farmer Jack buitding for

Roush

21,Enforced exit pathways with Ford Willow Cove Apartments
22.Answered Code Questions regarding grills and fire pits at Allen Pointe

Condos

FIRE INVESTIGATIONS AND FIRE CALL OUTS:

1.

Investigated Room and Contents Fire in residence, apparently started by
curio cabinet light against cardboard

2. Investigated panel truck fire on highway

OTHER ACTIVITIES:

1.

Continued work on data entry for CARES (Cardiac Arrest) database,
required for EMS Licensure. Automated reports continue to save time and
money.

. Ordered EMS and Operating Supplies, as well as building maintenance

supplies.

Coordinated EMS Training, including monthly Continuing Education
Phone meeting with Philips Cardiac Monitor Company to extend our
preventive maintenance contract for 2 defibrillator/monitors

. Assisted in the repair of antique fire truck for lighted parade and pancake

breakfast

Researched information for FOIA

Looked into a new training program, computer based, called Fire Rescue
Academy

Continued process for application for training funds for 2017 using State
Fireworks funds

Obtained carpeting for fire department offices at no charge from
International Wholesale (formerly Les-Sue Warehouse)



10.Trained crews on Risk Management, an alternate entrance to “The Hill”
for emergencies during busy Christmas traffic season

11.Researched “"Rescue Task Force” concept for active shooter responses

12. Performed annual paramedic drug box

13. Updated ESO patient reporting software programs

14. Assisted Montessori Children’s Center in complying with Kitchen
extinguishment system

15.Was able to procure new toys for Kids for Christmas at no charge from
Technicolor

16.Worked with Arbor Professional Solutions for an offer in compromise from
a past due medical payment to the City

17.Signed up for railroad emergency notification app and software

18.Other work as assigned by the Chief
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November Summary Report

City of Allen Park

16125 White St - Allen Park - M|
313-928-0550
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City of Allen Park - Public Services
Monthly Work Order Activity Summary

Water Distribution
6 Valve Exercise
2 Valve Repair
1 Wash Street

13 Meters
67  Utility Markings

10 Mainbreak Repairs

1 Stop Box Repairs

494  Hydrant Winterization

Sanitary & Storm
156 Commercial Cleaning 3967

1 Sanitary Lead Televising

Forestry
3 Pickup Branches
1 Stump Grinding

4 Trim Tree

4 Log Pickups
2 Mulch Pickups
3 Stump Removals
7 Tree Removals
Streets
6 Patching
2 Sign Inspections

5 Sign Repairs

Feet of Pipe
120  Properties
Properties
6 Tons of Patch




Uity of Allen Hark

16850 SOUTHFIELD ROAD
ALLEN PARK, MICHIGAN 48101

Memo 12/7/2016

To:  Mark Kibby
From: Dave Boomer

Re:  November 2016 Report

Below is an overview of activities for the Building Department for the month of November. Not
included in the report are the daily activities such as the processing of permits, meetings with
homeowners and contractors, plan reviews, engineering consultant coordination, and
ordinance enforcement.

PERMIT TYPE PERMITS ISSUED PERMIT FEES
Electrical 41 $3819.00
Plumbhing 15 $1987.00
Mechanical 34 $5547.50
Fire 2 $380.00
Building 109 $30,142.00

Totals 201 $41,875.50

“'5 PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER



Certificates of Occupancy issued 6
New registered rental property inspections 20 fees generated $3500.00

Rental re-inspections 39

» Note ~the number of permits issued does not reflect the total number of inspections
conducted. A single permit may generate more than a single inspection.

PLANNING COMMISSION

Draft Master Plan approved and forwarded to Council.

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

No October Meeting

MASTER PLANNING

Draft copies of Master Plan distributed to surrounding entities upon Council approval.

Additional items of focus for the department include:

Ordinance reviews and possible clarifications, Legal Affairs meetings.
Demolition of old City Hall.

Architectural services for new facilities.

Marketing services for old City Hall location.

Training of 2 new ordinance officers

LAl o A



Allen Park Parks and Recreation

Operations Report November 2016

Parks, Recreation & Community Center

November *' met with Administration, Mayor, and DPS to accept a tree grant from International
Transmission relating to trees removed at Cunningham Park.

Met with APAC relating to responsibilities for next season.

The final set of swings for Boccabella Park was delivered and installed. This completes the 2014-13
Wayne County Parks Millage allocation for Allen Park in the amount of $54,346.00.

Allen Park Bulldog Cheerleaders utilized the APCC gym, daily through mid-November.

Our Recreation Basketball processed registrations throughout the month. We are coordinating with the
Detroit Pistons this year and our league will be part of the Detroit Piston’s Academy. Participation for the
upcoming season is close to last year’s with games scheduled to begin in January.

FREE OPEN SKATING took place on the evening of the Lighted Christmas Parade, 11/18, 6:00 — 8:30.

Utilization of the rink and gym was implemented for Allen Park residents during the Thanksgiving
Holiday with a discounted cost for residents.

The High School hockey season began and the APHS team completed their successful Thanksgiving
Tournament as the final victors.

AP Bulldogs made a presentation to Allen Park Parks and Recreation Commission seeking support for the
expansion of the *“Shack” for equipment storage.

Fencing at most ballparks and parks has been repaired to meet Consumer Safety Guidelines.

Replacement ballasts for exterior lights at APCC on White Street were cost prohibitive and the move to
LED lighting made the most sense and has been ordered.

Financial projections on cutting grass in parks for 2017 has been reviewed and submitted to
Administration for review prior to budget meetings.

Senior Day trip to Parade Company sold out. December Teas are scheduled with specialty shopping trips.



Allen Park Public Library

Librarian’s Report
November 2016

The emphasis in November is assisting students with projects, programs for our patrons,
and professional development for the staff.

PROGRAMS:

The library offers a variety of informational, instructional, and recreational programs
for patrens ages 2 through adulthood.

» ADULTS:

Adult Book Bingo
November 7, 2016

A very popular activity at our library is the playing of Bingo, particularly
if the prizes are books for adding to winner’s personal collections.

Blind Date With A Book

We’re constantly replenishing the Blind Date books. The books are going
out faster than we can put them on the shelves. Book dating is a very popular idea
here at the Allen Park Library.

Book Groups:
* Variety Book Club
Tuesday evening, November 1, 2016 led by Anna Brougher
Book for discussion: The Ocean at the End of The Lane by Neil
Gaiman.

“Sussex, England. A middle-aged man returns to his
childhood home to attend a funeral. Although the house he lived in
is long gone, he is drawn to the farm at the end of the road, where,
when he was seven, he encountered a most remarkable girl, Lettie
Hempstock, and her mother and grandmother. He hasn't thought of
Lettie in decades, and yet as he sits by the pond (a pond that she'd
claimed was an ocean) behind the ramshackle old farmhouse, the
unremembered past comes flooding back. And it is a past too
strange, too frightening, too dangerous to have happened to
anyone, let alone a small boy.” (Goodreads)

* Cozy Corner Book Group
Thursday afternoon, November 10, 2016 , led by Anna Brougher
Book for discussion: The Snow Child by Ecwyn Ivey.

“Alaska, 1920: a brutal place to homestead and especially
tough for recent arrivals Jack and Mabel. Childless, they are
drifting apart--he breaking under the weight of the work of the
farm, she crumbling from loneliness and despair. In a moment of



levity during the season's first snowfall, they build a child out of
snow. The next morning, the snow child is gone--but they glimpse
a young, blonde-haired girl running through the trees. This little
girl, who calls herself Faina, seems to be a child of the woods. She
hunts with a red fox at her side, skims lightly across the snow, and
somehow survives alone in the Alaskan wilderness. As Jack and
Mabel struggle to understand this child who could have stepped
from the pages of a fairy tale, they come to love her as their own
daughter. But in this beautiful, violent place things are rarely as
they appear, and what they eventually learn about Faina will
transform all of them.” (Goodreads)

*  Adult Mystery/Thriller Book Discussion Group
Tuesday evening, November 22, 2016 led by Sandy Ruhmann
Book for discussion:. The Girl on the Train by Paula Hawkins.
“Rachel takes the same commuter train every morning and
night. Every day she rattles down the track, flashes past a stretch of
cozy suburban homes, and stops at the signal that allows her to
daily watch the same couple breakfasting on their deck. She’s even
started to feel like she knows them. Jess and Jason, she calls them,
Their life—as she sees it—is perfect. Not unlike the life she
recently lost And then she sees something shocking. It’s only a
minute until the train moves on, but it’s enough. Now everything’s
changed. Unable to keep it to herself, Rachel goes to the police.
But is she really as unreliable as they say? Soon she is deeply
entangled not only in the investigation but in the lives of everyone
involved. Has she done more harm than good? (Goodreads).

Check Out An Expert
Tuesdays, Thursdays, & some Saturdays

Patrons needing help with any computer or handheld device can book one
hour slots of time with Brandi to go over any problems they may be encountering.
The program has been a big success and continues to grow.

Adult Craft Night
Tuesday, November 15, 2016, Thanksgiving Turkey Wreath.

A group of adults, tweens and teens had a wonderful time using felt, yarn,
styrofoam and glue for making Thanksgiving turkey wreaths to hang up and
decorate their homes for the holidays. Instead of “a turkey in every pot” we
believe in a “turkey on every wall or door”,

Needles, Hooks, and Books Too! And Spin Me a Yarn
Wednesday afternoons 1:00, November 2, 9, 16, 23 and 30 ,
Thursday evenings, 6:00, November 3, 10, and 17.
Our needle arts groups have been doing lots of knitting, crochet, and
sewing projects in preparation for the holidays, as well as learning new techniques



from the Spin Me A Yarn instructors and each other. Lots of fun activities are
going on.

Spin Me A Yarn

(@ the Allen Park Public Library takes place within the already established

Needles, Hooks, and Books Too!

Basic Crochet: Wednesdays @ 1 P.M. or Thursdays (@ 6 P.M.

-For teens and adults ages 13+. Crochet hook and yarn

provided for beginners.

Basic Knitting: Thursdays @ 6 P.M.

-For teens and adults ages 13+. Knitting

needles and yarn provided for beginners.

Knitting Socks: Thursdays @ 6 P.M.

-For teens and adults 13+. Learn to make socks on

magic loop. Knitting needles and yarn provided.

Participant must already know how to knit to make socks.

Special Programs

Gilmore Girls Reunion Celebration
Saturday, November 19, 2016 led by Brandi Swinehart and Lauren Vileo

In order to celebrate the return of Lorelai and Rory Gilmore and all of the
Stars Hollow personalities, we had a reunion party with tweens, teens and adults.
Attendees got to decorate mugs with Gilmore Girl quotes, nibble on donuts and
drinks while watching the Pilot episode, and played trivia to test their Gilmore
Girls knowledge, as well as other activities. We ended with a gift basket raftle.

National Novel Writing Month

Patrons were invited to come and write their novel at the Allen Park
Library throughout the month of November, Table space was provided and
everyone was invited to bring pen and paper, laptop, or appropriate writing
devices and lots of imagination in order to begin or write their first novel or more.

TEENS:

Movie Afternoons

Thursday, 11/3/16: The Huntsman: Winter's War
Thursday, 11/10/16: Alice Through the Looking Glass
Thursday, 11/17/16: X-Men: Apocalypse

Spin Me A Yarn
Wednesdays, 11/2, 11/9, 11/16, 11/22 £ 11/30, 2016
Thursdays, 11/3, 11/10, & 11/17, 2016

Teens and adults who wish to learn to knit or crochet, or knitters who want
to make socks, come to the meetings and are given all the supplies needed to get
started. Crochet is taught on Wednesdays and knitting and socks are taught on



Thursdays. Several new patrons have signed up and begun their fiber journey this
month.

Tween and Teen Advisory Board
Tuesday, 11/1/16

In this program, tweens and teens come to the library and discuss what
programs and books the library should have. They can also volunteer at events
and they will help us plan and implement the programs that they recommend. At
this meeting, the group discussed the book from last month and helped to cut out
felt in preparation for the November craft night. The group was given two options
for the December book club. They had a choice of “Peter & the Starcatchers” by
Dave Barry or “Pollyanna” by Eleanor Porter.

Special Program:
Gilmore Girls
Saturday, 11/19/16

The library has some major Gilmore Girls fans, both staff and patrons, so
a program was put on to gear up for the newest installment of the show appearing
on Netflix. Tween, teens, & adults were invited to come to this two hour event in
which the pilot episode was shown, coffee mugs were decorated, a wonderful gift
basket was raffled off, show trivia was played, and coffee and donuts were served.
The program went over very well and the patrons have already asked for similar
programs in the future.

YOUTH:
Toddler Storytime
Wednesdays, November 9, 16, and 30
Children ages 2-3 enjoyed weekly storytimes with their adult caregiver.
Activities include listening to stories, finger plays, songs, and a craft.

Preschool Storytime
Tuesdays, November 8, 15, and 29

Children ages 3-5 enjoyed weekly storytimes as “independent listeners”.
Activities include listening to stories, finger plays, songs, and a craft.

COMMUNITY:
1,000 Books Before Kindergarten

This ongoing program continues to be very successful. We have several
children nearing the completion mark.



Jigsaw Puzzles
Patrons continue to stop by and place a piece or two in the current puzzle.
Thanks to generous donations, we are accumulating a nice assortment of puzzles.

Michigan Activity Pass Program-MAP
The MAP program continues to grow in both participating venues and
interested patrons.

Reference

Obituary and reference questions keep coming in and are processed in a
timely manner. The response from people in the area who have taken advantage
of our services has been very positive and they express gratitude for our extending
this service to them.

Tutoring

Although not a library program, we do provide tables and copies of APPS
textbooks for students and tutors. We have expanded to eleven tables, and are at
capacity most afternoons. Four of the tables are reserved for NHS volunteer
tutors, who offer drop-in tutoring for interested students.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT:

Conferences:

Wednesday and Thursday, November 16 and 17, 2016
Library Marketing and Communication Conference (LMCC)
Attended by Dan Blakney and Dana Brataniec

This conference is geared towards those working in a library environment
(librarian or non-librarian) who do not have formal training in marketing and/or
communications efforts. LMCC covered topics including graphic design &
technology, planning & promoting programs & events, market research and plans,
social media and partnerships & community engagement, among others.

The conference contained 2 Keynotes and 32 presentations spread out in 4
tracks over the 2 days. Each staff member was able to view 8 presentations and
both keynotes.

Wednesday, November 16, attended by Dan:
Keynofte

Everything is Awesome: Teaming Up With Students for Library Outreach
Your Library Outside the Walls: Going Where Your Patrons Are
Connecting With the Community is a #WinningStrategy

Wednesday, November 16, attended by Dana:
Keynote
Library Paparazzi: Next-Level Tips for #LibrariesofInstagram



What Librarians Can Learn From Corporations and Ad Agencies,
More Than Icing: Positioning Your Marketing Campaigns for Success
Help Me Out Here: Vendor Participation in Library Marketing Efforts

Thursday, November 17, attended by Dan:

A Year of Outreach: How to Plan, Market and Execute 365 Days of Service
Without Going Crazy

Keynote

Smarter Engagement: How Customer Insights and Targeted Messaging Can
Bring Back Your Customers

“That’s Happening Here?” Evaluating the Effectiveness of In-House
Marketing and Communication

Auditing and Replacing Library Signage: Maintaining Effectiveness and
Relevancy After the Project Ends

The Elusive Library Non-User

Thursday, November 17, attended by Dana:

Look as Important as You Are: Beautiful, High-Quality Email Marketing for
Smaller Libraries

Infographics: Tools to Tell Your Library's Story

Strategic Tools and Tips for Environmental Graphics

Conversion: Turning Your Web Traffic into Foot Traffic

Meetings:

Allen Park Public Library Commission Meeting

November 16, 2016, cancelled by the Library Commission Chairperson due to no
agenda items.

TLN Tech Comm
November 15, 2016 at the Chelsea District Library, attended by Dan Blakney.
The only topic for the meeting was the use of 3D Printers in the library.
Melanie Bell has had 2 3D Printers donated by members of the community to her
library and as such, has had the opportunity to explore their use without incurring
too many costs. Melanie has strict but fair usage limitation for her patrons and is
working on finding more effective ways to let patrons know how to utilize the
equipment. She notices while there is a curiosity among the general population, it
is primarily the children and teens that use the 3D Printer. There is no December
meeting for the Technology Committee; the next meeting will be January 17" in
Northville.

TLN Tech Forum

Dan Blakney is still a member of the planning committee of the TLN
Technology Forum, they will be discussing speakers and work assignments in
January.



Webinars:

November 1: Booklist Webinar
Attended by Anna: Adult Highlights from Workman Publishing
Company: Food, Gardening, Lifestyle, and More.

November 1: Booklist Webinar
Attended by Anna; Crime Fiction to Quicken The Blood

November 9: Sallie Mae
Attended by Anna: Sallie Mae Scholarship Searching Tools
“Scholarships for College”

November 9: Beanstack Webinar
Attended by Anna: “ Four Doorways” Recommendations for Teens
and Adults

November 15: Booklist Webinar
Attended by Anna: Engaging Reluctant and Struggling Readers in
Your Library

November 17: Demco Webinar
Attended by Sandi: Four Simple Ways to Beef up Your Library
Marketing

November 22:
Attended by Brandi: Crime Friction

November 22:
Attended by Brandi: Spring 2017 Adult Highlights

November 22:
Attended by Brandi: Picture Books Galore

November 22:
Attended by Brandi: New Non-Fiction for Youth

November 22:
Attended by Brandi: Engaging Reluctant Readers

November 22:
Atiended by Brandi: STEAN with an Emphasis on *A”

November 22:
Attended by Brandi: Hot New Graphic Novels



November 30: MCLS Workshop
Attended by Anna and Brandi: Using MeL

Information on current offerings can be found at the library’s website
(www.allenparklibrary.org) and in our eNewsletter, found at
http://allenparklibrary.org/newsletter.asp. We encourage all Allen Park residents to join
our mailing list to receive our monthly newsletter and calendar via email.
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11/22/2016 Departmental Hours and Gross Summary by Rate Report
For 11/23/2016 TO 11/23/2016

PayCodelD | Rate __....RegHours | REBGIOSS oo

Department: 101 101 MAYOR & COUNCIL

Department Totals for: 101 101

REGULAR 1.00 416.67

SALARY 0.00 3,083.35

Totals: 1.00 3,500.02

Department: 101 215 CITY CLERK

Department Totals for: 101 215

REGULAR 181.75 4,111.56

Totals: 181.75 4,111.56

Department: 101 221 ADMINISTRATION

Department Totals for: 101 221

ALLOWANCE 0.00 115.39

REGULAR 167.00 5,204.12

SICK APPOINTEE 7.00 137.39

VAC APPOINTEE 7.00 137.39

Totals: 181.00 5,594.29

Department: 101 225 ASSESSING

Department Totals for: 101 225

REGULAR 52.50 1,626.21

Totals: 5250 1,626.21

Department; 101230 FINANCE

Department Totals for: 101230

PERS APPOINTEE 3.50 90.92

REGULAR 255.75 8,660.63

Totals: 259,25 8,751.55

Department: 101253 TREASURER

Department Totals for: 101253

REGULAR 151.75 2,809.74

VAC CLERI 15.00 227.85

Totals: 166,75 3,037.59



Department: 101305 POLICE

Department Totals for: 101305

COMP 7.50 120.15
MEDICAL REF 2WK 0.00 92.30
MINIMUM 78.00 2,339.35
OVER TIME 189.50 8,408.81
POLSTEPUP 0.00 183.80
REGULAR 3,429.14 96,645.96
SICK APPOINTEE 7.00 173.08
SICK CLER ERI 0.50 8.01
Totals: 3711.64 107971.46
Department: 101340 FIRE

Department Totals for: 101340

FLSA 0.00 97.51

MEDICAL REF 2WK 0.00 92.30

OVER TIME 288.50 9,751.19

PERS APPOINT PF 1.50 55.16

REGULAR 2,376.10 57,818.95

Totals: 2666.10 67815.11

Department: 101445 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICE

Department Totals for; 101445

CALL OUT HOL 3.00 494,14
COMP 4.00 95.04
OVER TIME 76.75 2,793.24
PERS CLERICAL 7.50 132.68
REGULAR 797.75 17,196.23
SICK SVC ERI 1.00 15.09
SICK SVC MAINT 7.50 132.90
STANDBY 20.00 607.52
STEP UP 24.00 716.85
VACSVCERI 40.00 659.52
VAC SVC MAINT 16.00 477.90
Totals: 1002.50 23371.11
Department: 101707 PARKS & RECREATION

Department Totals for: 101707

PERS APPOINTEE 7.00 287.00
REGULAR 418.25 6,264.75
SICK APPOINTEE 7.00 287.00

Totals: 432.25 6,838.75



Department: 101751

Department Totals for:

REGULAR
Totals:

Department: 101803

Department Totals for:

REGULAR
Totals:

Department: 249371

Department Totals for:

REGULAR
Totals:

Department: 250000

Department Totals for:

REGULAR
Totals:

Department: 271000

Department Totals for:

REGULAR
SICK APPOINTEE
Totals:

Department; 592601

Department Totals for:

CALLOUT
COMP

OVER TIME
PERS APPOINTEE
PERS SVC MAINT
REGULAR

SICK SVC FRI
SICK SVC MAINT
STANDBY

STEP UP

STEP UP MECH
STEP UP OT
VAC APPOINTEE

101751

101803

249371

250000

271000

592601

982.75
992.75

32.00
32.00

433.75
433.75

70.00
70.00

799.75
7.00
806.75

16.00
7.50
54.00
21.00
10.00
484.50
12.50
28.00
40.00
48.00
64.00
18.00
14.00

COMMUNITY CENTER

10,224.39
10,224.39

HISTORICAL

272.00
272.00

BUILDING DEPARMENT

10,048.02
10,048.02

D.D.A.

2,621.59
2,621.59

LIBRARY

12,150.20
277.93
12,428.13

WATER DEPARTMENT

306.20
124.02
1,547.61
827.89
232.66
9,769.46
243,34
611.95
829.80
1,433.69
1,301.12
793.49
551.92



VACCLERI

VAC SVC ERI
VAC SVC MAINT
Totals:

Department: 592603

Department Totals for: 592603

CALLOUT HOL
REGULAR

SICK SVC MAINT
STANDBY

VAC SVC MAINT
Totals:

Grand Totals:

REGULAR

SICK APPOINTEE
VAC APPOINTEE
COMP

OVER TIME
PERS CLERICAL
SICK CLER ERI
VACCLERI
CALLOUT

FLSA

MINIMUM

POL STEPUP
PERS APPOINTEE
CALLOUT HOL
PERS SVC MAINT
SICK SVC ERI
STANDBY

VAC SVC ERI
ALLOWANCE
PERS APPOINT PF

MEDICAL REF 2WK

SALARY

STEP UP

SICK SVC MAINT
VAC SVC MAINT
STEP UP MECH
STEP UP OT

7.50
48.00
40.00
917

8.00
140.50
3.50
20.00
16.00
188

10,784.24
28.00
21.00
19.00
608.75
7.50
0.50
22.50
16.00
0.00
78.00
0.00
31.50
20.00
10.00
13.50
80.00
88.00
0.00
1.50
0.00
0.00
72.00
39.00
72.00
64.00
18.00

132.68
937.60
1,194.74
20558.89

WATER DEPARMENT - BASIN

404,96
3,556.06
88.59
506.20
404.96
4960.77

249,396.54
875.40
689.31
339.21
22,500.85
132.68
8.01
360.53
306.20
97.51
2,339.35
183.80
1,205.81
1,019.82
232.66
258.43
1,943.52
1,597.12
115.39
55.16
184.60
3,083.35
2,150.54
883.44
2,077.60
1,301.12
793.49






City of Allen Park
16850 Southfield Rd.
Allen Park, MI 48101
(P) 313-928-3236

K

December 5, 2016

Mayor and Council
This report compliments the monthly budget to actual report for the General Fund for of November 2016. The

report below addresses any department variances over 20%. (5/12 would equate to 41.67%). Please keep in
mind that any of the November reports are subject to adjustments and may change.

Revenue

e All special assessments collected have been transferred to the proper funds as of the end of August. Taxes
collected to date have been recorded in the Tax Fund. Collections received for the schools and Wayne County
have been disbursed though 11-15-16.

e Other such revenues as cable franchise, equipment rental, metro authority, drug subsidy refunds, and judge
standardization payments. Revenue sharing has not been reported for November as State Shared Revenue is
now being diverted to US Bank until the new 2015B bond commitment is met. Any excess is returned to the city.

* Please keep in mind that as of the first week of the month, some receivables or payables are still being recorded:
Consider these numbers preliminary until the bank reconciliations are performed.

¢ November is net negative for cash flow with regards to revenue vs. expenses. Expenses were $707,915 more
than Revenues for the month. As of November 30th over 94.3% of summer taxes have been recorded in the
general fund.
Expenditures

e City adopts expenditures on a departmental budget, therefore; all variances will be addressed at that level
(individual line items reviewed to determine departmental variances).

¢ No budget is over the 20% threshold for the month of November.

e The November pension payment has been paid in accordance with the schedule established in the December
2015 actuary report.

¢ The total General Fund Actual revenues received to date are at 49.2% compared to budget.

e Total General Fund Actual expenditures to date are at 36.96% compared to budget.

Please feel free to contact me at (313) 928-3236 if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Bol Gady
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Ch 83

BALANCE SHEET FOR CITY OF ALLEN PARK Pag 1/22
Period Ending 11/30/2016

12/05/2016 11:21 AM
User: rcady
DB: Allen Park

Fund 101 GENERAL FUND

GL Number Description Balance

k¥ Assels ¥

101-000-001-000 CASH IN BANK-GENERAL FUND 3,204,681.56
101-000-001-100 CASH FSA FLEXIBLE SPENDING 39, 85015
101-000-002-000 CASH - PAYROLL 186, 735:51
101-000-004-000 PETTY CASH 1;550.00
101-000-004-100 PETTY CASH-COMMUNITY CENTER 500.00
101-000-006-000 INVESTMENTS 5,465,649.66
101-000-007-000 CASH - RESTRICTED 626,482.90
101-000-028-000 TAXES - DEL REAL CTY CHGBACK AR {11,:239.51)
101-000-030-000 ACCOUNTS REC - DISTRICT CCURT 237,388.72
101-000-050-000 PREPAID EXPENSE-OTHER 2,882.96
101-000-076-000 DUE FROM STATE OF MICHIGAN 437,635.00
101-000-084-000 DUE FROM US BANK 0.26
101-000-084-249 DUE FROM BUILDING FUND {37.82)
101-000-084-592 D/F WATER & SEWER FUND 391.28
101-000-084-703 D/F SCHOOL & COUNTY TAX FUND 26,411.81
Total Assets 10,218,882.48
**% Liabilities ***
101-000-202-000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 3,020.97
101-000-214-250 DUE TO DDA FUND 24,388.22
101-000-214-592 DUE TO WATER/SEWER FUND 391.28
101-000-215-000 DUE TO STATE OF MICHIGAN 2,825.00
101-000-231-150 VOLUNTARY LIFE INS 67.28
101-000-231-255 BASIC FLEX FSA/HRA 5. 23380.19
Total Liabilities 36,030.94
*** Fund Balance ***
101-000-3920-000 FUND BALANCE 5,909,442.92
101-000-393-000 FUND BALANCE-DESIGNATED 308,578.00
Total Fund Balance 6,218,020.92
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 6,218,020.92
Net of Revenues VS8 Expenditures - 15-16 1,084,776.62
*15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB 7,302,797.54
Net of Revenues V8 Expenditures - Current Year 2,880,054.00
Ending Fund Balance 10,182,851.54
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 10,218,882.48

* Year Not Closed



12/05/2016 11:21 &M BALANCE SHEET FOR CITY OF ALLEN PARK Pag

User: rcady Period Ending 11/30/2016
DB: Allen Park

Fund 202 MAJOR STREET FUND

GIL Number Descripticn Balance

2/22

¥** pgsets *HF

202-000-001-000 CASH IN BANK-MAJOR ROADS 649,133.51

Total Assets 649,133.51

*** Liabilities ***

Total Liabilities $.00

*%% Fund Balance ***

202-000-390-000 FUND BALANCE 879,424.52
Total Fund Balance 879,424 .52
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-=1§4 879,424 _52
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16 {(242,354.24)
*15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB 637,070.28
Net of Revenues V3 Expenditures - Current Year 12,063.23
Ending Fund Balance 649,133 .51
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 649,133.51

* Year Not Closed



12/05/2016 11:21 AM BALANCE SHEET FOR CITY O ALLEN PARK Pag

User: rcady Period Ending 11/30/2016
DB: Allen Park

Fund 203 LOCAL STREET FUND

GL Number Description Balance

3/22

*** hssets YHF

203-000-001-000 CASH IN BANK-LOCAL ROADS {873,543.986)

Total Assets {B73,543.96)

*x% Liabilities ***

Total Liabilities 0.00

*** Fund Balance *¥¥*

203-000-390-000 FUND BALANCE 652,984.17
Total Fund Balance 652,984 .17
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 652,984 .17
Net of Revenues V8 Expenditures - 15-16 41,080.58
*15-16 End FEB/16-~17 Beg FB 694,065.15
Net of Revenues V8 Expenditures - Current Year (1,567,609.11)
Ending Fund Balanga {873,543.96)
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance {873,543.96)

* Year Not Closed



12/05/2016 11:21 AM BALANCE SHEET FOR CITY OF ALLEN PARK Pag 4/22

User: rcady Period Ending 11/30/2016
DB: Allen Park

Fund 205 POLICE AND FIRE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUND

GL Number Description Balance

*** Assets ***

205-000-001-000C CASH/MUN INVEST FUND 15,267.59

Total Assets 15,267.59

*** Liabilities ***

Total Liabilities 0.00

*** Fund Balance ***

Total Fund Balance 0.00
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 0.00
Net of Revenues V5§ Expenditures - 15-16 0.00
*15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB 0.00
Net of Revenues V8 Expenditures - Current Year 15,267.59
Ending Fund Balance 15,267.59
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 15,267.59

* Year Not Closed



12/05/2016 11:21 AM BALANCE SHEET FOR CITY OF ALLEN PARK Pag 5/22

User: rcady Period Ending 11/30/2016
DB: Allen Park

Fund 226 RUBBISH FUND

GL Mumber Description Ralance

*** PAgsets ***

226-000-001-000 CASH IN BANK-RUBBISH FUND 931,458.34

Total Assets 931,458.34

*** Liabilities ***

Total Liabilities 0.00

*** PFund Balance ***

226-000-33%0-000 FUND BALANCE 1,127.57
Total Fund Balance 7,127.57
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 7,127.57
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16 25,393.50
*15~16 End FB/16~17 Beg FB 32,521.07
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year B98,937.27
Ending Fund Balance 931,458.34
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 931,458.34

* Year Not Closed



12/05/2016 11:21 aM BERLANCE SHEET FOR CITY OF ALLEN PARK Pag 6/22

User: rcady Period Fnding 11/30/2016
DR: Allen Park

Fund 243 BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

GL Number Description Balance

***% Bssets ***

243-000-001-000 CASH/MUN INVEST FUND 2,508,188.01

Total Assets 2,508,188.01

**% ILiabilities ***

Total Liakilities 0.00

**+ Fund Balance ***

243-000-390-000 FUND BALAMNCE 1,593,737.22
Total Fund Balance 1,593,737.22
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 1,593,737.22
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16 174,011.52
¥15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB 1,767,748.74
Net of Revenues VS8 Expenditures - Current Year 740,439.27
Ending Fund Balance 2,508,188.01
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 2,508,188.01

* Year Not Closed



12/05/2016 11:21 AM BALANCE SHEET FOR CITY OF ALLEN

User: rcady Period Ending 11/30/2016
DB: Allen Park

Fund 249 BUILDING FUND

PARK

Pag

7/22

GL Number Description Balance
xXE Agsets ERR
249-000-001-000 CASH IN BANK-BUILDING FUND 867,608.06
249-000-006-000 J FUND INVESTMENT 100,000.00
Total Assets 967,608.06
**% Liabilities ***
249-000-202-000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 900.00
249-000-214-101 DUE TO G/F (37.82)
249-000-246-000 PLANNING/ZONING REVIEW ESCROW 20,702.10
Total Liabilities 21,564.28
**% Fund Balance ***
249-000-390-000 FUND BALANCE 642,311.52
Total Fund Balance 642,311.52
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 642,311.52
Net of Revenues V8 Expenditures - 15-16 119,801.03
*15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB 762,112.55
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year 183,931.23
Ending Fund Balance 946,043.78
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 967,608.06

* Year Not Closed



12/05/2016 11:21 AM BALANCE SHEET FOR CITY OF ALLEN PARK Pag 8/22

User: rcady Period Ending 11/30/2016
DB: Allen Park

Fund 250 DDA OPERATING

GL Number Description Balance

K¥¥ Asgets AW

250-000-001-000 CASH IN BANK-DDA FUND 997,318.25
250-000-084-101 DUE FROM GENERAL FUND 24,388.22
250-000-130-000 LAND 84,293.00
250-000-132-011 DDA SITE IMP. - VAR. PROJECTS 11,798,348.82
250-000-133-011 ACCUM DEPR - DDA SITE IMP (6,170,369.59)
250-000-136-000 BUILDINGS 386,721.00
250-000-137-011 ACCUM DEPR - BUILDINGS (147,780.02)
250-000-146-011 FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT - DDA 17,816.00
250-000-147-011 ACCUM DEPR - FURN AND EQUIP (17,816.00)

Total Assets 6,972,919.68

*** Liabilities ***

250-000-300-100 BONDS PAYABLE - DDA 05 DOWNTOWN DEV 2,925,000.00

Total Liabilities 2,925,000.00

*** pFund Balance ***

250-000-390-000 FUND BALANCE 1,186,027 .93
250-000-399-000 NET ASSETS - INVEST CAP ASSET NET DEBT 2,458,573.00
Total Fund Balance 3,644,600.93
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 3,644,600.93
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16 65,476.00
*15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB 3,710,076.93
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year 337,842.75
Ending Fund Balance 4,047,919.68
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 6,972,919.68

* Year Not Closed



12/05/2016 11:21 aM BALANCE SHEET FOR CITY OF ALLEN PARK Pag

User: rcady Period Ending 11/30/20186
DB: Allen Park

Fund 265 DRUG FORFEITURE - FEDERAL

GL Number Descriptien Balance

9/22

¥%* Aggets ***

265-000-001-000 CASH IN BANK-DRUG FORFEITURE 265 125,083.290

Total Assets 125,083.20

*** Tiabilities *¥*

Total Liabilities ¢.00

*#% Fund Balance ***

265-000-320-000 FUND BALANCE 233,991.68
Total Fund Balance 233,991 68
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 233,991.68
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16 (57,461.,07)
*15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB 176,530.61
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year (51,447.41)
Ending Fund Balance 125,083.20
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 125,083.20

* Year Not Closed



12/05/2016 11:21 AM BALANCE SHEET FCR CITY OF ALLEN PARK Pag 10/22

User: rcady Period Ending 11/30/2016
DB: Allen Park

Fund 266 DRUG FORFEITURE - STATE

GL Number Description Balance

**% hgsetsg *EE

266-000-001-000 CASH IN BANK-DRUG FORFEITURE 266 338,850.98

Total Assets 338,850.98

*** Liabilities **~*

Total Liabilities Q.00

*** Pund Balance ***

266-000-3%0-000 FUND BALANCE 297,420.03
Total Fund Balance 297,420.03
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 297,420.03
Net of Revenues V8 Expenditures - 15-16 27,835.88
*15-16 End FB/16~17 Beg FB 325,255.91
Net of Revenues V8 Expenditures - Current Year 13,595.07
Ending Fund Balance 338,850.98
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 338,850.98

* Year Not Closed



12/05/2016 11:21 AM BALANCE SHEET FOR CITY OF ALLEN PARK Pag 11/22

User: rcady Period Ending 11/30/2016
DB: Allen Park

Fund 267 DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT - OWI

GL Number Description Balance

#* ko ASSetS B

267-000-001-000 CASH IN BANK-DRUG FORFEITURE 267 18,088.36

Total Assets 18,088.36

#*#* Liabilities ***

Total Liabilities 0.00

*** Fund Balance ***

267-000-3920-000 FUND BALANCE 17,313.36
Total Fund Balance 17,313.36
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 17,313.36
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16 775.00
*15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB 18,088.36
Net of Revenues VS8 Expenditures - Current Year 0.00
Ending Fund Balance 18,088.36
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 18,088.36

* Year Not Closed
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User: rcady Period Ending 11/30/2016

DB: Allen Park
Fund 271 LIBRARY

Pag

12/22

GL Number Description Balance
*** Dgsets *x*
271-000-001-000 CASH IN BANK-LTIBRARY FUND 363,333.84
271-000-002-000 PETTY CASH 150.00
Total Assets 363,483 .84
***% Tiabilities *+**
Total Liabilities 0.00
*** Fund Balance ***
271-000-3%0-000 FUND BALANCE 313,518.60
Total Fund Balance 313,518.60
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 313,518.60
Net of Revenues VS8 Expenditures - 15-16 (135,239, 14)
*15-16 End FE/16-17 Beg FB 178,279.46
Net of Revenues V8 Expenditures - Current Year 185,204, 38
Ending Fund Balance 363,483.84
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 363,483.84

* Year Not Closed
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User: rcady period Ending 11/30/2016
DB: Allen Park

Fund 3892 COMMUNITY CENTER DEBT SERVICE

GL Number Description Balance

*E* Dgseotbs *A*

392-000-00i-000 CASH IN BANK-COMMUNITY CTR DEBT 281,102.13

Total Assets 281,102.13

**% Liabilities *¥¥*

Total Liabilities 0.00

*** Pund Balance *%*

392-000-320-000 FUND BALANCE 159,668.90
Total Fund Balance 159,668. 90
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 159,668.90
Net of Revenues VS8 Expenditures - 15-16 15,296.28
*15-16 End FB/l6-17 Beg FB 174,965.18
Net of Revenues VS8 Expenditures - Current Year 106,136.95
Ending Fund Balance 281,102.13
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 281,102.13

* Year Not Closed



12/05/2016 11:21 AM

User: rcady
DB: Allen Park

BALANCE SHEET FOR CITY OF ALLEN PARK

Period Ending 11/30/2016

Fund 592 WATER & SEWER

Pag

14/22

GL Number Description Balance
*** hAssets ***
582-000-001-000 CASH IN BANK-WATER & SEWER FUND (20,833.44)
542-000-001-200 CASH IN BANK-EPA JUDGEMENT LEVY 2,018,254.54
592-000-001-600 CASH IN BANK-DISTRICT 1 SEWER CASH 741,667.08
592-000-002-000 CASH IN BANK-2002 GEN OBL CONST FUND 72.25
592-000-004-000 PETTY CASH 200.00
592-000-031-000 ACCQUNTS RECEIVABLE 65,511.49
592-000-033-000 UNBILLED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 1. 057, 97167
592-000-084-101 DUE FROM GENERAL FUND 391.28
592-000-100-000 DEPOSITS WITH WAYNE COUNTY 2,055,681.00
592-000-102-000 DISCOUNT ON BONDS 9,000.00
592-000-103-000 DISCOUNT ON BONDS - 2005 5,198.95
592-000-136-000 BUILDINGS 2;367:858.37
592-000-137-011 ACCUM DEPR - BUILDINGS (1,0668,857.80)
592-000-140-000 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 25 19308750
592-000-142-000 CUSTOMER ACCQUNTS RECEIVABLE 1,369,349.25
592-000-147-000 CURRENT TAX ROLL 158; 251 .81
592-000-147-011 ACCUM DEPR - FURN AND EQUIP (1,749,500.51)
592-000-154-000 INVENTORY SUPPLIES 107, 975,95
592-000-160-000 CIP-WATSON PUMP STATION 51,954.00
592-000-190-000 CASH IN BANK-RESTRICTED BASIN/SEWER 844,171.19
592-000-191-000 CASH IN BANK-RESTRICT.2002 GOLT DEBT 157,269.65
592-000-195-000 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 1,341,530.78
592-000-342-000 LAND - WATER 60,000.00
592-000-343-000 IMPROVEMENTS - MAINS 80,052,989.24
592-000-343-100 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION - INFRASTRUCTUR (21,817,681.82)
592-000-345-000 METERS 2,283,194.90
592-000-345-500 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION - METERS (2,083,553.78)
Total Assets 69,601,152.75
*** Liabilities #***
592-000-211-000 ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE 129,917.26
592-000-214-101 DUE TO G/F 391.28
592-000-217-000 OPEB LIABILITY 3,467,242.03
592-000-218-000 PENSTION LIABILITY 3,351,749.33
592-000-243-000 COMPENSATED ABSENCES PAYABLE 53,361.04
592-000-250-000 DOWNRIVER SEWER - JUDGMENT BONDS PAYABLE 13,312,580.00
592-000-250-002 GO BONDS - 2002, 2005 3,315,000.00
592-000-250-003 BONDS PAYABLE - SRF 2009 10,210, 881..00
592-000-275-000 REFUNDABLE UTILITY PAYMENTS (2,086.94)
592-000-339-000 DEFERRED INFLOWS 2165224
Total Liabilities 34,055,262.47
*** Fund Balance ***
592-000-215-001 DESIGNATED 2002 GOLT DEBT PYMT 157,269.65
592-000-215-002 RESERVE F/REPL.-BASIN/SEWER 34, L7119
592-000-216-000 RETAINED EARNINGS - UNRESTRICTED 34,645,457.21
Total Fund Balance 35,646,898.05
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 37,804,451.05
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16 (1,355,409.36)
Fund Balance Adjustments - 15-16 (2,157,553.00)
*15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB 34,291,488.69
Net of Revenues V8 Expenditures - Current Year 1,254,401.59
Fund Balance Adjustments 0.00
Ending Fund Balance 35,545,890.28
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 69,601,152.75

* Year Not Closed
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User: rcady Period Ending 11/30/2016
DB: Allen Park

Fund 593 SCUTHFIELD LEASE PROPERTIES

GL Number Description Balance

*kk Assebg **¥F

593-000-001-000 CASH IN BANK-SOUTHFIELD LEASE PROP 842,936.86
593-000-001-400 UNSPENT BOND PROCEEDS 861,766.70
593-000-006-000 J FUND INVESTMENT 3,981,619.04
593-626-034-000 LAND CONTRACT REVEIVABLE 4,635,741.46

Total Assets 10,322,064.06

**x* Liabilities ***

593-000-211-000 ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE 358,386.67
593-000-265-001 BONDS PAYABLE - 2009 AB 9,640,000.00
593-000-265-003 BONDS BAYABLE - 2010 2,430,000.00
563-000-265-004 BONDS PAYABLE - 2015 AB 16,750,000.00

Total Liabilities 29,178,386.67

*** Fund Balance ***

593-000-390-000 FUND BALANCE (16,706,456.58)
Total Fund Balance (16,706,456.58)
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 (16,706,456 .58)
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16 (1,757,852.96)
*15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB (18,464,309.54)
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year (392,013.07)
Ending Fund Balance (18,856,322.61)
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 10,322,064.06

* Year Not Closed
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Period Ending 11/30/2016

Fund 701 TRUST AND AGENCY

GL Number Description Balance

tx* Assebs *A*
701-000-001-000 CASH IN BANK-TRUST AND AGENCY 350,132.21
Total Assets 350,132.21

*** Tiabilities ***

701-000-240-000 BLOCK GRANT REHAB. ESCROW 12,146.00
701-000-241-000 HISTORICAL MUSEUM ESCROW 11,162.50
701-000-242-000 CITY FESTIVITIES ESCROW 74,576.00
701-000-243-000 50TH ANNIVERSARY ESCROW 2,588.42
701-000-244-000 FIREWORKS DONATIONS ESCROW 2,141.04
701-000-244-100 UNITY GROUNDBREAKING 258.54
701-000-244-200 CERT DONATIONS 1,226.30
701-000-245-000 PARKS & RECREATION ESCROW 13,;213:.14
701-000-246-000 PLANNING/ZONING REVIEW ESCROW 12,752.80
701-000-246-500 ENGINEERING ESCROW 160,805, 52
701-000-247-000 ELECTION EQUIP. ESCROW 10:27).35
701-000-248-000 PARKS & REC FOUNDATION ESCROW 13,003.07
701-000-248-001 LIGHTED CHRISTMAS PARADE ESCROW 375.01
701-000-249-000 FLOWER BED ESCROW 12,282.53
701-000-250-000 MEMORTAIL TREE ESCROW 2;075.60
701-000-251-000 CITY CHAPLAIN CORP ESCROW 249.15
701-000-252-000 ANIMAL SHELTER ESCROW 1,546.88
701-000-252-001 REFUNDABLE ORDIN. STERIL FEES 5,240.00
701-000-253-000 BEAUTIFICATION COMM ESCROW 5,707.64
701-000-254-000 POLICE DONATIONS 980.00
701-000-255-000 FIRE DONATIONS 767100

Total Liabilities 350,221.89

*** Fund Balance ***

701-000-390-000 FUND BALANCE (89.68)

Total Fund Balance (89.68)

Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 (89.68)

Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16 0.00

*15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB (89.68)

Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year 0.00

Ending Fund Balance (89.68)

Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 350,132.21

* Year Not Closed
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Period Ending 11/30/2016

Fund 703 SCHOOL AND COUNTY TAX FUND

GL Number Description Balance

* ok ok Assets * kK

703-000-001-000 CASH IN BANK-TAX FUND 321,576.74

Total Assets 321,576.74

*** Liabilities ***

703-000-214-101 DUE TO GENERAL FUND 92,686.19
703-000-214-203 DUE TO LOCAL MVH 452.34
703-000-214-205 DUE TO POLICE & FIRE SPEC. ASSES. 96,329.01
703-000-214-226 DUE TO RUBBISH 15,988.59
703-000-214-271 DUE TO LIBRARY FUND 5,329.55
703-000-214-392 DUE TO COMM.CENTER.DEBT.RETIRE (87.42)
703-000-214-592 DUE TO WATER/SEWER FUND (633.64)
703-000-225-008 DUE TO SCHOOLS 7,598.67
703-000-235-000 DUE TO WAYNE CO.-COMM. COLLEGE 770.97
703-000-236-000 DUE TO WAYNE CO.- RESA/ISD 21;775.38
703-000-237-000 DUE TO WAYNE CO.- H.C.M.A. 50.95
703-000-239-000 DUE TO WAYNE CO. - VET 8.63
703-000-240-000 DUE TO WAYNE CO. -S.E.T. 3,076.58
703-000-241-000 DUE TO WAYNE CO.-OPERATING 54,752.90
703-000-242-000 DUE TO WAYNE CO.-TRANSIT AUTH. 28793
703-000-243-000 DUE TO WAYNE CO.-PARKS 58.35
703-000-243-100 DUE TO WAYNE CQOUNTY - ZOO 23579
703-000-243-200 DUE TO WAYNE CTY - ARTS {(DIA) 47.59
703-000-243-300 DUE TO WAYNE CTY - JAILS 22310
703-000-243-400 DUE TO WC - JUDGMENT LEVY 270.10
703-000-275-000 REFUNDABLE TAXES 3436285
703-000-420-010 DUE TO WAYNE CO.-DEL.OPERATING 1.,.529.,99
703-000-420-020 D/T WAYNE CO.-DEL. COMM. COLL. 923.65
703-000-420-030 D/T WAYNE CO.-RESA 762.64
703-000-420-040 D/T WAYNE CO.-DEL. H.C.M.A. 04.23
703-000-420-050 D/T WAYNE CO. - DEL. JAIL 281.29
703-000-420-060 D/T WAYNE CO. - DEL. S.E.T. Tp321 .26
703-000-420-070 DELINQ PERS - EPA JUDGMENT 542.76
703-000-420-080 D/T WAYNE CO. - DEL. TRAN.AUTH 222.30
703-000-420-090 D/T WAYNE CO.-DEL. PARKS 13.33
703-000-420-095 D/T WAYNE CO. - DEL. VETERANS 10.25
703-000-420-100 D/T ALLEN PARK-#9 DEL. PERS. 3,004.43
703-000-420-110 D/T MELVINDALE-#11 DEL.PERS. 1.87..32
703-000-420-120 D/T SOUTHGATE—-#7 DEL.PERS. 72.34
703-000-420-130 DELINQ PERS-LIBRARY 186.58
703-000-420-140 DELINQ PERS-ADMIN FEE 141.54
703-000-420-150 DELINQ PERS-CITY OPERATING 20310 .22
703-000-420-155 DELINQ PERS-RUBBISH FUND 516.62
703-000-420-180 DELINQ PERS - COMM CENTER DEBT 123.3%
703-000-420-120 DELINQUENT ZOO AUTHORITY TAX 29.98
703-000-420-195 D/T WAYNE CO. - DEL. ART AUTHORITY 56.57
703-000-420-200 DELINQ PERS-DIST ONE SEWER 233.80
703-000-420-210 DELINQ PERS-FIRE/POLICE 1,600.01
703-000-420-220 DELINQ PERS - 09 FLOODING JUDGMENT 3.21
703-000-420-230 DELINQ PERS—JUDGMENT TAX LEVY 637
703-000-446-101 D/T CITY -INTEREST 4,925.75

Total Liabilities 321,576.74

*** Fund Balance ***

Total Fund Balance 0.00

Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 0.00

Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16 0.00

*15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB 0.00

Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year 0.00

Ending Fund Balance 0.00



12/05/2016 11:21 AM BALANCE SHEET FOR CITY OF ALLEN PARK Pag

User: rcady Period Ending 11/30/2016
DB: Allen Park
Fund 703 SCHOOL AND COUNTY TAX FUND

GL Number Description Balance

18/22

Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 321 ,576.74

* Year Not Closed
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User: rcady Period Ending 11/30/2016
DB: Allen Park

Fund 731 PENSION

GL Number Description Balance

¥R hSets ek

731-000-017-000 INVESTMENTS HELD IN TRUST 81,580,182.20
731-000-032-000 ACCRUED INTEREST 129,535.09
Total Assets 81,709,717.29

*** Pund Balance ***

731-000-378-000 POLICE & FIRE MEMBERS SAVINGS 3,843,236.09
731-000-378-010 GENERAL MEMBERS SAVINGS 512;511 .44
731-000-378-020 WATER MEMBERS SAVINGS 439,871.74
731-000-378-030 24TH DIST. COURT MEM. SAVINGS 663;180.55
731-000-378-040 DEFERRED GEN. MEMBERS SAVINGS 767,031.89
731-000-378-050 DEFERRED SAVINGS - LAID OFF EMPLOYEES 56,014.71
731-000-379-000 POLICE & FIRE PENSION RESERVE 28,901,480.33
731-000-379-001 GEN-WATER-CT PENSION RESERVE 13,879,423.00
731-000-379-010 RETIREES ACTURIAL RESERVE 33,;113,356.56
731-000-390-000 FUND BALANCE 35 149, 326,55
Total Fund Balance 85,925,432.86
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 85,925,432.86
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16 (4,209,506.46)
*15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB 81,715,926.40
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year {52,537.05)
Ending Fund Balance 81,663,389.35
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 81,663,389.35
Oout of Balance: 46,327.94

* Year Not Closed
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User: rcady Period Ending 11/30/2016
DB: Allen Park

Fund 736 RETIREE HEALTHCARE

GL Number Description Balance

Fx O Assets A

736-000-001-000 CASH/MUN TNVEST FUND 537,471.00
736-000-032-000 INTEREST RECEIVABLE 53.57
Total Assets 537,524.57

**#* Liabilities ***

Total Liabilities ¢.00

*** pund Balance ***

Total Fund Balance 0.00
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 0.00
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16 518,101.40
*15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB 518,101.40
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year 19,423.17
Ending Fund Balance 537,524.57
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 537,524 .57

* Year Not Closed
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Period Ending 11/30/2016

Fund 900 GASB 34 - FIXED ASSETS

GL Number Descriptioen Balance
E Assets * kK

900-000-130-000 LAND 1...00
900-000-131-000 LAND - SINCE 1976 134,062.31
900-000-131-001 LAND-SINCE 1976 SR. HOUSING 68,050.00
900-000-132-000 LAND IMPROVEMENTS 64,307.75
900-000-132-001 PARKING LOT IMP. CIVIC ARENA 92,591.07
900-000-132-002 CITY CENTRAL BUS. DISTRICT #1 560,493.75
900-000-132-003 RECREATION-LAND IMPROVEMENTS 1,144,859.22
900-000-132-004 DDA SITE IMP.-ALLEN RD.OFFICE 327-123.00
900-000-132-005 DDA SITE IMP.-WARWICK/ALLEN 264,873.04
900-000-132-006 DDA SITE IMP.BEATRICE ST. 702,693.79
900-000-132-007 DDA SITE IMP. - PARK AVE. 1,866,566.41
900-000-132-008 DDA VAR. LIGHTING ENHANCEMENTS 71;305:10
900-000-132-009 DDA SITE IMP. - SCOUTHFIELD MED 463,012.49
900-000-132-010 ENTRANCE SIGNS 15,025.65
900-000-132-011 DDA SITE IMP. - VAR. PROJECTS 5,013,765.26
900-000-132-012 DDA -PPP PROJECT SHARED COSTS £0,:933..00
900-000-132-013 P.P.P. PROJECT - CITY CONTRIBUTIONS 1,081,281.74
900-000-134-000 CITY PROPERTY AT LARGE 75,275.94
900-000-136-001 BLDGS-COURT-6515 ROOSEVELT 2,129,861.00
900-000-136-002 C.H./POLICE/COURT FACILITIES 3,645,790.67
900-000-136-004 BLDGS/FIRE/DPS/WATER 701:590,20
900-000-136-007 BLDGS-ICE ARENA-15800 WHITE 7,988,943.64
900-000-136-008 BLDGS-LIBRARY-8100 ALLEN 341,354.00
900-000-136-009 BLDG. PUMP STATION 4245 ALLEN 427,575 .00
900-000-136-010 DPS NEW SERVICE CENTER GARAGE 816,809.00
900-000-136-011 FIRE STATION NO. 2 3822 .00
900-000-136-012 BUILDINGS - DDA 639,020.84
900-000-136-013 BLDGS. -SENIOR HOUSING 955,030:17
900-000-136-014 BLDGS-SR HOUSING MODERNIZATION 60,000.00
900-000-136-017 BLDGS. HISTORICAL MUSEUM ENGLE 150,448.97
900-000-140-001 MACH&EQUIP REC. PRTY IN OPEN 298,790.68
900-000-140-002 MACH. & EQUIP. DPS GARAGE 976,691.75
900-000-140-003 CIVIC ARENA EQUIPMENT 59;:501./90
900-000-140-004 MACH. &EQUIP. NEW SERVICE CTR. 100,879.45
900-000-140-008 EQUIP. RADIO BASE STA. AT DPS 19;133..00
900-000-140-009 MACH. EQUIP. - SENIOR HCQUSING T#473:00
900-000-146-001 FURN. & FIXTURES - CITY HALL 1;285;8717.65
900-000-146-002 FURN. & FIX. POLICE STATION 2,241,979.85
900-000-146-003 FURN. & FIX. FIRE/DPS/WATER 661,953,171
900-000-146-007 FURN. & FIX. LIB. 8100 ALLEN 452,273.25
500-000-146-008 FURN. & FIX. NEW SERVICE CTR 9,532.03
900-000-146-009 FURN. & FIX. SENIOR HOUSING 201,;500.19
%900-000-146-010 FURN,.&FIX.NEW CT. 6515 ROOSEVE 170,029.00
900-000-146-011 FURN. & FIX. DDA. BLDG. ALLEN 17,816 26
900-000-146-012 FURN/FIX.COMM.CENTER (WHITE) 183,164.80
900-000-148-000 VEHICLES 4,495,713.34
900-000-15%-000 LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS 120,379.44

Total Assets 41,119,215.31

*** Fund Balance ***

900-000-390-000 FUND BALANCE 41,119,215.31

Total Fund Balance 41,119,215.31

Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 41,119,215.31

Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16 0.00

*15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB 41,119,215.31

Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year 0.00

Ending Fund Balance 41,119,215.31

Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 41,115,215.31

* Year Not Closed
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User: rcady Period Ending 11/30/2016
DB: Allen Park

Fund 950 950

GL Number Description Balance

*¥x Rggebsg #xd

950-000-184-000 AMT. AVAIL. IN SICK PAY FUND 0.47
950-000-186-000 AMT TO BE PROV. FOR RETIREMENT 20,;562; 118.73
950-000-187-000 AMOUNT AVAILABLE DEBT SVC FUNDS 3,249,477.56

Total Assets 23,811,596.76

*x* Liadbilities ¥%%

950-000-300-243 BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT BONDS 12,725,000.00
950-000-300-253 CAPITAL LEASES-TREASURER'S OFFICE (5,937.69)
950-000-300-392 2003 COMMUNITY CENTER 5,675,000.00
950-000-300-393 LEASE BONDS PAYABLE-CT.BLDG 135,000.00
950-000-300-394 DDA BOMNDS PAYABLE 3,810,000.00
950-000-343-001 COMP. ABSENCES PAYABLE-GEN'L 80,417.71
950-000-343-002 COMP. ABSENCES PAYABLE - APPOINTEES 23; 350,65
950-000-343-305 COMP. ABSENCES PAYABLE-POLICE 126, 991,02
950-000-343-310 COMP. ABS. PAY.VACATION-POLICE 59, 618,23
950-000-343-340 COMP. ABSENCES PAYABLE - FIRE 326,560.00
950-000-343-345 COMP. ABS.PAY.VACATION-FIRE 58,879.68
950-000-343-34¢ FIRE COMP TIME EARNED LIEU OF OVERTIME 196,680.16

Total Liabilities 23,811,596.76

*** Fund Balance ***

Total Fund Balance 0.00
Beginning Fund Balance - 15-16 0.00
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - 15-16 0.00
*15-16 End FB/16-17 Beg FB 0.00
Net of Revenues VS Expenditures - Current Year 0.00
Ending Fund Balance 0.00
Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 23,811,596.76

* Year Not Closed
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City of Allen Park

State of Michigan
Mark A. Kibby 16630 Southfield Road
City Administrator Suite 3100
mkibby(@cityofallenpark.org Allen Park, MI 48101
(P) 313-928-1883
To: Mayor and City Council

From: Mark A. Kibby, City Administrator
Date: December 8, 2016
Re: Contract with MDOT for [-75

The City has received the contract from the Michigan Department of Transportation
(MDOT) for roadway reconstruction along Interstate 75 within the corporate limits
of the City of Allen Park. Under Act 51 rules, the City is responsible for 8.75% of
MDOT’s cost after Federal Aid. The City’s estimated share of this project is
$339,900.00.

At this time, I am requesting authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the
contract between the City of Allen Park and the Michigan Department of

Transportation for roadway reconstruction along Interstate 75.

Thank you for your consideration on this matter.



STATE OF MICHIGAN
RICK SNYDER DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION KIRK T. STEUDLE

GOVERNOR DIRECTOR
LANSING BT

October 25, 2016

Mr. Michael I. Mizzi, City Clerk
City of Allen Park

16630 Southfield Road, Suite 3100
Allen Park, Michigan 48101

Dear Mr. Mizzi:
RE: Contract Number: 16-5469
Control Section:  IM 82191
Job Number: 126818A; 126818C; 126818D

Enclosed are the original and one copy of the above described contract between your organization and the
Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT). Please take time to read and understand this contract.

1. Do not date the contracts, MDOT will date the contracts when they are executed.

2. If this contract meets with your approval, secure the authorized signatures on the enclosed
contracts,

3. Attach two (2) original certified resolutions. The resolution should specifically name the officials
who are authorized to sign the contract and include the contract number. If you need an example
of a resolution, please contact Kathy Fulton at fultonk@michigan.gov or (517) 373-4161.

4. Return the signed original and one copy of the above-described contract and attach
two (2) original certified resolutions to:

Attention: Kathy J. Fulton

MDOT - Development Services Division, 2" Floor
425 West Ottawa Street, P.O. Box 30050

Lansing, MI 48909

In order to ensure that the work and payment for this project is not delayed, return the contracts within
35 days from the date of this letter, A copy of the executed contract will be returned to your organization.

If you have questions on the content of this contract, or revisions are required, please contact
Deirdre Thompson, Local Government Contract Engineer at thompsond@michigan.gov or
(517) 335-2265.

Enclosure

MURRAY D. VAN WAGONER BUILDING + P.0. BOX 30050 + LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909
www.michigan.gov » (517) 373-2090
LH-LAN-0 (01/11)
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FEDERAL AID PROGRESS PAYMENT Control Section IM 82191
Job Number 126818A; 126818C;
126818D
Federal Item KK4184; KK 3967
Federal Project IM 1682(304); (206)
Contract 16-5469
THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into this date of , by

and between the MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, hereinafter 1eferred to
as the "DEPARTMENT"; and the CITY OF ALLEN PARK, a Michigan municipal corporation,
hereinafter referred to as the "CITY"; for the purpose of fixing the rights and obligations of the
parties in agreeing to construction improvements located within the corporate limits of the CITY.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the parties hereto anticipate that payments by them and contributions by
agencies of the Federal Government or other sources will be sufficient to pay the cost of
construction or reconstruction of that which is hereinafter referred to as the "PROJECT" and
which is located and described as follows:

Roadway reconstruction along Highway 1-75 from the south CITY limit
approximately 2550 feet northerly and bridge replacement of Structure $27-1 of
82191 which carries northbound Highway I-75 over Goddard Road, Structure
S27-2 of 82191 which carries southbound Highway 1-75 over Goddard Road,
Structure B08 of 82191 which carries northbound Highway 1-75 over the Sexton
and Kilfoil Drains, and Structure B09 of 82191 which carries southbound
Highway I-75 over the Sexton and Kilfoil Drains including watermain relocation
work; together with necessary related work, located within the corporate limits of
the CITY; and

WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT presently estimates the PROJECT COST as hereinafter
defined in Section 1 to be: $38,848,600

WHEREAS, the parties hereto have reached an understanding with each other regarding
the performance of the PROJECT work and desire to set forth this understanding in the form of a
written agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual undertakings of
the parties and in conformity with applicable law, it is agreed:
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1. The CITY hereby consents to the designation of the PROJECT as a state trunkline
highway. The parties shall undertake and complete the construction of the PROJECT as a state
" trunkline highway in accordance with this contract. The term "PROJECT COST", as herein
used, is hereby defined as the cost of construction or reconstruction of the PROJECT including
the costs of preliminary engineering (PE), plans and specifications; acquisition costs of the
property for rights of way, including interest on awards, attorney fees and court costs; physical
construction necessary for the completion of the PROJECT as determined by the
DEPARTMENT;, and construction engineering (CE), legal, appraisal, financing, and any and all
other expenses in connection with any of the above.

2. The cost of alteration, reconstruction and relocation, including plans thereof, of
certain publicly owned facilities and utilities which may be required for the construction of the
PROJECT, shall be included in the PROJECT COST, provided, however, that any part of such
cost determined by the DEPARTMENT, prior to the commencement of the work, to constitute a
betterment to such facility or utility, shail be borne wholly by the owner thereof.

3. The CITY shall make available to the PROJECT, at no cost, all lands required
thereof, now owned by it or under its control for purpose of completing said PROJECT. The
CITY shall approve all plans and specifications to be used on that portion of this PROJECT that
are within the right of way which is owned or controlled by the CITY. That portion of the
PROJECT which lies within the right of way under the control or ownership by the CITY shall
become part of the CITY facility upon completion and acceptance of the PROJECT and shall be
maintained by the CITY in accordance with standard practice at no cost to the DEPARTMENT.
The DEPARTMENT assumes no jurisdiction of CITY right of way before, during or after
completion and acceptance of the PROJECT.

4, The parties will continue to make available, without cost, their sewer and drainage
structures and facilities for the drainage of the PROJECT.

5. The PROJECT COST shall be met in part by contributions from agencies of the
Federal Government. The balance of the PROJECT COST shall be charged to and paid by the
DEPARTMENT and the CITY in the following proportions and in the manner and at the times
hereinafter set forth:

DEPARTMENT -  91.25%
CITY - 8.75%

‘The PROJECT COST and the respective shares of the parties, after Federal-aid, is
estimated to be as follows:
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TOTAL BALANCE

ESTIMATED FEDERAL AFTER DEPT'S CITY'S

COST AID FEDERAL AID SHARE SHARE

Constr, & CE $34,366,100  $30,929,500 $3,436,600 $3,135,900  $300,700
PE $ 4.482.,500 § 4,034,300 $ 448200 §$_ 409,000 § 39.200
TOTAL $38,848,600  $34,963,800 $3,884,800 $3,544,900  $339,900

The PE costs will be apportioned in the same ratio as the actual construction award and
the CE costs will be apportioned in the same ratio as the actual direct construction costs.

Participation, if any, by the CITY in the acquisition of trunkline right-of-way shall be in
accordance with 1951 P.A. 51 Subsection 1d, MCL 247.651d. An amount equivalent to the
federal highway funds for acquisition of right-of-way, as would have been available if
application had been made thereof and approved by the Federal government, shall be deducted
from the total PROJECT COST prior to determining the CITY'S share. Such deduction will be
established from the applicable Federal-Aid matching ratio current at the time of acquisition.

6. The DEPARTMENT shall maintain and keep accurate records and accounts
relative to the cost of the PROJECT. The DEPARTMENT may submit progress billings to the
CITY on a monthly basis for the CITY'S share of the cost of work performed to date, less all
payments previously made by the CITY. No monthly billings of a lesser amount than $1,000
shall be made unless it is a final or end of fiscal year billing. All billings will be labeled either
"Progress Bill Number ", or "Final Billing". Upon completion of the PROJECT,
payment of all items of PROJECT COST and receipt of all Federal Aid, the DEPARTMENT
shall make a final billing and accounting to the CITY.

7. In order to fulfill the obligations assumed by the CITY under the provisions of
this contract, the CITY shall make prompt payments of its share of the PROJECT COST upon
receipt of progress billings from the DEPARTMENT as herein provided. The CITY shall be
billed for their share of the preliminary engineering costs upon award of the PROJECT. All
payments will be made within 30 days of receipt of billings from the DEPARTMENT. Billings
to the CITY will be based upon the CITY'S share of the actual costs incurred less Federal Aid
earmed as the work on the PROJECT progresses.

8. Pursuant to the authority granted by law, the CITY hereby irrevocably pledges a
sufficient amount of funds received by it from the Michigan Transportation Fund to meet its
obligations as specified herein. If the CITY shall fail to make any of its required payments when
due, as specified herein, the DEPARTMENT shall immediately notify the CITY of the fact of
such default and the amount thereof, and, if such default is not cured by payment within ten (10)
days, the DEPARTMENT is then authorized and directed to withhold from the first of such
monies thereafter allocated by law to the CITY from the Michigan Transportation Fund
sufficient monies to remove the default, and to credit the CITY with payment thereof, and to
nolify the CITY in writing of such fact.

05/29/87 AFAFOR 10/17/16 3



9. The DEPARTMENT shall secure from the Federal Government approval of
plans, specifications, and such cost estimates as may be required for the completion of the
PROJECT; and shall take all necessary steps to qualify for Federal Aid such costs of acquisition
of rights of way, construction, and reconstruction, including cost of surveys, design, construction
engineering, and inspection for the PROJECT as deemed appropriate. The DEPARTMENT may
elect not to apply for Federal Aid for portions of the PROJECT COST.

10.  This contract is not intended to increase or decrease either party's liability, or
immunity from, tort claims.

11.  All of the PROJECT work shall be done by the DEPARTMENT.

12, In connection with the performance of the PROJECT work under this contract the
parties hereto (hereinafter in Appendix "A" refetred to as the "contracter”) agree to comply with
the State of Michigan provisions for "Prohibition of Discrimination in State Contracts", as set
forth in Appendix A, attached hereto and made a part hereof, The parties further covenant that
they will comply with the Civil Rights Acts of 1964, being P.L. 88-352, 78 Stat. 241, as
amended, being Title 42 U.S.C. Sections 1971, 1975a-1975d, and 2000a-2000h-6 and the
Regulations of the United States Department of Transportation (49 C.F.R. Part 21) issued
pursuant to said Act, including Appendix "B", attached hereto and made a part hereof, and will
require similar covenants on the part of any contractor or subcontractor employed in the
performance of this contract. The parties will carry out the applicable requirements of the
DEPARTMENT’S Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) program and 49 CFR, Part 26,
including, but not limited to, those requirements set forth in Appendix C.
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APPENDIX A
PROHIBITION OF DISCRIMINATION IN STATE CONTRACTS

In connection with the performance of work under this contract; the contractor agrees as follows:

I.

In accordance with Public Act 453 of 1976 (Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act), the
contractor shall not discriminate against an employee or applicant for employment with
respect to hire, tenure, treatment, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment or a
matter directly or indirectly related to employment because of race, color, religion,
national origin, age, sex, height, weight, or marital status. A breach of this covenant will
be regarded as a material breach of this contract. Further, in accordance with Public Act
220 of 1976 (Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act), as amended by Public Act 478
of 1980, the contractor shall not disctiminate against any employee or applicant for
employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment
or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment because of a disability that is
unrelated to the individual’s ability to perform the duties of a particular job or position. A
breach of the above covenants will be regarded as a material breach of this contract.

The contractor hereby agrees that any and all subcontracts to this contract, whereby a
portion of the work set forth in this contract is to be performed, shall contain a covenant
the same as hereinabove set forth in Section 1 of this Appendix.

The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants for employment and
employees are treated without regard to their race, color, religion, national origin, age,
sex, height, weight, marital status, or any disability that is unrelated to the individual’s
ability to perform the duties of a particular job or position, Such action shall include, but
not be limited to, the following: employment; trealiment; upgrading; demotion or transfer;
recruitment; advertising; layoff or (ermination; rates of pay or other forms of
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.

The contractor shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on
behalf of the coniractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for
employment without regard to race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height,
weight, marital status, or disability that is unrelated to the individual’s ability to perform
the duties of a particular job or position,

The contractor or its collective bargaining representative shall send to each labor union or
representative of workers with which the contractor has a collective bargaining
agreement or other contract or understanding a notice advising such labor union or
workers’ representative of the contractor’s commitments under this Appendix.

The contractor shall comply with all relevant published rules, regulations, directives, and
orders of the Michigan Civil Rights Commission that may be in effect prior to the taking
of bids for any individual state project.



The contractor shall furnish and file compliance reports within such time and upon such
forms as provided by the Michigan Civil Rights Commission; said forms may also elicit
information as to the practices, policies, program, and employment statistics of each
subcontractor, as well as the contractor itself, and said contractor shall permit access to
the contractor’s books, records, and accounts by the Michigan Civil Rights Commission
and/or its agent for the purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance under this
contract and relevant rules, regulations, and orders of the Michigan Civil Rights
Commission.

In the event that the Michigan Civil Rights Commission finds, after a hearing held
pursuant to its rules, that a contractor has not complied with the contractual obligations
under this contract, the Michigan Civil Rights Comynission may, as a part of its order
based upon such findings, certify said findings to the State Administrative Board of the
State of Michigan, which State Administrative Board may order the cancellation of the
contract found to have been violated and/or declare the contractor ineligible for future
contracts with the state and its political and civil subdivisions, departments, and officers,
including the governing boards of institutions of higher education, until the contractor
complies with said order of the Michigan Civil Rights Commission, Notice of said
declaration of future ineligibility may be given to any or all of the persons with whom the
contractor is declared ineligible to contract as a contracting party in future contracts. In
any case before the Michigan Civil Rights Commission in which cancellation of an
existing contract is a possibility, the contracting agency shall be notified of such possible
remedy and shall be given the option by the Michigan Civil Rights Commission to
participate in such proceedings.

The contractor shall include or incorporate by reference, the provisions of the foregoing
paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subconiract or purchase order unless exempted by
rules, regulations, or orders of the Michigan Civil Rights Cormmission; all subcontracts
and purchase orders will also state that said provisiens will be binding upon each
subcontractor or supplier.

Revised June 201 {




Incorporation of Provisions: The contractor shall include the provisions of Sections (1)
through (6) in every subcontract, including procurement of material and leases of
equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto, The
contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the
Department or the USDOT may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including
sanctions for non-compliance, provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes
involved in or is threatened with litigation fromn a subcontractor or supplier as a result of
such direction, the contractor may request the Departiment to enter into such [itigation to
protect the interests of the state, In addition, the contractor may request the United States
to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

Revised June 2011



APPENDIX C

TO BE INCLUDED IN ALL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
AGREEMENTS WITH LOCAL AGENCIES

Assurance that Recipients and Contractors Must Make
(Excerpts from US DOT Regulation 49 CFR 26.13)

A, Each financial assistance agreement signed with a DOT operating administration
(or a primary reciplent) must include the following assurance;

The reciptent shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color,
national origin, or sex in the award and performance of any US
DOT-assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE
program or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26, The recipient
shall take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR
Part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and
administration of US DOT-assisted contracts, The recipient’s
DBE program, as requited by 49 CFR Part 26 and as
approved by US DOT, is incorporated by reference in this
agreement,  Implementation of this program is a legal
obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as
a violation of this agrecment, Upon notification te the
reciplent of its failure to carry ont its approved program, the
department may impose sanctions as provided for under Part
26 and may, In appropriate cases, refer the matter for
enforcement under 18 U.8.C, 1001 and/or the Program Fraud
Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.).

B. Each contract MDOT signs with a contractor (and each subcontract the prime
contractor signs with a subcontractor) must include tive following assurance:

The contractor, sub reciplent or subcontractor shall not
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex
in the performance of this contract, The contractor shall carry
onf applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award
and administration of US DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by
the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material
breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of
this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems
appropriate,
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City of Allen Park

State of Michigan
Mark A. Kibby 16630 Southfield Road
City Administrator Suite 3100
mkibby(@cityofallenpark.org Allen Park, MI 48101
(P) 313-928-1883
To: Mayor and City Council

From: Mark A. Kibby, City Administrator
Date: December 8, 2016

Re: Wayne County Annual Permits

The City received the following three (3) annual permits from the Wayne County
Department of Public Services. The permits authorize the City to occupy and conduct
work in the Wayne County road rights-of-way, as well as close roads temporarily for
special events. They will need to be considered for approval individually.

1. Annual Maintenance Permit — A-17076
Authorizes the municipality to occupy Wayne County road rights-of-way for
the purpose of inspection, repair, and routine maintenance.

2. Annual Pavement Restoration Permit — A-17131
Authorizes the municipality to occupy Wayne County road rights-of-way for
the purpose of pavement repair and restoration.

3. Annual Permit for Special Events — A-17161
Grants preliminary authorization to the municipality to
a. Temporarily close a County road for a reasonable length of time for a
parade, marathon, festival, or similar activity;
b. Touse a County road as a detour for traffic around such activity taking place
on a non-County road;
c. Place a temporary banner within the County right-of-way.

Thank you for your consideration on these matters.



Warren C. Evans
County Executive , November 9, 2016

City Of Allen Park
16850 Southfield Road
Allen Park, M| 48101

RE: Annual Maintenance Permit - A-17076

Attention: Doug Morton

Enclosed is your Wayne County Annual Maintenance Permit package. The Annual Permit
authorizes a municipality to occupy Wayne County road rights-of-way for the purpose of
inspection, repair and routine maintenance of the following facilities which are under its
jurisdiction:

1. Sanitary sewer ingpection, repair and routine maintenance.

2. Water main inspection, repair, routine maintenance and installation of residential and

commercial water service connections (two-inch maximum diameter).
3. Application of dust palliatives.
4. Repair and replacement of existing sidewalks.

Note: A separate permit will be required for final pavement rapairs when pavement is broken
while making either eimergency or non-emergency repairs.

In addition to the Annual Permit, the package aiso includes the following aftachments, which are
incorporated by reference into the permit:

1. Scope of Work and Conditions for Municipal Maintenance Permits
2. General Conditions and Limitations of Permits

3. Indemnity and Insurance Attachment

4. Model Communily Resolution

Please review the insurance attachment carefully, since the insurance requitements have been
recently updated.

The WCDPS Permit Office has published its manual, Rufes, Specifications and Procedures for
Permit Construction. This manual replaces the Permit Specifications Document which was
attached to annual permits in previous years. The manual is also incorporated by reference into
this annual permit and is available online at:

hitp://'www.waynecounty.com/dps/construction_permits.him

Department of Public Services — Permit Oftice
33809 Michigan Avenue, Wayne, Ml 49184 m Phone (734) 595-6504 u Fux (734) 595-6356



As a condition of the annual permit, the County requires that your governing body pass a
blanket resolution of approval which

a) agrees to fulfill ail permit obligations and conditions

b) to the extent allowed by law, hold harmless and defends Wayne County and its officials
and employees against any and all damage claims, suits or judgments of any kind or
nature arising as a result of the permitted activity

¢} designates and authorizes an appropriate official of the requesting municipality to sign
the permit on its behalf.

Please return the original permit, signed and dated by the person authorized and designated by
the resolution, along with a cenrtified copy of the resolution and a copy of your certificate of
insurance, consistent with the requirements transmitted in this package. Type the name of the
designated signer below the signature line and submit these documents to:

Wayne County Department of Public Services
Permit Office
Attn: Ma. Janice Clarke
33809 Michigan Avenue
Wayne M1 48184

Once received, the Permit Coordinator wilt validate your permit and return an executed copy to
you for your files.

The Scope of Work and Conditions for Municipal Maintenance Permits requires that the Permit
Holder submit monthly reports of all work performed under this permit. These reports should be
faxed to 734.595.6356.

'if you have ény duestions fééardihg this An'nua‘ll Perm'ft: bieééé éontact me at ')’34.595.6504:" |
extension 2002,

Sincerely,

%m(%&,

Janice Clarke
Permit Coordinator

C: file

Attachments: Annual Permit
Scops of Work and Conditions for Municipai Maintanance Permits
General Conditions and Limitations of Permits
Indemnity and Insuranca Attachment
Model Community Resclution

Department of Public Services — Permit Office
33809 Michigan Avenue, Wayne, Ml 49184 & Phone (734} 593-6504 = Fax (734) 595-6356



PERMIT OFFICE PERMIT No.
33808 MICHIGAN AVE
WAYNE, Mi 48184, A-1 7076 —
PHONE (734) 595-6504 ISSUE DATE EXPIRES
FAX (734) 505-8356 :
72 HOURS BEFORE ANY 1/1/2017(12/31/2017
CONSTRUCTION. CALL REVIEW No. WORK ORDER
Various Stafi
(734) 566-6504, Ext: 2009 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES 79676
FOR INSPECTION PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT, OPERATE, USE AND/OR MAINTAIN _
PROLIFCT NAMF
ALLEN PARK - MAINTENANGE
LCCATION CITY/TWP
VARIOUS ROADS () ALLEN PARK

PERMIT HOLDER CONTRAGTOR
CITY OF ALLEN PARK i

16850 SOUTHFIELD ROAD
ALLEN PARK, MI 48101

CONTACT ! GONTACT
pOUG MORTON (313) 928-1400 | <BLANK>
DESCRIPTION OF PERMITTED ACTIVIT {72 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG, caLll Miss pia 1-800-482-7181, www.missdig.org)

TO OCCUPY THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF COUNTY ROADS FOR THE BELOW ACTIVITIES:

- SANITARY SEWER INSPECTION, REPAIR AND ROUTINE MAINTENANCE.

. WATERMAIN INSPECTION, REPAIR AND ROUTINE MAINTENANGE,

. DUST PALLATIVE, CALCIUM & SALT APPLICATIONS.

. SIDEWALK REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT.

- TO PERFORM STREET SWEEPING OPERATIONS DURING DAYLIGHT HOURS ONLY.

NbEWh -

REFER TO ATTACHMENTS REFERENCED BELOW FOR ANNUAL PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS.

ALL ACTUAL INSPECTION COSTS, INCLUDING OVERTIME, SUPERVISION, TESTING OF MATERIALS AND EMERGENCY WORK, IF REQUIRED,
SHALL BE BILLED TO THE PERMIT HOLDER.

ALL ATTACHMENTS ARE INCORPORATED BY REFERENGCE AS PART OF THIS PERMIT.

PAVEMENT REPAIRS REQUIRE A SEPARATE PERMIT AND ARE NOT TO BE COMPLETED UNDER THE TERMS OF THIS ANNUAL PERMIT.
PERMIT HOLDER AGREES TO SUBMIT MONTHLY REPORTS OF WORK PERFORMED UNDER THIS PERMIT.

ALL ACTUAL INSPECTION COSTS, INGLUDING OVERTIME, SUPERVISION, TESTING OF MATERIAL AND EMERGENCY WORK, IF REQUIRED,
SHALL BE BILLED.

FINANGIAL SUMMARY 'DEPQSITOR APPROVED PLANS PREPARED BY

PERMIT FEE .ooooeoo . $0.00

PLAN REVIEW FEE... §0.00 PLANS APPROVED BY DATE PLANS APPHOVED

PARK FEE... $0.00

OTHER FEE S $0.00 11/2017

=11 ¥To S £0.00 AEQUIRED ATTACHMENTS

INSPECTICN DEPOSIT. .o v $0.00 GENERAL CONDITIONS

OTHER BOND $0.00 LETTER OF CREDIT DEPOSITO SCOPE OF WORK AND CONDITIONS FOR
MUNICIPAL MAINTENANGCE PEAMITS

TOTAL COSTS .ot $6.00 INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE ATTACHMENT
SAMPLE COMMUNITY RESOLUTION
RULES, SPECIFICATIONS AND PROCEDURES

VOTAL GHECK AMOUNT FOR PERMIT GONSTRUCTION - AVAILABLE
ONLINE AT

30.00 WWA.WayNesounty.com/dps_engineering_cpoffice him
CASHIER DATE
/12017 (Pmu;rvmm OMNLY IF ACCOMPANIED

in considoration of tha Permil Holder and Contracior agresing 10 ablde and conform with all the terms and condrions hercin, @ Permit is horeby issuad to the abova namad to Consiruct, Operate, Use andfor
Mainlain within he Road Right of Way, County Easement, and/or County Propery. The permitted work described above shall be sccomplishad in accordance with the Approved Plans, Maps, Specificalions
and Statements filgd withh the Permit ffica which are intsgral to and made part of this Parmi. The General Conditions as weil as any Required Attachments are incorporated as part of this Pormit.

WAYNE COURTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES

DOUG MORTON I PREPARED BY
PERMT HOLDER / AUTHORIZED AGENT DATE
<BLANK> DATE VALIDATED BY  Mr. Ali Ajawac DATE

CONTRACTOR / AUTHORIZED AGENT



Wayne County Department of Public Services
Engineering Division — Permit Office

Conditions & Limitations of Permits

Plan Approval and Specifications: All work performed under the permnit shalt be done in accordance with the approsed plars, specifications, maps, stetements and special conditions fled with the County and skall comply

with Wayne County Specifications, as defined in the currert 34 County Ruy < gty g cedures fi mit Consitesien, claded as an attachment o this permit, the Wauyne Comnty Standurd Plans fuy
Lamit Consnnetion, and the MDOT Stamiard Specificatiows For Construction, o8 modified by WCDPS Special Provisions, and other WCDPS specifieations. Any shcation or problem which occurs as a cesult of the

constructon, operation, use and/or malntenanee of the facility in the right-of-way and is ot covered by the app:oved plans nor by the County's current Standards and Specifications shall be resotved by the Permit Holder as
directed and approved by the Permit Office. Any significent change to the plans must be approved by the Permil Office and is authorized only wher. an approved addendum is obtained Eom the Permit Office.

Fees: The Permit Holder shall be responsible for 2k fees aud costs incured by the Ceanty in connection with the permit and shall deposit payment for fees a2d costs as determined by the County at the lime the permit is
issned.

Bond: The Permit Hokder shall fumnish a bond in cash or Certified check in an amount acceptable 1o the County te guaraniee perfarmance under the conditicns of the perrit. The County may use all or sny portion of the
bond which shall be necessary ta cover any expense, including inspection costs of damage incurred by the County through the granting of the permk. Should the bord be Insufficient to cover the expenses and damages
incurred by the Couwnty, the Permit Holder shali pay such deficiency upon billing by the Cousty. If the bond amount exceeds (he expenses and damages incursed by the County, the excess portion will be retuned 1o the
Depositor. The excess performanice bond provided for herein, when i cannol be retumed, shall be deposited inio the County Road Fuskd a1 become a pact thereof, unless claimed by the Deposilor wittiin one year of the date
of satisfactory completion of the construction anthorized 5y the permit.

Insurance: The Permit Holder shall fuenish proof of Hability and property damage insurance in the foo and amounts acceptable to the Cowtty with Waytie County siamed a5 an insured parly. The Permmit Holder shall
maintain this insurance undil the permit is released, reveked or cancelied by the County.

Indemnification / Hold Harmiess: Sub-Section | herein applies to all Permit Helders except Municipalities. Sub-Saction 2 herein appiies to Municipalities only.

1. To the extent eliowed by law, the Permil Holder skall indemnify, hald harmless and defend Wayne County, its Depanment of Public Services, its offlcials and employees against any and ak claims, suits and Judgments to
which the Counly, the Department, its officiats and employees mey be subject 2nd for all costs and actaal attomey fees which may be lncurred on gecounl of igjury 1o persans or damag to jroperty, including property of
the County, whetter due to negligence of the Permil Bolder or to the joint negligence of the Permit Halcer and the County, arising owl of any ard all work pecformed under the permit, or in connection with work not
nuthorized by the permit, or resuliing from fablure 16 comply witk: the terms of the permil o arising out of the continued existence of the work product that is the subject of the permit. This ho'd harmless provision must
10t be construed 15 a waiver of any governmental immunity by the County.

2. To the extent allowed by 1aw, the Municlpality as Permit Holder shall ol harmiless and defend Wayne County, its Department of Public Services, its officials and employess, for the Muricipaiity’s own regligence,
lostiols acts. ewors, or pmissions, and the acts, evors, or omissions of any of its employees, on account of injury te persons ar dagage to property, including property of the County, arising out of any and all work
performed under the permit, or in connestion with work rot authorized by the permait, er resulting from fsiture to comply with the terms of the permit or arising oul of the contiaued existence of work product that is the
subject of (he parmit. Sub-section | above applies to contractors, subcontractars, consultants, o ngents of the Municipality, This hold Jarmless provision rust ret be construed as a waiver of 2ny govemmental immuity
by the Courty or the Municipality's, as provided by statute or modified by court decisicns,

Permit on Slte: The Permit Holder shali keep availzble a copy of the permit exd any sssocisted approved plans on site during permitted zctivities.

Notifteatlon for Start end Comipletion of Work: The permit shall not become operative witil it hns béen fully executed by the County. The Permit Helder shatl rotify fhe County before starting construction and shall notify
the Covniy when work is completed. The Permit Holder of their represcniative shall have copies of the execuled permit and approved plass in their possession on the job site at all tiues.

1. The Permit Holder shall provide ot least three (3) days advanced notice, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, 10 the Permiit Office prio: to the cormencement of any peritted activities by submitting a START OF
WORK NOTIFICATION form by mail. fax or e-mail. In ¢ertain instances, additional notice may be required by the Petmit Cffice. Inthe event that constructon work ceases for 2 period of time, then the Permit Holder
shall notify ths Wayne County Inspector 81 least 24 hours prior lo resuming work.

2. The Permit Holder shail comply with el] requirements cf the Miss Dig Statuie, MCL §460.701 ¢f seqy., as amended. The Permit Holder shalt call “MISS DIG", at (800) 4827161, at least 72 hours, excluding Saturdays,
Sundays and holideys, but not more than iwenty-one {21} calendar days, before starting any undergtound work. The Permit Holder assumes all 1esponsibility for damage 1o or inlerruption of underground Gtilities,

3. The Permit Holder shall call Wayne County Departmert of Public Services' Traffic Operations Office 8t (73) 935-2L54, at keast 72 howss prior. excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, bit not more than (weaty-one
(21) calendar days, before starting any underground work in the vicinily of any traffic sigral equipment owned, operated or maintainad by Wayne County.

Safety. The Perruil Holder agrees thit al. work under the permiit sball be performed in a safe maaner and to keep the area affected by the permil & & safe condition until the work is completed and accepted by the County.
The Permit Holder shall furnjsh, insiall and maintain al: necessary traffic controls and protection which are in accordance with tie current Manuak on Uniformn Traifie Control Devices (MUTCD). The Permnit Holder shall
conduet all activities and maintain all facilities as sec forth in the permit in 2 manner so 15 not 1o damage, impair, interfere with, or obstruct 4 public read or create 8 foreseeable ritk of harm to the traveling public. The Persnit
Holder shall comply with a1l epplicable OSHA and MIOSHA requirements.

Underground Utilities: The Permit Holer shall contact all ntilily owners regasding their facilities prior to staing work and shall coniply with all appEcable provisioas of Act 33, Public Acts of 1974. as amended. Wayne
County makes no warrarty either expressed or implied ss to the condition or suitability of sabsurface conditions or anty existing £seility which may be encountered during an excavation. The presence or absence of utilitles
Based on the best information availtbie and the Counly is not responsible fur the accuracy of this information. The Permit Hokler assumes all responsibifity for the interruption and damage to andergrovnd willtties, The
Pestt Holder is responsiale for proper disposal, in accordance with current regulatinns, of any malerial excavated from within the righ-of-way. Soch materials inciude, without Smitation, soils or grounawater ¢ontaminated
by petroleum products or ofhe: poilwants associated with sites identified by the MDEQ vr reported on appropriate release forms for underground swrage lanks.

Assignabillty: The persit is Reither transferable nor assigriable without the written consext of the County.

Limitation of Permit: The Applicact and the Permit Holder shall be responsible for obtsining end shall secure any permils ot permission necessary or required by law from State, federal or other local governmental agencies
and jurisdictions, corporations or individuals. These include, without limitatian, those pertaining to drains, inland takes and streams, wetlands, waodlands, food plains, filling. nojse regulation and hours of cperation. Issmance
of 2 Wayne Cownty permit does not suthorize activities otherwise regulated by State, federal or local agencies.

Access of Other Vehicles: The Permit Holder shall, at all Limes possible, maintain a minimuma of one acceplable access to ali abutting occupied pinperties, driveways and side streets urless otherwise specified on the
approved plans. The Permit Holder shall notify all owners or ovcupants of propenties whose access may be teraporarily disrupted during the permitted work. The local police, fire or ermergency service agencies shall define
acceptable access. The Permit Holder shall provide signing and other improvements necessary 1 easie adequate access until she roadway, drivewny or side streel is resiored, The Permit Holder shall conduct all operations so
4s lp minimize inconvenience to abuiting property owners, Wayne County reserves the right 10 szasonably restricl the progress of work by the Permit Holder based on the rate of 1oadway and right-of-way restoration,
including permanent or tempatacy pavernent. Weyne County may require that work be suspended until satisfaciory backfilling of open fenches or excavations has deen compitted and drivewsays, side streets and drainage
Testored.

Restoration: The Permit Holder agrees to restore the County road and road right-of-way, County drain easement or Coun:y park propey fo a condition equal 1o or better than its condition before work under the pETMit
began. IEahe Permuit Holder fails o satisfactorily restore the permitted work area, Wayre Comnty may take all practical actions necessary 1o provide reasonably safe ard convenient public travel, preservation of (ke roadway
and draingge, prevention of seil erosion and sedimentation, and elimination of auisarce 10 abuning property owners caused by the permitied aetivily. Security i the form of cash, & cenified check or surety bond shajl be
requined to secure the cost of restoring the disturbed portion of the right-of-way to an accepiable safe conditioa. The amount of the security shall be determined by Lhe Permit Office. In the event that a suspension of work will
be protracted or that the work will not bt completed by the Permit Holder, the Permit Holder shati restore the right-of-way Lo a condition simitar to the condition that existed prior o issuance of the peimi,

Acceplance: Acceptance by the County of woilk performed does ot relieve the Permis Holier of full responsibility for werk performed or the presence of the permitted fecility. The Permit Holder acknowledges thal the
County has o liability for the preserce of the Permnit Holder's facility located within tie County ruad right-of-way, County drain easemen or County park propay.

Permit Expiration and Extension of Time: All work authorized by the permit shatl be completed fo the satisfaction of the Permit Of¥ice on or before the expiration date specified in the permit. Any request for an exienslon
of time for cowpletion shall be on a completed County ferm and shall demonstcate good cause for granting the request. Additioncl requiteraents may be imposed as a condition of an extensicn of fime due o ssasonal
limitations or other corsiderations. These additional requirements may include, without limitation, charges to materlals or construction methods, reestabiishment of fees, bonds, deposits ard insurance requirements.

Responsibility: The design, construction, operation and maintenance of all work covered by the permit shall be at the Perntit Holder's expense with the exception that the Permit Holder will ot be respossible for
maintaining roed widenings or similar facilities which become part of the County Teadway.

Revocation: The permit may be suspended or tevaked al the wili of the County, Upon order of the County, the Pecait Holder shall surrender ths pemmit, cease operations and rentove, alter of relocate, at their expense, the
facilities for which the pemil was pranted. The Permil Holder expressiy waives any right 1 claim damages for cofpenisation Tes:ling from the revocation of the pemuit.

Violation: ‘The County may cleclare the permit null ard void if the Permit Hokier viplates the tems of the permit. The Counly may require immediate removal of the Permit Holder's facililies and restoration of the County
propenty, or the County way remove the facilities and testoze the County property at the Permit Holder's expense. The Permit Holder agrees that in the event of a violation of the 1erms of the permit er in the event the work
authorized by the permit ks not satisfactorily completed by the permic eapiration date, the County may use all or any portion ¢f the performance bond to resiore the County road right-of-way, drain easement, wastewater
facility or park property as necessary for reasonably safe and efficient operations and maintenance, of i establish extraordinary maintenance procedures as required to assure reasonably safe and efficient operaion of the
County facility.

Inspection and Testing of Materials: Wayne County reserves the right of inspection and the testing of materials by ks autharized répresentatives of al! permitied aciivities andior activities within the road right-of-way,
County owned property or witkiia a County draln easement. All tems dentified by the final inspection shall be zesolved prior 1 release of (he permit. All materials and methods utilized durlng the course of the authorized
permit work shall meet the requirenents of the cutront andi Ity g slruction as modified by Wayne County Specia] Pravisicns, Standard Plans for Pentit Coststruetion and this manual. The Pesnit
Holder shall reimburse Wame County for a1 nequired inspections and testing of materials.

Design: The Permil Holder is fully responsible for the design of the permitied facility, such that the design shall be consistent with all applicable County standards, specifications, guidelines, requirements and with good
engineering practice.  Any erors in the pls thar become evident after the issusrce of a permait, and which chenge the scope of pemmitted work, zre subject to Teview and may be grounds for Tevocation of the patzit. The
Permit Office will not retieve the Peemil Holder of the responsibiiity of correcting ermors, deficiencies, or ormissions dus to oversight of unforeseen contingencies such as fanlty drainage, poor subsois conditions or the failure
of the Permit Holder's engineer to show all the rela‘ed or pertinent conditions inside or outside the plan area.

Drainage: Drainege shall net b aered 1o fow inio the moad right-of-way or foad deainage systerm wiless appioved by Wayne Comnty.

Permit Holder Compliance: The Petmit Holder shall zbide by the conditions and limitations ecntained on the permit and a!l other corditiars Nisted within the WCDPS Rules, Specifications and Procedures for Construction
Permits. The application of any werk undertaken under the permit shall corstitute the Permit older's agreement to the Provision.



Wayne County Department of Public Services
Engineering Division - Permit Office
Scope of Work and Conditions Attachment
For Annual Municipal Maintenance Permits

The Annual Permit authorizes the municipality to occupy Wayne County road rights-of-way for the purpose of
inspection, repair and routine maintenance of the facilities listed below that are under its jurisdiction.

Scope of Work - The following work is authorized under the Annual Maintenance Permit:

Sanitary Sewers
1. Inspection, repair and routine maintenance of the facilities under its jurisdiction

Water Main and instajiation of 2” pipe
1. Inspection, repair and routine maintenance of the facilities under its jurisdiction
2. Water service connection with 2" diameter pipe or less, serving single customer

A separate permit will be required for any operations performed under the following conditions for Water and/or
Sanitary related work:

a. For all water service connections larger than a two inch (2"} diameter.

b. Forany water service connection that serves more than one customer.

¢. Whenever work is to be performed in a new subdivision.

d. For any sanitary sewer service connaction,

Dust Palliative Applications

1. Dust palliative treatment shall be with calcium magnesium chioride in accordance with Wayne County
specifications. '

2. The municipality shall designate each road fo be treated with dust palliative and pay the Contractor for all
materials and service.

3. Prior to the application of Dust Palliative Materials, the Permit Holder shall provide at least seven (7) days
notice to the Wayne County Roads Division (313-955-9920) to allow for preparation and inspection of the
roads to be ireated.

Sidewalk
1. Existing sidewalks may be repaired or replaced at existing alignment on existing grade.

A separate permit will be required for the construction of a new sidewalk, for the replacement of an existing
sidewalk on a new alignment or grade or for the construction of new sidewalk ramps to the County road.

Street Sweeping
1. Street sweeping shall be performed during daylight hours only.
2. All traffic control devices shall conform to the provisions of the current MMUTCD.

Permit Conditions
1. A separate permit will be required for final pavement repairs when pavement is broken while making
either emergency or non-emergency repairs.

2. Reports indicating all work performed or that no work was performed under the permit shall be provided to
the Permit Office at the end of each month.

3. Any work not covered under the annual scope of work and conditions above shall require a separate parmit.
Refer to the Wayne County Rules, Specifications and Procedures Construction Permits,

4. All inspection costs, including overtime, supervision, testing of materials and emergency work, if required,
shall be billed to the Permit Holder.

Revised: October 4, 2008



Wayne County Department of Public Services
Englneering Division —~ Permit Office

Indemnity and Insurance Attachment

To the extent allowed by law, the Permit Holder shall defend and hold harmless Wayne County, the
Department of Public Services, its officials and employees against any and all claims, suits and judgments
to which Wayne County, the Departments, its officials and employees may be subject and for all costs and
actual attorney fees which may be incurred on account of injury to persons or damage to property, including
County property. The Permit Holder shall provide this indemnity for any incident arising out of any and all
activities performed under the permit or in connection with work not authorized by the permit, or resulting
from the failure to comply with the terms of the permit, or arising out of the continued existence of the work
product that is subject to the permit.

Certificates of insurance shali be required for all construction permits, excluding residentiat driveway
permits. Each certificate of insurance and any associated correspondence shall reference the plan review
number of the project. General liability and automotive liability insurance coverage shafl be in amounts
detailed below:

The general liability insurance coverage shall be in amounts not less than $1,000,000 each occutrence
and $2,000,000 general aggregate. Proof of automobile fiability shall be in amounts not less than
$1,000,000 combined single limit for each accident, bodily injury per accident, and property damage per
accident, and in an amount not less than §1,000,000 for bodily injury each person, each occurrence
and property damage liability $1,000,000 each occurrence.

The certificate of insurance must be provided by a person, the corporation, or by authorized representatives
who signed personally either the application or permit. Insurance shall remain in force until the permit is
released by Wayne County.

The Wayne County Department of Public Services shall be a Certificate Holder on the policy of
insurance. Wayne County, drainage district, and its officers, agents and employees shall be named
as additional insured parties. It is also required that the annual permit numbers are Included on
each certificate of insurance.

The insurance shall cover a period not Igss than the term of the permit and shall provide that it cannot be
cancelled or reduced without thifly (30) days advance writien notice to Wayne County, by certified mail,
first-class, return receipt requested. The thiny (30} days shall begin on the date when the County received
the notice, as evidenced by the return receipt.

Such insurance shall provide by endorsement therein for the thitty (30) day nolice by the insurer to the
Parmit Office prior to termination, cancellation or material alteration of the policy.

Licenses agrees to make application for renewal thereof at least sixty (60) days before the expiration date
of the policy then In force and to file a certitied copy of such renewed policy with the Permit Office.

The policy shall alsa provide by endorsement for the removal of the contractual exclusion.

Should insurance coverage be cancelled or reduced below acceptable limits, or allowed to expire, the
authorization to continue work under the permit shall be suspended or revoked and shall not resume untit
new insurance is in force and accepled by Wayne County. Wayne Counly may, in such cases, take
appropriate action to restore or protect the road and appurtenances. All costs incurred by this action shall
be deducted from any remaining inspection deposit, bond and/or Letter of Credit and, if necessary, the
Permit Holder may be billed to defray actual expenses.



MODEL COMMUNITY RESOLUTION

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF
WAYNE COUNTY PERMITS
Resolution No.
At a Reguiar Meeting of the (Name of
Community Governing Board) on (date), the following
resolution was offered:
WHEREAS, the (hereinafter the  “Community”)

periodically applies to the County of Wayne Department of Public Services, Engineering
Division Permit Office (hereinafier the “County”) for permits to conduct emergency
repairs, annual maintenance work, and for other purposes on local and County roads
located entirely within the boundaries of the Community, as needed from time to time to
maintain the roads in a condition reasonably safe and convenient for public travei,

WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 51 of 1951, being MCL 247.651 et seq., the County permits
and regulates such activities noted above and related temporary road closures;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, in consideration of the County granting such
permit (hereinafter the “Permit”), the Community agrees and resolves that:

Any work performed for the Community by a contractor or subcontractor will be solely as
a contractor for the Community and not as a contractor or agent of the County. Any
claims by any contractor or subcontractor will be the sole responsibility of the
Community. The County shall not be subject to any obligations or I|ab|I|t|es by vendors
and contractors ot the Community, or their subcontractors.

The Community shall take no uniawful action or conduct, which arises either directly or
indirectly out of its obligations, responsibilities, and duties under the Permit which results
in claims being asserted against or judgment being imposed against the County, and all
officers, agents and employees ihereof pursuant to a maintenance contract. In the event
that same occurs, for the purposes of the Permit, it will be considered a breach of the
Permit thereby giving the County a right to seek and obtain any necessary relief or
remedy, including, but not by way of limitation, a judgment for money damages.

With respect to any activities authorized by Permit, when the Community requires
insurance on its own or its contractor's behalf, it shall also require that such policy
include as named insured the County of Wayne and all officers, agents and employees
thereof.

The incorporation by the County of this Resolution as part of a permit does not prevent
the County from requiring additional performance security or insurance before issuance
of a Permit.

This Resolution stipulates that the requesting Community shall, at no expense to Wayne
County, provide necessary police supervision, establish detours and post all necessary



signs and other traffic control devices in accordance with the Michigan Manual of
Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

This Resolution stipulates that the requesting Community shail assume full responsibility
for the cost of repairing damage done to the County road during the period of road
closure or partial closure.

This Resolution shall continue in force from the date of execution until cancelled by the
Community or the County with no less than thirty (30) days prior written notice to the
other party. It will not be cancelled or otherwise terminated by the Community with
regard to any Permit which has already been issued or activity which has already been
undertaken.

The Community stipulates that it agrees to the terms of the County of Wayne permit at
the time a permit is signed by the Community’s authorized representative.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following individual(s) isfare authorized in their
official capacity as the Community's authorized representative to sign and so bind the
Community to the provisions of any and all permits applied for to the County of Wayne,
Department of Public Services Engineering Division Permit Office for necessary permits
from time to time to work within County road right-of-way or local roads on behalf of the
Community.

Name Title

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted
by the [Board of Trustees/City Council] of the _ ' 3
(name of Community), County of Wayne, Michigan, on

#305299-v2



Warren C. Evans
County Executive November 22, 2016

City Of Alien Park
16850 Southfield Road
Alien Park, Ml 48101

RE: Annual Pavement Restoration Permit - A-17131

Attention: Doug Morton

Enclosed is your Wayne County Annual Pavement Restoration Permit package. The Annual
Permit authorizes your company to occupy Wayne County road rights-of-way for the purpose of
pavement repair and restoration.

In addition to the Annual Permit, the package also includes the following attachments, which are
incorporated by reference into the permit:

1. General Conditions and Limitations of Permits
2. Indemnity and Insurance Attachment
3. Model Community Resolution

Please review the insurance attachment carefully, since the insurance requirements have been
recently updated.

The WCDPS Permit Office has published its manual, Rules, Specifications and Procedures for
Pearmit Construction. This manual replaces the Permit Specifications document which was
attached to annual permits in previous years. The manual is also incorporated by reference into
this annual permit and is available online at:

hittp:/iwww.waynecounty.com/dps/construction permits.htm

In particular, refer to Section 8, “Restoration” and Section 7, "Maintaining Traffic and Traffic
Control Devices"” for specific rules and specifications regarding pavement restoration work.
Additionally, refer to Wayne County Standards of Permit Construction, numbered: PR-1, PR-2,
PR-3, PR-4 and PR-5 for detailed specifications on pavement repair and patching. These
standards are also available online at the above web address.

As an additional condition of this annual permit, the Permit Holder agrees to provide at least 72
hotrs prior notice before starting any construction. Each notice shall be sent to the Permit
Office at the address shown below and shall include the location and date of the proposed work
along with a detailed set of construction plans.

For each restoration project, plan review and inspection costs, including overtime, supervision,
materials testing and emergency work (if required) will be billed to the Permit Holder on a
monthly basis.

Department of Public Services ~ Permit Office
33809 Michigan Avenue. Wuyne, M1 49184 w Phone (734) 393-6304 & Fax (734) 595-6356



Please return the original permit, signed and dated by an authorized signatory, confirming that
the signer's name is typed below the signature line and submit these documents to:

Wayne County Department of Public Services
Permit Office
Attn: Ms. Janice Clarke
33809 Michigan Avenue
Wayne MI 48184

Once received, | will validate your permit and retumn an executed copy to you for your files.

If you have any questions regarding this Annual Permit, please contact me at 734.595.6504,
extension 2002.

Sincerely,

Wmm

Janice Clarke
Permit Coordinator

C: file

Attachments: Annual Permit
General Conditions and Limitations of Permits
Indemnity and insurance Atlachment
Mode! Community Resolution

Depattrient of Public Serviees - Permit Office
33809 Michigan Avenue, Wayne, ME 49184 @ Phone (734) 3956504 w Pax (7341 36803546



PERMIT OFFICE
33809 MICHIGAN AVE
WAYNE, Mi 48184,

. PHONE (734) 595-6504

FAX (734) 595-6356

72 HOURS BEFORE ANY
CONSTRUCTION. CALL
Various Staff
(734) 505-8504, Ext: 2009

. WAYNE COUNTY
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES

PERMIT No

- A17131

ISSUEDATE - |.EXPIRES

1/1/2017|12/31/2017 -

WORK ORDER

79371

‘ REVIEW Ne.

FOR INSPECTION

PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT, OPERATE, USE AND/OR MAINTAIN

PRAIFAT NAME
ALLEN PARK - PAVEMENT RESTORATICN

CITYITWP
ALLEN PARK

LOCATION
VARIOUS

PERMIT HOLDER CONTRACTOR

CITY OF ALLEN PARK
16850 SOUTHFIELD ROAD .
ALLEN PARK, M| 48101 !
! canTacT
<BLANK>
MISS DIG 1-800-482.7161, www.missdig.org)

GONTACT
DOUG MORTON
DESCRIPTION OF PERMITFED AGTIVIT

(313) 928-1400
(72 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG, CALL

TO REPLACE AND REPAIR PAVEMENT CUTS DUE TO UTILITY REPAIRS WITHIN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF VARIOUS ROADS IN WAYNE COUNTY
IN ACCORDAMNCE WITH THE WAYNE COUNTY RULES, SPECIFICATIONS AND PROCEDURES MANUAL & WAYNE COUNTY STANDARD PLANS
FOR PERMIT CONSTRUCTION.

AT LEAST 72 HOURS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, THE PERMIT HOLDER SHALL SUBMIT WRITTEN NOTICE OF CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING
THE LOCATION AND DATE OF THE WORK ALONG WITH CONSTRUCTION PLANS TO THE PERMIT OFFICE FOR APPROVAL.

THE FINAL AREA OF ANY PAVEMENT TO BE REPLACED AND/OR OVERLAID SHALL BE DETERMINED AND MARKED OUT BY THE COUNTY.

FOR EACH PROJECT, ALL ACTUAL PLAN REVIEW AND INSPECTION COSTS, INCLUDING OVERTIME, SUPERVISION, TESTING OF MATERIALS
AND EMERGENCY WORK, IF REQUIRED, SHALL BE BILLED TC THE PERMIT HOLDER ON A MONTHLY BASIS.

ANY ROAD CLOSURE SHALL BE IN GOMPLIANCE WITH THE MICHIGAN MANUAL OF TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES.
HTTP://MUTCD FHWA.DOT.GOV

THE ATTACHMENTS LISTED BELOW ARE INCCRPORATED BY REFERENCE AS PART OF THE CONDITIONS CF THIS PERMIT.

"FINANCIAL SUMMARY - i DEFQSITOR T T T T T APPROVED PLANS PREPARED BY

PERMIT FEE ..... oo 000 |

PLAN REVIEW FEE $0.00 PLANS APPROVED BY DATE PLANS APFROVED

PARK FEE........ $0.00

OTHER FEE ... ...oveovoeseereecaere v oo, £0.00 1!1/201_7_

BOND.....orore o £0.00 REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS

INSPECTION DEPOSIT... .o $0.00 GENERAL CONDITICNS

OTHER BOND $0.00 | ETTER OF GREDIT DEPOSTO ,

TOTAL GOSTS .t oo e« $0,00 1 INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE ATTACHMENT
RULES, SPECIFICATIONS AND PROCEDURES
FOR PERMIT CONSTRUCTION - AVAILABLE

| ONLINE AT
- ; i
TOTAL CHECK AMOUNT $0.00 : WWW. Waynecounly.comidps_enginaaring_cpotee. him
CASHIER DATE
1172017 (PERMIT VALID ONLY IF ACCOMPANIED

..BY ABOVE ATTACHMENTS), _

in consideration of the Permit Holder and Confractor agreeing to abide and conform with il the terms and gonditigns herein, 8 Perriil Is hereby Issued 1o the above named fo Construct, Gperale, Uss andror
fAaintain within the Road Right of Way, County Easemant, and/or County Propeity. The permitted wark described above shalt be accomplished in acoordance with the Approved Piens, Maps. Specifications
and Statarents fled with the Permil Office which are integral to and made part of this Permit. The Gensral Conditions as well as any Required Atlachments are incorporated as part of 14is Permmil.

WAYNE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES

QOUG MORTON
PERMIT HOLBER f AUTHORIZED AGENT

DATE

PREPARED BY

<BLANK=
COMTRACTOR ! AUTHORIZED AGENT

DATE VALIDATED BY

i, Ali Aljawed

DATE



Wayne County Department of Public Services
Engineering Division — Permit Office

Conditions & Limitations of Permits

FPlan Approvat and Specifications: All work performed under the permit shall be done in accordanca with the approved plans, specifications, maps, statements and special conditions filed with the County sad shall comply
with Wayne County Specifications, s defined in the curreny Bayie Coundy Rules. Specifications and Procedures for Permit Cotsirigtion, included as an ettachment to this permit, the Wayne Counfy Siondard Plans for
Pertt Construztion, arxl the MMMMMW as miodified by WCDPS Special Provisions, and other WCDPS specifications. Any situation or problem which occurs as a result of the
construclion, operation, use and/or mainteaance of the facilily in the right-of-way and is nol covered by the approved plans nor by the County’s currtnt Standards and Specifications sheil be resolved by the Permit Holder 85
directed and approved by the Permit Office. Any significart change 10 the plans must be approved by the Permit Office and is authorized only when an appraved addendum is obtained fiom the Permit Office.

Fees: The Pormit Holder shall be responsible for all fees and costs incurred by the County in connection with the permit and shall deposit payment for fees and costs as determined by the County at the time the permit i
issued,

Bond: The Permit Helder shall furnish & bond in cash or Centified check in an amount acceptadls to the Counuy to guaraniee performance under the conditions of the permit. The County may use all or any portion ol vhe
bonad which shal) be necessery 1o cover any expense, including ingpection cosis or demage incurred by the County through the granting o the permic.  Should the bond be insuflicient 1a cover the expenses and damages
incurred by the County, the Permit Holder shall pay such deficiency upon billing by the Coumy. If the hond smount exceeds the expenses and damages incurred by the County. the excess portion witl be returned to she
Depositer. The excess performanse bond provided Ffor herein, when it ¢adnot be réturred, shall be deposited into the County Road Fund and bécome a gert thergo?, unless claimed by the Depasitor within one year of the tate
of satisfactory sompletion of the construction authorized by Lhe permit,

insurance: The Permit Holder shall furnish proof of liability and property demage insurance in Ihe form and amounis sse¢plable 10 the County with Weyne County named &s an insured pany. The Permit Holder shall
magintain this ingurarce until the permil is released, revaked or cancelled by the County

Indemnification / Hold Harmless; Sub-Section | heiein applies 1o alf Permit Holders except Munizipalities Sub-Section 2 herein epplies te Muricipalities caly.

1. Tothe extent allowed by law, the Peranit Molder shell indemnify, hold harmless and defend Wayne Courty, its Department of Public Services, its officials and smployees against any and all claims, suits and judgmems o
which the County, the Depanment, its officials and employees may be swbject and for all costs and actusl atiomey fees which may be iocurred on account of injury to persora or damage te property, inchiding property of
the County, whzther dug to regligence of the Permit Holder or to the ioint negligence of the Permit Halder and the Courky, acising oul of any and all work pecformed under the permit, or in conpection with work ol
authorized by the pernit, of resulting from Mailure 1o comply with the terms of the pemit or acising, out of the continued existence of the work product that is the subject of the permit. This hokd harmless provision musi
001 e vonsirued a8 a waiver of any governmental immunity by the County.

2. Tothe extent ellowed by Jaw, the Municipality as Permit Holder shall hold hacmless and defend Wayne County, its Départment of Public Services, its officials and emaloyees, for the Municipality's own negligence,
torticus acts, ervors, or omisslons, and the acts, errors, or emissiens of any of its employees, on account of injury to persons or damage lo property, incloding property of the County, aiisiog vut of any and all work
performed under the permil, or in connegtion with work not authotized by the permit, or resutting from feilure to comply with the 1erms of the permit or arising out of the continued existence of work product that is the
subjest of the permit. Sub-section | above applies 10 contractors, subconiractors, consullants, or ageats of the Municipality. This hold harmless provision eiust not be construed as a waiver of any governmenial immunity
by the County or the Municipality's, as provided by statute or modified by cour de¢isions.

Permit on Site: The Permit Holder shall keep available e copy of the permit and any associated approved plans on site during permitted activities.

Notification for Start and Comypletion of Work: The permit shall not become operative until if has beea fully executed by the County. The Permit Holder shalt nutify the County before starting consiruction and shall nanify
1he County when wark is completed. The Permit Holder or their representative shall have copies of the executed permit and approved plang in their possessian on the job site at al! times.

1. The Permit Holder shall provide ot least three (3) days advanced aotice, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, te the Permit Office price to the commencement of any permitded activilies by submitting a START OF
WORK NOTIFICATION form by mail, fax or e-mail. In cenain instances, 2ddiGonel cotice may be requiced by the Permit Office  In the event that construction work ceases for a period of time, then the Permit Holder
shall notify v4e Wayne County Tnspector at least 24 hiours prior to cesuming work.

2. The Permit Holder shall comply with all requirements of the Miss Dig Statute, MCL §450 101 el seq., a5 amended. The Permiit Holder shalt call “hLSS.DIG". at (800) 4B2-7161, ot least 72 hours. excluding Satlurdeys,
Sundays and holideys, but not mose than twenty-one (21) calendar days, before starting any underground work. The Permil Holder assumes al’ responsibility for damage (@ cr internuption ol undecpround uiilities

3. The Permit HoMer shall call Wayne County Depariment of Public Services’ Traffie Operations Office al (734) 955-2154, a1 least 72 hours prine, exelad:ng Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, but aet mere ihan 1weety i
{21) salendar cays, before starting any underground work in the vicinity of eny traffic signal equipment owned, operated or maintained by Wayne Coonly.

Bafety. The Permit Helder agrees that all work under the permit shall be performed in a sefe manner and to keep e srea alfected by the permit in a saft condiliop usnti the work 15 completed and accepied by the County
The Permit Holder shall fumish, install and maintain all necessary traffic controls and protection which are in accordance with the curren: Manual on Upiform Traffis Conirat Deviges (MUTCTD) Tre Permu Holder shall
condus1 all activities and maintain all facilities as set forth in the peemit in a manwer 50 as not o damage, impair, interfere with, or obstruct a publis read or create a foresseable nisk of hasm 10 the traveling public The Permmt
Balder shall comply with all applicable O5HA and MIOSHA requirements

Underground Utilities: The Peemit Elotder shall contact all utifity owners regarding their tacilities prior to slarting work and shall comply with ell applicable srovisiens f Aci 53, Public Acts of 1974, as amerded. Wayne
Counly makes no warranty either expressed or implied as to the condition or suitability of subsurface conditions or any existing facility which mzy be encountered during an excavation. The presence of absence of wilities is
based on the best iaformation available and the Councy is not respensible for the accuracy of this information. The Permit Holder assumes all responcibilily for the interruption and damage ta underground wilivies. The
Permit Holder is responsible for praper disposal, ir: accordance with current cegulations, of any matenial excavared from within the right-ofsway. Such materials include, without limitalion, soils or groundwarer conlartinated
by petroleum preducts or other pollutanty associated with sites identified by the MDEQ or reponed on appropriate releage forras for underground storage Lanks.

Astignabiity: The permit Is neither transferabla nor gssignable withow: the written consent of the County,

Limitation of Fermil: The Applicam and the Permit Holder shall be responsible for obtaining and shall secure any pecoits or permission necessary or required by law from State, federal or other local governmental agencies
and jurisdictions, corporations or individuals. These include, wilhout limifatios, these pertaining to drzins, inland lakes and streams, wetlands, woodlands, Flood plaing, filling, noise regulation and hours of operation. Issuance
of 4 Wayne Counly permit does not autharize rctivities otherwise reguleted by State, federal or local agencies.

Access of Other Vehicles: The Permit Holder shall, at all times possible, maintgin a minimum of ore acceptabla access to all abening occupied propenties, driveways and side strests unless otherwise specified on the
approved nlans. The Permit Holder shall aotify all owners or accupants of properties whose sccess may be temporarily disrupted during the permitted work. The local poice, fire or emergency service agencies shall define
acceptable access. The Permit Holder shall provide signing and other improvements necessary 1o ensure adequate access wntil the roadway, drivewsy or side stcee ia resiored. The Permit Holder shell conduct #il operations so
as to minimize inconvenience 1o abutiing property owners. Wayne County reserves the right to reasonably resisicl the progress of work by the Permit Holder besed on the rate of roadway and right-of-way restoration,
including permanent or temporary pavement. Wayne County may require that work be suspended until satisfactory backfilting of open trenches or excaveiions has been completed and drivewnys, side sireets and drainage
regtored,

Restoration: The Permit Holder agrees to restore the County roxd and roed right-of-way, Counly drain easement or County park propeny 1o 4 condition equal to or beiter than its condition before work urder the permit
began. If the Permit Holder fails to satisfacterily restore the permitted wark ares, Wayne County may take all practical actions necessary ia provide reasonably safe and convenient public iravel, preservation of the roadwey
&nd drainage, prevention of sail erosion and sedimentation, and elimination of nuisance to asutting property owners caused by the permitted activity. Security in the form of cash, a certified check or surety bond shell be
required 1o secure the ¢ost of restoring the disturbed pomion of 1he right-of-way 10 an acceptable safe condition. The amount of the securily shall be determined by the Permit Office. in the event that a suspersion of wark will
be protracted or that the work will not be completed by tiae Permit Holdet, the Permit Holder shall restore the right-of-way 10 & conditien similar 1¢ the conditicn that exisied prior to issuance of the permit

Acceptance: Aeceptance by the County of work performed doss not relieve the Permit Holder of full responsibility for work performed or the prasence of the permitied facilty  The Permit Holder acknowlecges that tne
County has ae lisbility for the presence of the Permit Holder’s facility ‘ocated within the County ro2d rigni-of-way, County drain easement or Counly park property

Permit Expiratian and Extension of Time: All work 2uthorized by Lhe permit shall be completed 10 Lhe satisfaction of the Permit OiTce on or before the expiratien date speaificd 1 the parmat. Any (equest for an extenson
of time for completian shall be on a completed County form and shall demansirate good cause for granting the request.  Additionel requirements may be imposed 8s & condition of an exaension of time due 1o seasoral
limniations or other considerations. These additional requirements may include, without limitation, chenyges to matenals or consiruction methods, reestablishment of fees. fonds, deposits and insurance reqawrzmems

Rerponsibility: The design, construction, aperation and maintenance of all work covered by the permit shall be al the Permit Halder's cxpense wath (he ¢xeepr.on thal the Permit Ho'der will not be responsible fo
maintaiting road widenings or similar facilities which become part of the County roadway.

Revoeation: The permit may be suspended or revoked at the will of the Counly  Upon order of the Couaty, the Permil Helder shall surrender the permit, ceass operations ead remuve, slter or relocate, g1 1feir expense, the
Facilicies for which the permit was granied. The Permit Holder expressty waives any righl to claim damsges for compensation res:lling from the revocation of the permit

Violation: The County may declare the permil null and void if the Permit Holder violates the terms of the permit. The County may recuire immedials temaval of the Penrit Holer's Facilities and resteration of the County
propatty, or tha Counly niay remove the facilities and restore the County property at the Permit Holder's expense, The Permit Holdet agrees 1hat in the event of a violalion of the 1¢ums of the permit or in the event the work
authorized by the permit is not satisfactorily completed by the permil expiration date, the County mey use all or any potion of the performance bond to resiora the County road right-of-way, drain easement, wastewater
facility or park property as necessary for reasonably safe and efficient operations and maintenance, or to establish extraordinary maintcnance proccdures o3 required 10 assute teasonably safe and efficient operation of the
Counly facility.

Inspection and Testing of Materials: Wayne County reserves the right of inspection and the testing of materials by rts authorized represwtatives of all permilted activities and/or ectivities within the road right-of-way,
Coumy owned property or within a County drain ¢asement. All items 1dem|ﬂed by the fi nal mspccmn shall be resolved prior to relesse of the permit, All matenizls and methods utilized during the course of the authorized
permit work shall meet the requiremenis of the current 23 modified by Wiyne County Specint Provisions, Standard Plans for Permit Constouction and this menua.. The Permit
Halder shali reimburse Wayne County for sll seuired inspections and testing of marerizls.

Desiga  The Permit Holdes is fully responsible for the desiga of the permilted facility, such that the design shall be consistent with all spplicable Caunty standards, specifications, guidelines, recuiremeats and with good
engineering practice.  Any erross in the pians that becoma evidens after the issuance of a permir, and which change the scope of permilied work, are subject 1o review and may be grounds for revocation of the pammit. The
Permit Office will not relieve thie Permit Holder of fae responaibilily of correcting errors, deticiencies, or omissions due to oversight or unforeseen contingencies such as faulty drainage, poor subsoit conditions or the failure
of the Permit Holder's engineet to show all the reléted cr pertinent conditions inside or outside the plan arca.

Drainage: Drainage sball not be altered 10 flow inte the road right-of-way or road draigege system unless approved by Wayne County.

Permit Holder Compliance; The Permit Holder shall abide by the conditions aod limitations contained on the perinit and all other conditions listed witkin the WCDPS Rules, Specifications asd Procedures far Construction
Pemnils. The application of any work undectaken uader the permit shall constitute the Permit Holdee's agreement to the Provision



Wayne County Department of Public Services
Engineering Division — Permit Office

Indemnity and Insurance Attachment

To the extent allowed by iaw, the Permit Holder shall defend and hold harmless Wayne County, the
Department of Public Services, its officials and employees against any and all claims, suits and judgments
to which Wayne County, the Departments, its officials and employees may be subject and for all costs and
actual attorney fees which may be incurred on account of injury to persons or damage to property, including
County property. The Permit Holder shall provide this indemnity for any incident arising out of any and all
activities performed under the permit ar in connection with work not authorized by the permit, or resulting
from the failure to comply with the terms of the permit, or arising out of the continued existence of the werk
product that is subject to the permit.

Certificates of insurance shall be required for all construction permits, excluding residential driveway
permits. Each certificate of insurance and any associated correspondence shall reference the plan review
number of the project. General liability and automotive liability insurance coverage shall be in amounts
detailed below:

The general liability insurance coverage shall be in amounts not less than $1,000,000 each occurrence
and $2,000,000 general aggregate. Proof of automobile liability shall be in amocunts not less than
$1,000,000 combined single limit for each accident, bodily injury per accident, and property damage per
accident, and in an amount not fess than $1,000,000 for bodily injury each person, each occurrence
and property darnage liability $1,000,000 each occurrence.

The certificate of insurance must be provided by a person, the corporation, or by authorized representatives
who signed personally either the application or permit. Insurance shall remain in force until the permit is
released by Wayne County,

The Wayne County Department of Public Sarvices shall he a Certificate Holder on the policy of
insurance. Wayne County, dralnage district, and its officers, agents and employees shall be named
as additional insured parties. It is also required that the annual permit numbers are included on
each certificate of Insurance.

The insurance shall cover a period not less than the term of the permit and shall provide that it cannot be
cancelted or reduced without thirty (30) days advance written notice to Wayne County, by certified mail,
first-class, return receipt requested. The thirty {30} days shall begin on the date when the County received
the notice, as evidenced by the return receipt.

Such insurance shall provide by endorsement therein for the thirty (30) day notice by the insurer to the
Permit Office prior to termination, cancellation or material alteration of the policy.

Licensee agrees to make application for renewal thereof at least sixty (60) days before the expiration date
of the policy then in force and to file a certified copy of such renewed policy with the Permit Office.

The policy shall also provide by endorsement for the removal of the contractuat exclusion.

Should insurance coverage be cancelled or reduced below acceptable limits, or allowed to expire, the
authorization to continue work under the permit shall be suspended or revoked and shall not resume until
new insurance is in force and accepted by Wayne County. Wayne County may, in such cases, take
appropriate action to restore or protect the road and appurtenances. All costs incurred by this action shall
be deducted from any remaining inspection deposit, bond and/or Letter of Credit and, if necessary, the
Permit Holder may be billed to defray actual expenses.



MODEL COMMUNITY RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF

WAYNE COUNTY PERMITS
Resoiution No.
At a Regular Meeting of the (Namae of
Community Governing Board) on {date}, the following
resolution was offered:
WHEREAS, the (hereinafter the  “Community”)

periodically applies to the County of Wayne Department of Public Services, Engineering
Division Permit Office (hereinafter the “County”) for permits to conduct emergency
repairs, annual maintenance work, and for other purposes on local and County roads
located entirely within the boundaries of the Community, as needec from time to time to
maintain the roads in a condition reasonably safe and convenient for public travel;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 51 of 1951, being MCL 247.651 et seq., the County permits
and reguiates such activities noted above and related femporary road closures;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, in consideration of the County granting such
permit (hereinafter the “"Permil’), the Community agrees and resolves that;

Any work performed for the Community by a contractor or subcontractor will be solely as
a contractor for the Community and not as a contractor or agent of the County. Any
claims by any contractor or subcontractor will be the sole responsibility of the
Community. The County shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities by vendors
and contractors of the Community, or their subcontractors.

The Community shall take no unlawful action or conduct, which arises either directly or
indirectly out of its obligations, responsibilities, and duties under the Permit which results
in claims being asserted against or judgment being imposed against the County, and all
officers, agents and employees thereof pursuant to a maintenance contract. In the event
that same occurs, for the purposes of the Permit, it will be considered a breach of the
Permit thereby giving the County a right 1o seek and obtain any necessary relief or
remedy, including, but not by way of limitation, a judgment for money damages.

With respect to any activities authorized by Permit, when the Community requires
insurance on its own or its contractor's behalf, it shall alsc require that such policy
include as named insured the County of Wayne and all officers, agents and employees
thereof.

The incorperation by the County of this Resclution as part of a permit does not prevent
the County from requiring additional performance security or insurance before issuance
of a Permit.

This Resolution stipulates that the requesting Community shall, at no expense to Wayne
County, provide necessary police supervision, establish detours and post all necessary



signs and other traffic control devices in accordance with the Michigan Manual of
Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

This Resolution stipulates that the requesting Community shall assume full responsibility
for the cost of repairing damage done to the County road during the period of road
closure or partial closure.

This Resolution shall continue in force from the date of execution until cancelled by the
Community or the County with no less than thirty (30) days prior written notice to the
other party. It will not be cancelled or otherwise terminated by the Community with
regard to any Permit which has already been issued or activity which has already been
undertaken.

The Community stipulates that it agrees to the terms of the County of Wayne permit at
the time a permit is signed by the Community’s authorized representative.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following individual(s) is/are authorized in their
official capacity as the Community’s authorized representative to sign and so bind the
Community to the provisions of any and all permits applied for to the County of Wayne,
Department of Public Services Engineering Division Permit Office for necessary permits
from time fo time to work within County road right-of-way or local roads on behalf of the
Community.

Name Title

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted
by the [Board of Trustees/City Council] of the

(name of Community), County of Wayne, Michigan, on

#305299-v2



Warren C. Evans
County Executive November 1 , 2016

City Of Allen Park
16850 Southfield Road
Allen Park, Ml 48101

RE: Annual Permit for Special Events - A-17161
Attention: Doug Morton

Enclosed is your Wayne County Annual Permit for Special Events package. This annual permit
grants preliminary authorization to a municipality to

a) temporarily close a county road for a reasonable length of time for a parade,
marathon, festival or similar activity;

b) to use a county road as a detour for fraffic around such activity taking place on a non-
county road.

¢) place a temporary banner within the County right-of-way;

In addition to the annual permit, the package also includes the following attachments, which are
incorporated by reference into the permit;

1. Annual Special Events Attachment for Municipalities
2. Banner Attachment for Municipalities

3. General Conditions and Limitations of Permits

4. Model! Cormmunity Resolution

As a condition of the annual permit, the County requires that a governing body pass a bianket
resolution, effective for all permitted road closures for special events and installation of banners
planned throughout the year which

a) agrees to fulfill alt permit obligatiens and conditions for the current year

b) to the extent allowed by law, hold harmless and defends Wayne County and its officials
and employees against any and all damage claims, suits or judgments of any kind or
nature arising as a result of the permitted activity.

c) designates and authorizes an appropriate official of the requesting municipality to sign
the permit on its behalf

Additionally, the Permit Office requires that each municipality provide a written request on
municipal letterhead at least (10) ten business days prior to the commencement of a road
closure andfor banner placement. The written request should include alf required information as
specified in the appropriate attachments, “Annual Special Events for Municipalities” or “Annual
Attachment for Banners”. Upon approval, the permit office shall issue a permit authorizing the
special event activities.

Department of Public Services - Permit Office
33809 Michigan Avenue. Wayvne, Ml 49184 m Phone (734) 595-6504 @ Fax (734) 395-6356



For additional information on the Annual Permit for Special Events (Road Closure/Detour and
Banner Placement), please refer to Rule 11.4 published in the Wayne County, Rules

Specifications & Procedures for Construction Permits.

This publication may be downloaded at

http:/iwww.waynecounty.com/dps/construction permits.htm

Please return the original permit, signed and dated by the person authorized and designated by
the resolution, along with a certified copy of the resolution consistent with the requirements
transmitted in this package. Type the name of the designated signer below the signature line
and submit these documents to:

Wayne County Department of Public Services
Permit Office
Attn: Ms. Janice Clarke
33809 Michigan Avenue
Wayne MI 48184

Once received, an executed copy will be returned to you for your files.
If you have any questions regarding this Annual Permit, please contact me at 734.565.6504,

extension 2002.

Sincerely,

J'anice Clarke
Permit Coordinator

C. file
Attachiments:

Annual Permit

Annual Special Events Affachment for Municipalities
Banner Attachment for Municipalities

General Conditions and Limitations of Parmits
Meodel Community Resolution

Department of Public Services - Pepmit Oftice
33809 Michigan Avenue, Wayne, ML 49184 @ Phone {7345 5930304 @ Lay ¢ 25 2056000



PERMIT Na.

A-17161

iSSUE DATE EXPIRES

1112017 12!31!2017

|

I PR
| REVIEW No. ‘ WORK ORDER

f

\

|

L

PERMIT OFFICE
33809 MICHIGAN AVE
WAYNE, Mi 45184,
PHONE (734) 595-6504
FAX (734) 595-6356

72 HOURS BEFORE ANY

CONSTRUCTION. CALL
Varlous Staff . WAYNE COUNTY

(734) 595-8504, Ext: 2009 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES
l FOR INSPECTION PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT, OPERATE, USE AND/OR MAINTAIN

PROUFAT NAMF
ALLEN PARK - SPECIAL EVENTS

LOCATION o 76|T:(Af;v\’\}|;ggi o
VARIOUS ALLEN PARK

PERMIT HOLOER CCGNTRACTOR
CITY OF ALLEN PARK
16850 SOUTHFIELD ROAD

ALLEN PARK, M1 48101
CONTACT CONTACT
DOUG MORTON (313) 928-1400 <BLANK>

DESCRIPTION OF PERMITTED ACTIVIT o {72 HOURS BEFORE YoOU DIG CALL MISS DiG 1-800-482-?181 www.misstig.org)

TO ALLOW TEMPORARY CLOSURE OF CERTAIN LOCAL AND COUNTY ROADS FOR A SPECIFIED PERIOD OF TIME IN AGCORDANCE WITH ALL
GENERAL AND SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF THIS PERMIT.

REFER TO ATTACHEMENT: ANNUAL SPECIAL EVENTS PERMIT FOR MUNICIPALITIES TO CONDUCT PARADES, BLOCK PARTIES,
MARATHONS, CELEBRATIONS AND FESTIVALS,

PERMIT TO INSTALL BANNERS WITHIN THE COUNTY ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY. EACH REQUEST FOR A BANNER SHOULD BE SUBMITTED ONE
MONTH PRIOR TQ INSTALLMENT FOR APPROVAL.
PLEASE REFER TQ ATTACHMENT: ANNUAL PERMIT FOR MUNICIPAL BANNERS

PERMIT HOLDER SHOULD CONTACT/INFORM THE LOCAL POLICE, HOSPITAL, FIRE MARSHAL, SCHOOL AND ANY OTHER LOCAL AGENCIES
ARE/MAY BE AFFECTED BY THIS ROAD CLOSURE THREE (3} BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TQ SCHEDULED CLOSURE.

THE PERMIT HOLDER SHOULD CONTACT THE WAYNE COUNTY TRAFFIC OFFICE AT (734) 955-2154 THREE (3) WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO ANY
CLOSURE.

THE CONTRACTOR/PERMIT HOLDER WILL SET UP AND MAINTAIN ALL BARRICADING AND SIGNS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MICHIGAN
MANUAL OF UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES (HTTP://MUTCD.FHWA.DOT.GOV) AND WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PERMIT
HOLDER.

ALL ATTACHMENTS ARE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE AS PART OF THIS PERMIT.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY TDEPOSMTOR ST ' APPROVED PLANS PREPARED BY
PERMIT FEE .._ ... $0.00 ‘
PLAN REVIEW FEE.. $0.00 ‘ PLANS APF;ROVED B-Y ' DATE PLANS APPROVED
PARK FEE...... $0.00 ‘
OTHER FEE oot e 50.00 | _11”_29_‘.?,
BOND.. .. $0.00 | REQUIRED ATFACHMENTS
INSPECTION DEPOSIT 50.00 | GENERAL CONDITIONS
OTHER BOND $0.00 [ TLETTER OF CREDIT DEFOSITO | ANNUAL ROAD SPECIAL EVENTS FOR
| MUNICIPALITIES
TOTAL COSTS ... v $0.00 + ANNUAL BANNER PERMIT ATTACHMENT FOR
: MUNICIPALITIES
: SAMPLE COMMUNITY RESOLUTICN
" RULES, SPECIFICATIONS AND PROCEDURES
TOTAL CHECK AMOUNT . FOR PERMIT CONSTRUCTION - AVAILABLE
" ONLINE AT
$0.00 www. waynecounly. comidos_engineering_cpoffice him
CASHIER DATE
1”]20‘] 7 {PERMIT VALID ONLY IF ACCOMPANIES:

AY AROVE ATTACHMENTS]

in considerabion of the Permit Holder and Contractor agresing to abide and conform wilh all the tarms and condilions herein, a Parmit is herehy issued (o the above named to Construct, Operale. (ise and/or
Maintain within the Road Right of Way, Ceunly Easerent, andfor County Proparly. The permilted work descabed above shall ba accomplshed in accordance with the Approvoa Plans, Mans, Specifications
and Stalemerts filed with the Permil Office which are inlegrel 10 and made par! of his Permi.  The General Corditions es well a3 any Requited Alfachmants are ncorporaled as part of this Permit

WAYNE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES

DOLG MORTON . AT'E PREPARED BY
PERMIT HOLDER / AUTHORIZED AGENT

<BLANK> DATE VALIDATED BY  Mr. Alj Aljawad DATE
GONTRACTOR / AUTHORIZED AGENT




Wayne County Department of Public Services
Engineering Division — Permit Office

Annual Special Events for Municipalities
Road Closure/Detour Guidelines

An Annual Permit granting permission to temporarily close a County road for a reasonable length of time for a
parade, marathon, celebration, festival or similar activity, or to use a County road as a detour for traffic around
such activity taking place on a non-County road may be issued by the Permit Office to a governing body of a
city, incorporated village or township.

A permit, granting authorization to close Counly roads and to set detours over County roads may be issued if
ah annual Special Events Permit was previously executed with an associated blanket resolution. For each
event, the Permit Holder shall submit a written request at least ten (10) business days prior to the
commencement of a road closure. Each request shall be submitted on municipal letterhead and include the
following information:

a) The nature of the activity for which the permit is requested;

b) The dates and times it is proposed to close and reopen the County road to traffic;

¢) The roads and/or poriions of roads lo be closed;

d) The proposed detour route or routes, including a map if necessary to clearly describe the proposed
detour.

The written request shall be sent to the following offices:

Wayne County Permit Office Wayne County Division of Roads
33809 Michigan Ave Traffic Operations Office
Wayne MI 48184 29900 Geddard Road

Romulus M1 48242
Upen approval of the request, a permit will be issue authorizing the special event activities.

Permit Conditions:

1. All roads temporarily closed under the permit shall be County locai roads, as certified under Act 51, P.A.
1951, with residential frontage exclusive of section line (mile roads), quarter section line {collector roads)
and border line roads.

2. Road closures authorized under the permit shall not be for the purpese of allowing private commercial
activities such as advertising or the sale of goods, wares or produce.

3. The Permit Holder, at no expense to the County, shall provide any necessary police supervision.

4. Road closures authorized under the permit shall not have the effect of depriving property which is not
adjacent {o the section of road being closed from continucus uninterrupted access to the main public read
system.

5. The closure or partial closure of the road and any detour route selected shall allow alternative routes for
the reascnably safe and convenient movement of traffic.

6. Road closures authorized by the permit shall not exceed the approved duration, generally between 24 and
72 hours.

7. The Permit Holder shall, at no expense to the County, install, maintain and remove alt traffic control
devices required for the temporary road closure and detour routes.

8. All traffic contro! devices installed in conjunction with the road closure or partial closure and any detour
route shall conform to the provisions of the current MMUTCD.

9. The Permit Holder shall, at its scle expense, immediately following conclusion of the permitted activity
clean up and remove any litter, debris, refuse, etc., placed or left in the right-of-way as a result of the
permitted activity. In the event that the Permit Holder fails to clean up as required, causing Wayne County
to do the cleanup work, the Permit Holder shall reimburse Wayne County any costs incurred to restore the
right-of-way.

10. The Permit Holder acknowledges that the County may, at its sole discretion, deny any road closure
proposed under the permit.

Revised: October 7, 2008



Wayne County Department of Public Services
Engineering Division — Permit Office

Banner Attachment for Municipalities
Guidelines

Pursuant to MCL §247.323, a permit for installation of any banner to be placed within or over County read right-of-
way may be issued to a governing body of a city, incorperated village or township. Commercial signs shail not be
permitied within the right-of-way of any road under the jurisdiction of the Wayne County.

A permit, authorizing the placement of banners within the County right-of-way may be issued if an annual
Special Events Permit was previously executed with an associated blanket resolution. For each event,
the Permit Holder shall submit a written request at least ten {10) business days prior to the placement of
banner(s). Each request shall be submitted on municipal letterhead and include the following information:

a) The activity in connection with which the banner is to be placed;

b) The location of the proposed installation, including distance to averhead traffic control devices;
¢) A description of the banner, including any legend or symhol therson;

d} The height of any overhead banner from the road surface fo its lowest point;

e) The dates the banner will be erected and removed. This period shall not exceed a time specified by
the Permit Office. An acceptable period of time for banners to be in place is a total of three (3) weeks,
except for Holiday decorations which may be in place for eight (8) weeks;

f)  Such other information as the Permit Office may deem necessary.

Upon approval of the request, a permit will he issue autharizing the special event activities.

Design & Placement Reguirements

a) Any banner shall be designed, installed and located so as to avaid danger to those using the road or
undue interference with the free movement of traffic or maintenance operations.

b} Any banner shall be securely fastened so as to have a minimum bottom height of 18 feet above the
surface of the traveled way, shall be placed no closer than 100 feet in advance of flashing beacons
or traffic control signals and shall be placed so as to not obstruct a clear view of traffic lights, signals
or other traffic control devices.

¢) Banners shall not be attached to trees.

d)  No banner shall have disptayed thereon any legend or symbel which may in any way be construed to
advertise or otherwise promote the sale of or publicize any merchandise or commodity, or which may
be construed to be political in nature.

e) No banner shall have displayed thereon any device that is or purpors to be an imitation of,
resembles or may be mistaken for a traffic control device or which attempts to direct the movement of
traffic.

fy  No banrer shall be above ground figures, signs or other structures, objects or devices whether Jit or
unlit.

g) Decorations shall not include flashing lights, reflective materials or other devices that may distract
motorists.

Permit Conditions

a) Any authorization may be revoked by the Permit Office if the banner placement becomes dangerous
to those using the road or unduly interferes with the free movement of traffic or maintenance
operations.

b} The city, village or township making application shall faithfully fulfill all permit requirements.

An addendum autherization may be revoked by the Permit Office upon failure to comply with any permit conditions.

Revised: October 14, 2009



Wayne County Department of Public Services
Engineering Division — Permit Office

Conditions & Limitations of Permits

Plan Approval and Specificasions: All work performed under the permit shall be done in accordarce with the approved plans, specifications, maps, statements and speeial conditions filed with the County and ghall comply
with Waynz County Specifications, as defined in the curren] Hayne Connt X ifleations and Proc C il Constraviian, incloded 3s an attachment to this permit, the Wayne Couly Standard Plony for
Peraitt Construction, and the MQOT Siandard Speeificntions fFor Constrvetion, as modified by WCDPS Special Provisions, and other WCDPS specifications. Any situstion or problem which pecurs as a result of the
constniction, operation, use andiar mainteaance of the facilily in the fight-of-way and is tiot covered by the approved plans nor by the County's cument Standards and Specifications stell be resolved by the Permit Holder as
directed and approved by the Permit Office. Any significant change ta the plans must be approved by the Permit Office and is wuthorized only when an approved addendunt is chiained from the Permit Office.

Fees: The Permit Holder shall be resporsible for all fees and costs incurred by the County in connection with the pesmit and shall deposic payrrent for Faes and costs as determined by the County &t the time the permit is
issued

Bond: The Permit Holder shall fucnish 5 bond ia cash ar Certified check in &n rmount acceptable o the County to guarantee performance under the conditions of the perniit. The County may use all or sny postion of the
bond which shalt be necessary 1o covor any expense, inchiding inspection costs or damage incurred by the Courty thraugh the granting of the pormit. Should the bond be insufficient 1o cover the expenses and damages
incurred by the County, the Permit HoMer shall pay such deficiency upon billing by the County. If the bond smount exceeds the expenses and damages incuseed by the County, the excess portion will be retarned to the
Depositor. The excess performance bond provided for herein, when it cannot be seturned, shalt be deposited into the County Road Fund and become a part thereof, unless claimed by the Depositor within one year of the date
of satisfactory completion of the construction autherized by the permit.

Insurance. ‘The Permit Holder shall fumnish proof of liskiliy and propery damage insurznce in the form and amounts accepiable to the County with Wayne County named as an insured paity. The Pe;at Holder shall
maiateia this insurance until the permit is relessed, revoked or canvelled by she County,

Indemnification / Hold Harmiless: Sub-Section | herein spplics 1 all Pecmit Holders except Municipalities. Sub-Section 2 herein applics fo Mumiaipalities only.

1. Ta the exten allowed by faw, the Permit Holer saall indemnify, hold harmless and defend Wayne County, its Department of Public Services, its officials and employees against sny and all ¢laims, swits and judgments 1o
which the County, the Department, its cfficials and employees may be subject and for all ¢osts and actual etioraey fees which may be incurred on account of injury 1o persons or damage to progecly. including property of
the County, whether dus to negligence of the Permit Holder or 1o the ‘oint negligence of the Permit Holder and the County, arising out of any and all work perfarmed under the permit, or in cornegtion with work 1ot
authotized by the permil, or resubling from failure to comply with 1he terms of the permit or ariting cul of the contiaued existence of ihe work product that s the subject of the permit. This hoid harmless provising nust
a0t be construed 89 4 weiver of eny governmantal immunity by the County,

2. To the cxient allowed by Taw, the Munielpality as Pevmit Holder shall hold harmiess and defend Wayne County, its Deparment of Public Services. its ofTcials and emplayees, for the Muaicipahiy’s ewn nephience.
torlious acls, exrors, o omissions, and the acts, errors, or omissions of any of its employees, on account of injury 10 persons or damags to propery. including properny of the County, rising out of any and all wok
performed undet the permit, or in connection with work not authorized by the permit, or resulting from feilure 10 comply with the terrs of the permi or arising oul of the centinued existence of work product tha: i thwe
subject of the permit. Sub-section 1 above applies o contractoss, stbeonractors, consultznts, or 2gents of the Municipality. This hald hermless provision must not be censtrued a5 a waiver of any yovernmenial irmurity
by the County or the Municipslity's, as provided by stanute or modified by coun deeisions.

Permlt on Site: The Permit Holder sha:l keep available 2 copy of the permit and any associated approved plans on site during permitted acliviues.

Notification for Start and Completion of Work: The permit shall not become operative until it has been fully executed by the County. Tue Permit Holder shall notify the County before siarting constructior: and shall notify
the County when work is completed. The Permit Holder of their jepresentative shall have copies of the executed permit and appreved plans in theic possession on the job site af al: times.

1. The Permit Holder shall provide at least three (3) days advaaced notice, excluding Ssturdays, Sundays and holidays, to the Permit Office prior te Ibe commencement of any permitted activities by submitting 2 START OF
WORK NOTIFICATION form by mail, fax or e-mail. In certain instances, additional notice may be requited by the Permit Office. 1n the event that construstion work ceeses for a period of 1ime, then the Permit Holer
shall ratify the Wayne County Inspector st Isast 24 hours prior fo resuming work.

2. The Permit Holder shall comply with all requirements of the Miss Dig Statule, MCL. §460.701 et seq., as amended. The Permiit Holder skall call “MISS DIG”, 2t (800) 4827161, ai least 12 hours, excluding Saturdays,
Sundays and holidays, but not more than 1weaty-one (21} calendar days, before starting any underground work. The Permit Holder sssumes all responsibility for damage to or interrupfion of undergrownd wtilities

3. The Permil Holder shal call Wayne County Department of Public Services” Traffic Operations Ofico at (734) 9552154, at least 72 hours privr, excluding Saturdays, Sundaya snd holidays, bul not more than twenty-one
{21 caleadar days, before starting any underground work ir. the vicinity of any traffic signal equipment owned, operated or maintained by Wayaz County.

Safery: The Permsil Holdes agreed that all work under the permil shall be performed in a safe mianner and to keep the aren affectd by the permit in & safe condition until the work is compleced and eccepled by the County.
The Permit Holder shall fursish, instell and maintain all necessary traffic conteats and protection which are in sccordance with the current Manuat on, Uniform Traffic Control Deyicgs (MUTCD). The Permit Holder shall
conduct gl activities end maintain all facilities a9 set Farth in the permit ia & manner so es not to damage, impair, intecfere with, or obstauct a public rond or create a foreseeable risk of harm to the traveling public. The Permit
Holder shall comply with all applicable OSHA and MIOSHA requirements.

Undergroand Utilities: The Pcrmit Holder shall contact il wiility owners segarding sheir facitities prior to starticg work and shall comply with &1l applicable provisions of Act 53, Public Acts of 1974, as amended. Wayne
Counly makes no wareanty either expressed or implied as to the condition o suitability of subsurface conditlons or any existing facility which may be encountered during 2 excavation. The presence or sbsgnce ofuiilities is
based on the best information available end the County is not responsible for she accuracy of this information. The Permit Holder sssumes all responsibality for the intermuption and damage lo uadergrouad vtifities. The
Permit Holder is responsibie for proper disposal, in accordance with current regulations, of any material excevaied from within the right-of-wey. Such matarials include, without limitation, soils or groundwater ¢ontaminaied
by petroleum products or othes pollutants associated with sites idantified by the MDE( or reported on appropriate reieese forms for undergrourd sigwape lanks

Assignability: The permit is neither transferable nor assignable without the writien consen of the County.

Limitatlon of Permit: The Applicant and the Permit Holder shalt be responsible for obtaining and shall secure any pereils or permission récessacy or required by law from S1z1e, federal or other loval goveramental sgeikivs
and jurisdictions, carporations of individuals. These include, witkout limitation, those pertaining to drains, inland lakes and streams, weliands, woodands, llood plains, fill.ng, noise regulal on and hours of pperalion ssLance
of'a Wayne County permil docs not autherize activities othenwise regubated by State, federal o local agoncies.

Actess of Dther Vehicley The Permit Hokler shall, at all times possible, mainiain a minimem of one ecceptable access to all abulling occupicd propéries, driveways and side streels unless oiherwise speqifico on the
approved plans. The Permit Bolder shall notify all owners or occupants of propedties whose access may be temporarily disrupied during the permilted work The locai potice, fire or emergency service agencies shall define
aceapteble access, The Permit Holder shull provide signing and other improvements necessary ko ensure adequate gccess unlil the rosdway, drivewsy or s:0¢ sireet is restored. The Permit Holde shali condugt all uperarions so
a5 L0 minimize inconvénience 16 sbuiting praperty owaers. Wayne County reserves the right to ressonably restrici the progress of work by the Permit Holder based on the ra'e of roadway and right-of way resioraiion,
including permenent ot temporary paverend. Wayne Counly may regairc that work be suspended until satisfactory backfilling of opea irenches or wacavalions has been compleled and driveways, side sireels and dr2age
restored.

Restoration: The Permil Hofdee agrees 1o restoze the Connly road and road right-cf-way, County drain casement oF County park praperty 1o a condition equal to or beter than i's condition befote work undet the permit
began. Ifthe Permit Holder fails wo satisfacionly restore the permitted work area, Wayne County may take all practies] acliens necessary 1o provide veasonably sefe and convenient public travel, greservation of the rordway
and drainage, prevention af sail crosion snd sedimentation, and elimination of raisance 1o sbutting property owners caused by the permitted activity. Securily in the form of cash, & cenified check or surety bond shall be
required o secure Lhe cosl of restoring the disturbed postion of the right-of-wey to an accepteble safe condition. The smount of the security shall be determined by the Permit Office. [n the event that & suspension of wark wil.
be protreced o that tie work will not be completed by the Permit Holder, the Permit Holder shall restare the right-of-way 10 a condition similar tothe condition that existed prior to issuance of the permic

Acceptance; Acceplance by the Coumty of wark performed does not relieve the Permit Holder of full respensibility for work performed or the presence of the permilted facility. The Permit Heoldet ackaowledges 1hat the
County has no liability for £ presence of the Permit Holder's facilily Jocated within the County road right-of-wiy, County drain easement or County park property.

Permit Expiration and Extension of Timie: Al work suthorized by the pesmit shiall be completed to the satisfaction of the Percnit Office on or befiore tbe expiration date specified in the permit Any request for sn extensior
of time for campletion shall be on a completed County form aad shall demansirate good cause for granting the request. Additional requiremenis may be imposed a1 a condition of an extension of lime dug to seasonal
limiymions or oriver considerstions. These additional requirements may include, without imilation, changes to materials or construction metheds, resstablishmea of fees, bonds, depasits and insurarce requirements.

Responsibility: Tue design, consiruction, operation and maintenance of all work covered by the peremit ghall be at the Permit Holder's expense with the exception that the Permit Holder will nat be responsizle for
intaining road widenings or similar facilities which become part of the County roadway

Revocalion: The pennit may bs suspended or revoked at the will of the County. Upon order of the County, the Permit Holder shall surrender the permit, cease operations end remeve. alter or relocate, 2t their expense, the
facilities for which the permit was granted. The Permit Holder expresaly waives any right to claim damages for compensation resulting from the revacation of the permit

Yiolation: The County may declare the permit null and void if the Permit Holder violates the terma of the permit. The County may require immediate removal of the Permit Halder's ficilities and resioraiion of the County
property, ar the County may remove the faciliti¢s and restore the County property &t the Permit Holder's cxpense. The Perniit Holder agrees thatin the event of 2 viotation of Lhe terms of the permit or in the event the work
authorized by the permit is not satisfactorify compleied by the permit expiration dato, the County may use all o any pomion of the performance bond 1o restore the County road righl-ol-way, Grain easement, waslewaler
Facility or park property as necessary for reasorably safe and efficient operations and maintenance, or 10 esiablish €xtragrdinary mainienance procedvres as required Lo assure reasorably safe and eMiciert uperation of the
County facility.

Inspection and Tesling of Materials: Wayre County reserves the right of inspection ard the Iesting of malerials by its authorized represenialives of all permilied activities andfor acuvities wihm the road sighi-ol-wav.
Counly owned properly or within a County drain ¢essment. Alf items identified by the fical inspeclion shal! be resolved prior to release of the permit - All matecials and methods wiilized during 1he course of the ambariced
permit work shal! meet the requirements of the current MDOGT Standacd, Specifications For Constniction as modified by Wayne County Speaial Provisians. Stancard Plans for Pernimit Cuenstracuon and this mansal Vhe Peern
Holder shall reimburse Wayne County for all required inspections and testing of materials.

Design  The Permit Holder is fully responsible for the design of the permitted facility, such thal ihe design shall be consistent with all spolicable Courly standerds, specifications, gu dehnes. requirements ard with gaod
engineering practice.  Any errors in the plans that become evident atter the jssuance of a permit, and which change t1e scope of permitted work, sre subject lo review aad may be yrounds for revocation of the pernin e
Permit Office will not relieve the Permit Holder of the responsibility of correcting emors, deficiencics, or omissions duc to aversight or unforeseen conlingencies suzh es fully diainage, poor subseil conditions or the fsifure
of the Permis Holder's engineer to show all the related of pertineni conditions inside or outside the plan area.

Drainage. Drainage shall not 3 altered to flow into the road right-of-way or road drsinage system unless approved by Wayse Courty.

Permit Haldee Camplianee: The Permit Holder shall abide by the conditions and limiazions contained on the permil and ail other condilions listed within the WCDPS Rules, Specifications and Procedures for Consiruction
Permits. The apphication of any work undartaken under the pereail shall constitute the Permit Holder’s agreement Lo the Provision.



MODEL COMMUNITY RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF
WAYNE COUNTY PERMITS

Resolution No.

At a Regular Meeting of the {(Name of
Community Governing Board) on (date), the following

resolution was offered:

WHEREAS, the (nereinafter the  "Community”)
periodically applies to the County of Wayne Department of Public Services, Engineering
Division Permit Office (hereinafter the “County”) for permits to conduct emergency
repairs, annual maintenance work, and for other purposes on local and County roads
located entirely within the boundaries of the Community, as needed from time to time to
maintain the roads in a condition reasonably safe and convenient for public travel;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 51 of 1951, being MCL 247.651 et seq., the County permits
and regulates such activities noted above and related temporary road closures,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, in consideration of the County granting such
permit (hereinafter the "Permit"), the Community agrees and resolves that:

Any work performed for the Community by a contractor or subcontractor will be solely as
a contractor for the Community and not as a contractor or agent of the County. Any
claims by any contractor or subcontractor will be the sole responsibility of the
Community. The County shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities by vendors
and contractors of the Community, or their subcontractors.

The Community shall take no unlawful action or conduct, which arises either directly or
indirectly out of its obligations, responsibilities, and duties under the Permit which resulis
in claims being asserted against or judgment being imposed against the County, and all
officers, agents and employees thereof pursuant to a maintenance contract. In the event
that same occurs, for the purposes of the Permit, it wili be considered a breach of the
Permit thereby giving the County a right to seek and obtain any necessary relief or
remedy, including, but not by way of limitation, a judgment for money damages.

With respect to any activities authorized by Permit, when the Community requires
insurance on its own or its contractor's behalf, it shall also require that such poticy
include as named insured the County of Wayne and all officers, agents and employees
thereof,

The incorporation by the County of this Resolution as part of a permit does not prevent
the County from requiring additional performance security or insurance before issuance
of a Permit.

This Resolution stipulates that the requesting Community shall, at no expense to Wayne
County, provide necessary police supervision, establish detours and post all necessary



signs and other traffic control devices in accordance with the Michigan Manual of
Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

This Resolution stipulates that the requesting Community shall assume full responsibility
for the cost of repairing damage done to the County road during the period of road
closure or partial closure.

This Resolution shall continue in force from the date of execution until cancelled by the
Community or the County with no less than thirty (30) days prior written notice to the
other party. It will not be cancelled or otherwise terminated by the Community with
regard to any Permit which has already been issued or activity which has already been
undertaken.

The Community stiputates that it agrees to the terms of the County of Wayne permit at
the time a permit is signed by the Community’s authorized representative.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following individual(s) is/are authorized in their
official capacity as the Community’s authorized representative to sign and so bind the
Community to the provisions of any and all permits applied for to the County of Wayne,
Department of Public Services Engineering Division Permit Office for necessary permits
from time to time to work within County road right-of-way or local roads on behalf of the
Community.

MName Title

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted
by the [Board of Trustees/City Council] of the
(name of Community), County of Wayne, Michigan, on

#305209-v2
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STATE OF MICHIGAN y
COUNTY OF WAYNE
CITY OF ALLEN PARK

PROPOSED ORDINANCE #10-2016
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ALLEN PARK CODE OF ORDINANCES;
AMENDING CHAPTER 18, FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION, ARTICLE II,
FIRE CODES, BY THE REPEAL AND READOPTION OF SECTIONS 18-33 AND 18-34
TO UPDATE THE APPLICABLE FIRE CODES.

The City of Allen Park Ordains:
SECTION 1. Amendment to Code.
Sections 18-33 and 18-34 are repealed and readopted to hereafier read as follows:

Chapter 18, Fire Prevention and Protection
Article II, Fire Codes

Sec. 18-33. - Adopted by reference.

A certain document, a copy of which is on file in the office of the city clerk, being marked and
designated as the NFPA 1 Uniform Fire Code {(Current Edition), NFPA 101 Life Safety Code
(Current Edition) and any NFPA Codes referenced therein, is hereby adopted as the fire
prevention code of the city, for the control of buildings, structures and premises as herein
provided.

Sec. 18-34. - Permit fees, costs, bonds, rates and charges; administrative fee for failure to
obtain permit.

All permit fees and costs, bonds, rates and charges under the NFPA 1 Uniform Fire Code

(Current Edition), NFPA 101 Life Safety Code (Current Edition) and any NFPA Codes
referenced therein, shall be established by council resolution.

SECTION 2. Repeal. All ordinance or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed
only to the extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect.

SECTION 3. Saving Clause.



Nothing in this Ordinance or in the code hereby adopted shall be construed to affect any suit or
proceeding pending in any court, or any rights acquired, or liability incurred, or any cause or
causes of action acquiring or existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed; nor shall any
just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired or affected by this Ordinance.

SECTION 4. Severability.

Should any word, sentence, phrase or any portion of this Ordinance be held in a manner invalid
by any court of competent jurisdiction or by any state agency having authority to do so for any
reason whatsoever, such holdings shall be construed and limited to such work, sentence, phrase,
or any portion of the Ordinance held to be so invalid shall not be construed as affecting the
validity of any of the remaining words, sentences, phrases or portions of this Ordinance.

SECTION 3. Publication.

The Clerk for the City of Allen Park shall cause this ordinance to be published in the manner
required by law.

SECTION 6. Adoption.

This Ordinance is hereby declared to have been adopted by the City Council of the City of Allen

Park, County of Wayne, State of Michigan, at a regular meeting, called and held on the 13® day of
December, 2016.

WILLIAM MATAKAS, Mayor
City of Allen Park

MICHAEL [. MIZZI, City Clerk
City of Allen Park
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STATE OF MICHIGAN @
COUNTY OF WAYNE

CITY OF ALLEN PARK

PROPOSED ORDINANCE #11-2016
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ALLEN PARK CODE OF ORDINANCES;
AMENDING CHAPTER 2 “ADMINISTRATION”, BY THE REPEAL AND
READOPTION OF ARTICLE VI “FINANCE” DIVISION 3 “RECOVERY OF
EXPENSES OF EMERGENCY RESPONSE”, SECTIONS 2-863 THROUGII 2-868, TO
PROVIDE FOR THE RECOVERY OF THE CITY’S COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH
CERTAIN EMERGENCY EVENTS.

The City of Allen Park Ordains;
SECTION 1. Amendment to Code.

That Chapter 2, Administration, Article VI “Finance”, Division 3 *Recovery of Expenses
of Emergency Response” and Sections 2-863 through 2-868 are hereby repealed and readopted
to read as follows:

Chapter 2, Administration

Article VI, Finance
Division 3, Recovery of Expenses of Emergency Response

See, 2-863. — Title for citation.

This chapter shall be known and cited as the "cost recovery ordinance."

Sec. 2-864. - Purpose.

The purpose of this ordinance is to enable the city to require reimbursement trom those
individuals and entities who receive direct benefits from emergency medical, fire, or police
department services provided by the city; from those persons responsible for the release,
threatened release, leaking, spilling, or escape of dangerous materials, and/or damage to public
property; and those requesting or necessitating that an emergency response be provided.

Sec. 2-865, - Definitions.



For the purpose of this chapter, the words and phrases listed below shall have the following
meanings:

A. "Dangerous" or "hazardous" substance or material means any and all substances,
compounds, mixtures or materials that are defined to be, designated as, listed as, or which
have characteristics that are hazardous or toxic under any federal, state or local statute,
ordinance, rule or regulation, or under the Relevant Environmental Laws.

B. "Emergency response" means the provision/utilization of environmental removal and/or
cleanup, firefighting, emergency medical, crowd control, investigatory, and rescue
services by the police and/or fire department, or by a private corporation or governmental
or inter-governmental entity or agency operating at the request of or direction of the fire
department, as well as sign fabrication and repairs to damaged public property
undertaken by or at the direction or request of the department of public works. This
definition shall include, but not be limited to, the provision/utilization of the City's
firefighting/emergency medical/rescue services, including resuscitator and emergency
extrication service, to the scene of a fire, accident, utility emergency, hazardous material
release, arson, or other emergency situation,

C. "Environmental cleanup" means removal, abatement, mitigation and restoration activities
necessitated by any release or threatened release of a dangerous or hazardous substance
or material of unknown composition reasonably believed to be dangerous or hazardous.

D. "Expense of emergency response” means the actual costs associated with an emergency
response. The expenses of making an emergency response shall include the costs
associated with investigation, removal, repair, restoration, enforcement, abatement,
mitigation, environmental cleanup and analysis of chemical tests, if applicable. The costs
of enforcement shall include but are not limited to attorney fees and costs associated with
ensuring compliance with any and all provisions of this chapter.

E. "Person" shall include one (1) or more individuals and/or corporate, unincorporated or
partnership entities, including governmental entities and agencies.

F. "Public Property" means real and/or personal property of a governmental entity.

G. The "Relevant Environmental Laws," as referred to herein, shall mean all applicable
federal, state and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, judicial
determinations, and decisions or determinations by any judicial, legislative or executive
body of any governmental or quasigovernmental entity, whether in the past, the present



H.

or the future, that regulate, prohibit, or impose duties or liabilities with respect to (i) the
installation, existence, or removal of, or exposure to, Asbestos on the Property; (ii)
performing or paying for testing, investigation, remedial actions, response actions,
response activities, clean up, fines or penalties relating to Hazardous Materials that are or
were present, released, discharged, disposed, stored, manufactured, treated, or utilized at
or from the Property; (iii) the existence, manufacture, treatment, storage, use, release,
disposal, discharge, manufacture, remedy, or removal of Hazardous Materials at, to or
from the Property; and (iv) the effects on the environment of the Property or of any
activity now, previously, or hereafter conducted on the property.

The Relevant Environmental Laws shall include, but are not limited to, the following, all
as may be amended from time to time, and including any replacements thereof:

1) The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability
Act, 42 USC 9601 et seq.; Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 USC
6901 et seq.; The Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 USC 300F et seq.; The
Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 USC 2601, et seq., The Hazardous
Materials Transportation Act, 49 USC 1801, et seq.; The Federal Water
Pollution Control Act, 33 USC 1251, et seq.; The Clean Air Act, 42 USC
7401, et seq.; and all regulations and interpretations  promulgated  in
connection with the foregoing;

2) Environmental Protection Agency Regulations pertaining to Asbestos
(including 40 CFR Part 61, Subpart M); the Occupational Safety and Health
Administration Regulations pertaining to Asbestos (including 29 CFR
1910.1011 and 1926.58) as each may now or hereafter be amended; and

3) The Michigan Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, MCLA
323.101, et seq., and all regulations promulgated thereunder, and any similar
local laws, ordinances and regulations pertaining to Hazardous Materials,
Asbestos and other environmental matters.

"Utility Emergency" means downed power lines, gas pipeline breaks, or other events
occurring in connection with the activities of public utilities or their suppliers which
necessitate a response by the City's police, firefighting and/or emergency medical/rescue
services or cause damage to public property.



Sec. 2-866. - Presumption of liability.

A. The owner, lessor and operator of any property to which there is an emergency response
shall be presumed liable for the expense of the emergency response.

B. Any person or vehicle owner/lessee who owns, leases and/or operates a motor vehicle or
other transporter or equipment, the operation of which results in an emergency response,
shall be presumed liable for the expenses of said emergency response.

C. Any individual who is the subject of an emergency response by the city shall be
presumed liable for the expenses of said emergency response.

D. Any person causing a fire, an accident, or any release giving rise to a need for
environmental cleanup or other emergency response shall be presumed liable for the
expenses of said emergency response.

E. In the event of a utility emergency, the public utility whose activities or facilities
necessitated the emergency response shall be presumed liable for the expenses of said
emergency response.

Sec. 2-867. - Dangerous or hazardous substances/materials liability.

A. It shall be the duty of any person who causes or controls leakage, spillage, or any other
dissemination of dangerous or hazardous substances or materials to immediately remove
such and clean up the area of the spillage in such a manner that the area involved is fully
restored to its condition before such occurrence. The Fire Department shall be contacted
to inspect said site to make sure that the cleaning is in compliance with local, state, and
tederal guidelines, regulations, and laws. Each day that a person fails to comply with this
section shall be deemed a separate offense.

B. Any such person who violates this section by failing to clean, without delay, a dangerous
or hazardous substance release, shall be liable to and pay the City for its costs incurred, or
incurred by any party which it may engage for the complete abatement, mitigation,
cleanup, restoration and inspection of the affected area, and shall be guilty of a
misdemeanor punishable by up to ninety (90) days' imprisonment or a fine of up to five
hundred ($500.00) dollars or both.



Sec. 2-868. - Cost recovery process.

Al

The expense of an emergency response shall be a charge against the person or entity
liable for such expense as set forth by this ordinance. The charge shall constitute a debt of
that person or entity and is collectible by the city for incurring those costs in the same
manner as any other debt, or may be made the subject of an order of restitution in any
criminal prosecution. The city shall have a lien for all unpaid costs and damages incurred
by the city and may enforce such lien in the manner prescribed by law for the
enforcement of tax liens.

The city shall be entitled to recover any and all expenses of emergency responses. Such
expenses shall include, but are not limited to, any related third party costs which are
necessary to ensure the safety of the city and its populace and buildings.

Such expenses shall be the responsibility of the person(s) or entity identified in Section 2-
866 of this chapter. In the event said emergency response involves more than one such
person or entity, each shall be jointly and severally liable for all such expenses.

The city's finance department or its designee shall, within ninety (90) days of receiving
an itemized statement of expenses incurred for emergency response, submit a statement
of charges for same by first class mail to any such person or entity whose identity and
address are known to the director of finance. Such a statement may also be transmitted
via facsimile or other electronic means if such means are reasonably determined to
provide actual notice to the intended recipient. Said statement shall require payment
within forty-tive (45) days.

Any person(s) or entity receiving such a statement shall have the opportunity to appeal all
or any portion of the amount shown on such statement by filing a written request for
same with the fire chief within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice from the city. The
request must be accompanied by a written explanation as to why the amount appealed
should not be charged to the appellant. Such appeals shall be heard by the fire marshal, or
his designee, as hearing officer. If the hearing officer determines that the appellant is not
properly responsible for any or all of the amount charged, the hearing officer may waive
such charge against the appellant. The findings and decisions of the hearing officer shall
be in writing and filed with the office of the fire chief.



F. If no written request for appeal is received within the specitied time, the city may proceed
by suit in a court of appropriate jurisdiction to collect any monies remaining unpaid at the
expiration of forty-tive (45) days from billing, or, if no bill is submitted, at any time
subsequent to the emergency response in question.

G. In addition, the city shall have any other remedy available to the city by law.

H. All fees and/or expenses for performing the services required under this division,
including an interest rate and administrative oversight fee shall be established by council
resolution.

SECTION 2. Repeal.

All ordinance or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed only to the extent necessary
to give this ordinance full force and effect.

SECTION 3. Saving Clause.

Nothing in this Ordinance or in the code hereby adopted shall be construed to affect any suit or
proceeding pending in any court, or any rights acquired, or liability incurred, or any cause or
causes of action acquiring or existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed; nor shall any
just or legal right or remedy of any character by lost, impaired or atfected by this Ordinance.

SECTION 4. Severability.

Should any word, sentence, phrase or any portion of this Ordinance be held in a manner invalid
by any court of competent jurisdiction or by any state agency having authority to do so for any
reason whatsoever, such holdings shall be construed and limited to such work, sentence, phrase,
or any portion of the Ordinance held to be so invalid shall not be construed as affecting the
validity of any of the remaining words, sentences, phrases or portions of this Ordinance.,

SECTION 5. Publication.

The Clerk for the City of Allen Park shall cause this ordinance to be published in the manner
required by law.



SECTION 6. Adoption.

This Ordinance is hereby declared to have been adopted by the City Council of the City of Allen
Park, County of Wayne, State of Michigan, at a regular meeting, called and held on the 13™ day of
December, 2016.

WILLIAM MATAKAS, Mayor
City of Allen Park

MICHAEL I. MIZ2Z], City Clerk
City of Allen Park



